
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN MEETING IN
THE SUPERVISORS’ AUDITORIUM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY
PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY
MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME TO ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260,
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 3, 2013 - 10:00 A.M.
           

1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION  
 

2. PRESENTATIONS:  
 

A. Public recognition of five employees for August's "Spotlight on Employees"
Program, as follows: Nyra Hillery, Wes Wilson, Alex Cunningham, Bianca
DalMolin and Ronald Escobedo.  (Erica Raymond)

 

3. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A. Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental Agreement
between Gila County and the Gila County Community College District to
provide $250,000 in four quarterly payments for utility expenses and repair
and maintenance of the College's facilities and real property at its three Globe
and Payson campuses commencing July 1, 2013, and ending June 30, 2014. 
(Don McDaniel)

 

B. Information/Discussion/Action to approve, and authorize the Chairman to
sign, the purchase documents with Spillman Technologies for the purchase
and installation of an IBM rack-mounted server in the amount of $48,828 and
a Sentryx Geobase Module which includes on-site training and Spillman Pin
Mapping in the amount of $60,665, all of which are budgeted items in the FY
2013/2014 Sheriff's Office.   (Lisa Modglin)

 

C. Information/Discussion/Action to approve the final distribution of $149,903
of Gila County's Secure Rural Schools and Communities Funds (SRSC -
'Forest Fees') for FY2012-2013, namely $144,903 to Gila County School
Districts, and $5,000 for Roads.  (Linda O'Dell)

 

D. Information/Action/Discussion to approve an expenditure with Empire CAT
in the amount of $19,630.50 to replace the wheel tips on the 816F compactor
in service at the Buckhead Mesa Landfill. (Sharon Winters)

 

E. Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Vending Services Grantor
Agreement (Contract No. ADES14-051775) with the Arizona Department of
Economic Security/Rehabilitation Services Administration/Business
Enterprise Program (BEP) to utilize the services provided by BEP, to arrange
for an automated snack vending machine on the 2nd floor, main lobby of the
Gila County Courthouse that will be installed and serviced by a BEP
Operator.  Said Agreement will expire on August 31, 2028.  (Jeff Hessenius)

 

F. Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 13-09-01 for the

  

  



F. Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 13-09-01 for the
roadway exchange of that property referenced in said resolution regarding
Deer Farm Road, and to authorize the Chairman's signature on the Quit
Claim Deed with Gary C. Landers.  (Steve Sanders)

 

G. Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 13-09-02 accepting
Russell Road as described in Fee No. 2013-007562, Gila County Records, as a
public road and to be maintained as a public roadway in the Gila County
Maintained Roadway System. (Steve Sanders)

 

H. Information/Discussion/Action to approve two letters addressed to the
Director of the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS):  (1) requesting
immediate action to grant an extension to the various comment periods
involved in the gray wolf delisting, the relisting of the Mexican wolf, the
revision of the nonessential, experimental revised rules, and the proposed
draft Environmental Impact Statement on the revision to the Mexican wolf
nonessential experimental population rule; and (2) expressing grave concerns
with regard to the processes that have been followed by the USFWS related to
the entire Mexican Wolf Initiative. (Jacque Griffin)

 

I. Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Policy No. BOS-COB-004-Call to the
Public, which replaces Policy No. BOS-1-2009-Call to the Public to reflect a
change in the format and number of the policy and a statutory reference. 
(Don McDaniel)

 

4. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent Agenda
will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted upon
as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the Board
of Supervisors.)

 

 

A. Approval of a revision to Exhibit A of Resolution No. 13-08-03, which is a
listing of tax levies and tax rates for all primary and secondary taxing districts
in Gila County, Arizona.  (The total tax rate for Young Elementary School
District No. 5 was reduced from $6.3743 to $6.2008 per A.R.S. § 42-17151.)

 

B. Approval of Unilateral Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. DE126007-015
between the Arizona Department of Economic Security (DES) and the Gila
County Division of Community Services, Gila Employment and Special
Training, whereby Section 5-DES Special Terms and Conditions was replaced
with Section 5-Background Checks for Employment through the Central
Registry, effective on the date of last signature through June 30, 2016.

 

C. Approval of Unilateral Amendment No. 3 and Amendment No. 4 to Contract
No. DE111093-001 between the Arizona Department of Economic Security
(DES) and the Gila County Division of Community Services, Gila Employment
and Special Training Program, whereby Amendment No. 3 replaces Section
20.0-DES Special Terms and Conditions with Section 20.0-Background
Checks for Employment through the Central Registry, and Amendment No.
4 amends Section 39.0-Confidentiality.  Both amendments become effective
on the date of last signature through September 30, 2015.

 

  

  



D. Approval of Amendment No. 9 to Agreement No. 700518523 (Energy Wise Low
Income Weatherization Program) between Arizona Public Service (APS) and
the Gila County Division of Community Services, Community Action Program,
whereby APS will provide funding in an amount not to exceed $141,429 for
the repairs, reconditioning, replacement or restoration of deficiencies in a
customer's qualified home in order to make such homes energy efficient
(Weatherization Services), to eligible citizens residing in Gila County for the
period January 1, 2013, through December 31, 2013.

 

E. Adoption of an Amended Order to Call a Special Recall Election to be held on
November 5, 2013, for the purpose of recalling Pleasant Valley Fire District
Board Member David Braswell in order to change the location of the
replacement site from the Young Public Library to the Pleasant Valley
Community Center.

 

F. Acknowledgment of the resignation of Lee Wright from the Beaver Valley Fire
District and the appointment of Sarah McAnerny to fulfill Mr. Wright's
unexpired term of office ending on December 31, 2016.

 

G. Acknowledgment of the resignation of Joe Stapleton from the Tri-City Fire
District and the appointment of John H. Chism to fulfill Mr. Stapleton's
unexpired term of office ending on December 31, 2014.

 

H. Approval of the appointment of the following precinct committee persons as
submitted by the Gila County Republican Committee: Payson #5-Thomas E.
Christy, and Payson #5-Anita Louise Christy.

 

I. Approval of three Special Event Liquor License Applications submitted by the
Lions Club of Globe, Arizona, Inc. to serve liquor on September 19, 2013,
September 20, 2013, and September 21, 2013, at the Gila County
Fairgrounds during the Gila County Fair. 

 

J. Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by Arizona
State Parks Foundation to serve liquor during a fund-raiser event for Friends
of Tonto Natural Bridge State Park, an affiliate of Arizona State Parks
Foundation, on October 19, 2013, for the benefit of Arizona State Parks
Foundation.

 

K. Acknowledgment of the July 2013 monthly activity report submitted by the
Payson Regional Constable's Office.

 

L. Acknowledgement of the July 2013 monthly activity report submitted by the
Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

 

M. Approval of the July 30, 2013, August 6, 2013, and August 19, 2013, Board
of Supervisors' meeting minutes.

 

N. Acknowledgment of Human Resources reports for the weeks of August 6,
2013, August 13, 2013, August 20, 2013, and August 27, 2013.

 

  

  



O. Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved by
the County Manager for the weeks of August 5, 2013, to August 9, 2013; and
August 12, 2013, to August 16, 2013.

 

P. Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of August 27,
2013, and September 3, 2013.

 

 

5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public benefit to allow
individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any issue within the
jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors.  Board members may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. Therefore, pursuant
to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the conclusion of an open call
to the public, individual members of the Board of Supervisors may
respond to criticism made by those who have addressed the Board, may ask
staff to review a matter or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda
for further discussion and decision at a future date.

 

 

6. At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), members
of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief Administrator may present a brief
summary of current events. No action may be taken on issues presented.

 

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928) 425-3231 AS EARLY AS
POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL 7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE
AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO (928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE
BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431.03(A)((3)

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE MEETING

  

  



   

ARF-2030     Presentation Agenda Item      2. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/03/2013  

Submitted For: Linda
Eastlick,
Human
Resources
Director

Submitted By:

Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant,
Human Resources

Department: Human Resources

Information
Request/Subject
August 2013 "Spotlight on Employees" Program.

Background Information
The purpose of this program is to provide recognition to employees for the following
qualities: teamwork, quality, morale building, integrity, customer service and initiative.

Evaluation
n/a

Conclusion
n/a

Recommendation
To allow the Human Resources Department to publicly recognize five employees for
August 2013 through the County's "Spotlight on Employees" Program.

Suggested Motion
Public recognition of five employees for August's "Spotlight on Employees" Program, as
follows: Nyra Hillery, Wes Wilson, Alex Cunningham, Bianca DalMolin and Ronald
Escobedo.  (Erica Raymond)



   

ARF-2003     Regular Agenda Item      3. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/03/2013  

Submitted For: Don McDaniel
Jr., County
Manager

Submitted By: Dana Sgroi, Contracts Support
Specialist, Finance Department

Department: County Manager
Fiscal Year: 2013-2014 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2013 -
June 30, 2014

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Intergovernmental Agreement between Gila County and Gila County Community
College District for Maintenance of College Facilities

Background Information
On November 15, 2011, Gila County deeded all of its interest in the buildings and real
property upon which Gila County Community College campuses are located to the
College's governing board.  Prior to that action, the County assumed the responsibility
for all maintenance, utilities and communication services at the Gila Pueblo Campus,
Occupational Center and Payson Campus.

The County and College jointly acknowledged that: (1) poor economic conditions had
led to a dramatic decrease in funding to the College and that (2) preservation of the
College’s presence within the County was of vital importance in workforce
development.  The County and the College wanted to avoid cuts in services and
classes by allowing the College to expend its limited resources in furtherance of
educational opportunities, vocational preparation for a changing job market, and
small business development and not on utilities and building maintenance.

On February 7, 2012, the Board of Supervisors approved an Intergovernmental
Agreement (IGA) in the amount of $135,000 for utilities, communication services and
maintenance of the facilities and real property of Gila County Community College for
the period November 16, 2011, through June 30, 2012.

On August 20, 2012, the Board of Supervisors approved an IGA in the amount of
$275,000 for utilities, communication services and maintenance of the facilities and
real property of Gila County Community College for the period of July 1, 2012, to
June 30, 2013.

Evaluation
Economic conditions have not improved significantly since the original



Economic conditions have not improved significantly since the original
understanding.  Because the College and the County have a mutual interest in
economic development, they desire to continue the previous relationship in an IGA in
order for the College to continue to focus on vocational education and retraining of
dislocated workers. 

The College and the County have a long standing partnership which has existed solely
to provide educational and vocational opportunities for Gila County residents of all
ages.  Approval of this IGA will continue that relationship and will allow the College to
focus its efforts on preparing young people for a job market that has changed
markedly as a result of technology and retraining mature workers to reenter that job
market.

The County will provide $250,000 in quarterly payments of $62,500 for utilities,
communication services and maintenance of the facilities and real property of
Gila County Community College.  The College agrees to enhance its vocational training
curriculum to prepare County residents to enter the job market. 

Conclusion
Approval of this IGA will allow the County to continue to partner with Gila County
Community College to promote economic development in Gila County.  The term of
this IGA is from July 1, 2013, to June 30, 2014. 

Recommendation
Staff recommends approval of this IGA between the Gila County Community College
District and Gila County.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental Agreement between
Gila County and the Gila County Community College District to provide $250,000 in
four quarterly payments for utility expenses and repair and maintenance of the
College's facilities and real property at its three Globe and Payson campuses
commencing July 1, 2013, and ending June 30, 2014.  (Don McDaniel)

Attachments
Intergovernmental Agreement-Preservation of Educational Facilities FYE 13-14
Intergovernmental Agreement-Preservation of Educational Facilities FYE 12-13
Legal Explanation























 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-2014     Regular Agenda Item      3. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/03/2013  

Submitted For: Adam
Shepherd,
Sheriff

Submitted By: Dana Sgroi, Contracts Support
Specialist, Finance Department

Department: Sheriff's Office
Fiscal Year: 2013-2014 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

06-12-13 to
09-30-13

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Spillman Technologies, Inc. Server and Software Purchase

Background Information
In 2008, Gila County purchased an IBM 5.2 server for the Sheriff's Office to hold the
Spillman software that the Sheriff's office utilizes. The existing Service Extension
Support Agreement was due to expire in April 2013. Finance staff began the process to
renew the support agreement prior to its expiration. After many emails to IBM
requesting the status of Gila County's renewal request, on June 18, 2013, IBM sent
a "Notice to IBM Customers" stating they had decided to withdraw from maintenance
services and various other services due to changes in technology, production
methods, inventories, etc. This left the Sheriff's Office server without a maintenance
and support agreement.

The Notice was received in the Finance Department on June 27, 2013.  It was then
forwarded by Finance to Gila County's IT Department and the Sheriff's Office. The
Sheriff's Office then solicited quotes from Spillman Technologies for a new server, as
well as a GIS Mapping Module.

On October 5, 1999, the Board of Supervisors approved a Computer Software Support
Agreement with Spillman Technologies, Inc. Per the terms of the agreement, in
addition to covering software support, the agreement also covers purchases. The
agreement renews automatically for successive periods of one year, unless
terminated. Spillman Technologies, Inc. provides comprehensive public safety software
for police departments, sheriff's offices, communications centers, fire departments and
correctional facilities nationwide.

Evaluation
The Sheriff's Office received Quote No. QUO-03151-L6L4H2 on June 12, 2013, from



The Sheriff's Office received Quote No. QUO-03151-L6L4H2 on June 12, 2013, from
Spillman Technologies, Inc. to replace the five-year old IBM 5.2 server that holds the
Spillman software the Sheriff's Office utilizes. Spillman will be installing a new IBM
AIX 8202E4C Rack Mounted Server with 8x300GB 15K RPM SAS SFF Drives,
1.5/30TB LTO-5 Tape Drive and seven tapes, a 32GB Memory, 8 Core 3.0 Ghz Power7
Processor-One Core Activated. This will expand the Sheriff's Office hard drive for data
and future upgrades. As it stands, the Spillman server storage is 70% full. Spillman
will be moving the stored data from the old server to the new server. The maintenance
agreement is for three years and covers 24 hours/7days a week tech service through
IBM. The Sheriff's Office uses Spillman and their techs, due to security that is in place
by the FBI. In order for Spillman techs to enter into the server and assist with any
software movement, they have to be cleared through the Arizona Department of Public
Safety and their guidelines. Spillman techs have been through the security clearance
process. The price of the new server is $48,828.

The Sheriff's Office IT Department foresaw an impending problem, given the age of the
server, and allowed for this in their 2013-2014 budget. The purchase of the new server
has now become a necessity, as the backup system on the existing server failed on
Tuesday, July 23, 2013, and backups have to be performed manually on a daily basis
now, including weekends. The manual backups take 1 1/2 hours to perform, if all
goes well.

Additionally, the Sheriff's Office received Quote No. 2013-AZGILSO to purchase a GIS
Mapping module. There are other types of mapping software available, however, they
are not compatible with the Spillman Technologies interface. The Spillman Mapping
module is compatible with our existing Environmental Systems Research Institute
(ESRI) software, in particular the 911 mapping feature of the software. The quote is for
the purchase and installation of Sentryx Geobase Module, on-site training, and
Spillman Pin Mapping. This will benefit dispatch, deputies locating addresses, Search
and Rescue that will assist in searching for lost and injured. The price of the new
module is $60,665.

The cost of $109,493.00 for both of these items, has been included in the 2013-2014
Sheriff's budget.

Conclusion
The immediate need has arisen to replace the existing five-year old IBM server that
the Sheriff's office runs their Spillman Technologies Inc. programs on. The Spillman
Technologies Inc. program is a complete records management system utilized by the
Sheriff's Department. The software is used to generate and run all police reports and
activities; all Dispatch calls are automatically logged into Spillman; when a deputy
checks in, it is automatically logged into the Spillman software so the Sheriff's Office
knows where the deputy is at all times; the jail uses the software for booking,
releasing and housing inmates; all evidence gets logged into it and all UCR reporting
to the FBI is generated from this system.

Derrick Graff, Sr. Account Manager for CDW-G, which is another Technology



Derrick Graff, Sr. Account Manager for CDW-G, which is another Technology
Solutions company, specializing in designing, implementing and managing
technology, communication and security solutions for all branches of government for
nearly thirty years, was contacted by staff from the County Finance Department, for
CDW-G's perspective on whether it would be advisable to purchase a server from a
different source. It was the opinion of Mr. Graff, that the Spillman Technology is a
bundled solution that is best purchased as a sole source. Mr. Graff states in an email
"Because of the software needs and custom configurations, it is best handled by the
software provider."

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Sheriff's Office to approve the purchase of a new
server from Spillman Technologies, Inc. and to approve the purchase of the GIS
Mapping module from Spillman Technologies, Inc.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve, and authorize the Chairman to sign, the
purchase documents with Spillman Technologies for the purchase and installation of
an IBM rack-mounted server in the amount of $48,828 and a Sentryx Geobase Module
which includes on-site training and Spillman Pin Mapping in the amount of $60,665,
all of which are budgeted items in the FY 2013/2014 Sheriff's Office.   (Lisa Modglin)

Attachments
Spillman Agreement QUO-03151-L6L4H2
Spillman Agreement 2013-AZGILSO
Computer Software Support Agreement 08-27-99
IBM Cancellation of services notice
County Sole Source Information
Spillman Technologies Sole Source Letter Gila County 073113
CDW-G Statement re Spillman as Sole Source
Legal Explanation



















































8/19/13 

 

To: Board of Supervisors: 

 

     The Gila County Sheriff’s Office is looking to bring in Spillman Technologies under a Sole 

Source, non-competitive procurement contract. This agreement will provide a common platform 

for the Sheriff’s Office data, visualization, analysis and management needs.  

Executing this contract in a non-competitive manner rather than going out for bid is necessary 

for the following reasons: 

     Since December 1999, the Gila County Sheriff’s Office has utilized software from Spillman 

Technologies. Spillman has met the County public safety information management needs. The 

Gila County Sheriff’s Office started with six modules from Spillman: Computer-aided Dispatch 

(CAD) HUB, Jail Management, Records Management System (RMS) and Traffic Information. . 

These modules process, store and manage all Sheriff’s Office incident information within Gila 

County. Since the initial implementation, the Spillman system has grown to encompass over 11 

modules including Insight Data Query and evidence management. In 2008 the Server that holds 

the entire Database for the Spillman software was replaced by Spillman Technologies due to an 

equipment failure after 10 years.  

 

     Due to the age of the current server IBM and Spillman Technologies will no longer support 

the hardware and/or manage software upgrades. The server can no longer do automatic tape 

drive backups that failed July 2013. We are currently backing the Spillman data from our server 

to a backup server located at an offsite secure location in Gila County.  Spillman Technologies 

will be building the new IBM server and integrating the latest Spillman software for the Gila 

County Sheriff’s Office.  

 

     The Sheriff’s Office does not recommend conducting an open bid process for the server 

replacement given the efficiencies to be gained by sole source contracting to Spillman 

Technologies. It is important to note that Spillman Technologies provides to their clients a 

discounted pricing level thus inuring that Gila County is getting the best price possible. The 

Sheriff’s Office recommends and requests that Spillman Technologies be used to replace the old 

IBM server and integrate the newest Spillman Software. The Sheriff’s Office would also like to 

recommend the purchase of the Spillman Mapping Module to integrate the ESRI software that 

was co-purchased by other Gila County departments.  

  

     Please consider bringing Spillman Technologies under a Sole Source, non competitive 

procurement contract. 

 

 

Thank you, 

 

 

Lisa Modglin, 

Systems Administrator and Support Tech Senior.  



 

July 31, 2013 

 

 

Lisa Modglin 

Gila County Sheriff’s Department 

1100 South Street 

Globe, AZ  85502 

 

 

Dear Lisa: 

 

Spillman Technologies, Inc. is the developer and proprietary owner of public safety software.  This software is 

licensed exclusively by Spillman Technologies.  Spillman software licenses are not sold through retail outlets, 

brokers, or integrators.  

 

Spillman Technologies is the sole-source provider for all requested Spillman products and services. Specifically, 

the requested software is developed by the Spillman product development division located in Salt Lake City, 

Utah, and all training for Spillman software is provided by the Spillman customer education department. The 

installation and implementation of our software products are provided only by the Spillman installation 

department and the account management department. Maintenance and support for the Spillman software is 

provided by the Spillman technical support department, also located at Spillman headquarters in Salt Lake City, 

Utah.  

 

Please call me if I can be of further assistance.  My contact information is bduncan@spillman.com, 205-394-2085 

 

 

Sincerely, 

Billy Duncan 

Senior Account Sales Representative 
 

 

mailto:bduncan@spillman.com








 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   

ARF-2063     Regular Agenda Item      3. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/03/2013  

Submitted For: Linda O'Dell, School
Superintendent

Submitted By: Victoria Sanchez, Executive Assistant,
School Superintendent's Office

Department: School Superintendent's Office
Fiscal Year: 2013 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

7/01/2012-06/30/2013 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of Final Distribution of Gila County's Secure Rural Schools and Communities Funds
for FY2013

Background Information
The Secure Rural Schools and Communities Self Determination (SRSC) Act of 2000, as
re-authorized for four years in 2008 (PL-110-343) was extended for an additional year, to
include federal FY2012 funding. The SRSC Act provides assistance to rural counties negatively
affected by unrealized revenues from publicly held lands. Funds generated by Title I of the
SRSC Act have been used for schools and roads - to create employment opportunities, to
maintain current infrastructure and to improve the health of watersheds and ecosystems.
Continued funding beyond this allocation is dependent on action by the U.S. Congress.
Twenty percent of Gila County's Title I allocation goes to a regional Resource Advisory
Committee for distribution; the remaining 80% of the funding is allocated to the Board of
Supervisors for distribution and use by Roads and School Districts. The Gila County share of
federal FY2012 SRSC Act funding for Roads and Schools in the amount of $1,499,027 was
received by the Gila County Treasurer's office on January 25, 2013. On April 16, 2013 the Gila
County Board of Supervisors approved the recommendation to distribute 90% of the SRSC
funds to Roads and School Districts and retain 10% of the funds on deposit with the Gila
County Treasurer against the possibility that Gila County would be required to reimburse
some portion of the funding to the U.S. Forest Service. At this time, we are requesting that the
Board of Supervisors release the remaining 10% of Gila County's federal FY2012 SRSC funds
of $149,903, as follows:  $144,903 to School Districts and $5,000 for Roads.

Evaluation
In each of the past three years (2010-2011-2012), the Board of Supervisors has authorized the



In each of the past three years (2010-2011-2012), the Board of Supervisors has authorized the
distribution of Title I SRSC Act funds for Gila County Roads and Schools as follows, upon
recommendation of the Gila County Superintendent of Schools and County Management:
$50,000 to Roads and the remainder to School Districts by a formula that provides a base
amount for all districts and additional amounts based on forest acreage and student
enrollment of each district. Federal FY2012 SRSC Act funds were received by the Gila County
Treasurer's Office in late January, 2013. In preparation for making a recommendation to the
Board of Supervisors regarding distribution of funds in 2013, the County School
Superintendent discussed this item with County Management. School Districts were advised
that the County School Superintendent was recommending the use of the same distribution
formula agreed to and used for the past three years. The proposed distribution schedule was
provided to School Districts, who agreed with the recommendation.  Initial distribution of Gila
County SRSC funds was delayed pending consideration of how to address the possibility that
some portion of the funding might need to be reimbursed to the U.S. Forest Service due to
federal FY2013 mandatory spending cuts. On April 16, 2013, the Gila County Board of
Supervisors approved the recommendation to distribute 90% of the SRSC funds to Roads and
School Districts and retain 10% of the funds on deposit with the Gila County Treasurer.  At
this time, the issue of returning SRSC funds has been resolved; there will not be a
reimbursement issued to the U.S. Forest Service. The County School Superintendent and
County Management recommend a final distribution of FY2012 SRSC funds in the amount of
$149,903 to be allocated for use by School Districts and Roads.

Conclusion
Gila County School Districts, County Management and the County School Superintendent are
in agreement in the proposed recommendation to the Gila County Board of Supervisors for the
final distribution of $149,903 in funds received for this fiscal year as part of the Secure Rural
Schools and Community Self Determination Act of 2008 (P.L. 110-343), namely $144,903 to
School Districts and $5,000 for Roads.

Recommendation
The County School Superintendent and County Management recommend that the Board of
Supervisors authorize the final distribution of $149,903 in funds received for the 2012-2013
school year as part of the Secure Rural Schools and Communities Self Determination Act of
2008 (P.L. 110-343), namely $144,903 to School Districts and $5,000 for Roads.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the final distribution of $149,903 of Gila County's
Secure Rural Schools and Communities Funds (SRSC - 'Forest Fees') for FY2012-2013,
namely $144,903 to Gila County School Districts, and $5,000 for Roads.   (Linda O'Dell)

Attachments
Forest Fees Distribution FY2012-2013



GILA COUNTY Forest Fees Distribution FY13 

DISTRICT 
 
 

ACREAGE 
 
 

ADM* 
 
 

ADM  
 
 

BASE 
 
 

FOREST 
 
 

ADM % 
 
 

FY13 
ORIGINAL 
PROPOSAL 

 

FY13 REVISED 
Distribution #1 
(Approved April 

16, 2013) 

FY13 Proposed 
Distribution #2 
(August 2013) 

 

  % Students  % 11.00% 28.47% 60.53% 100% (90% of  Total)+ (10% of  Total) 

        April 16, 2013  
Gila Regional 5.0% 108 1.6% $17,710  $19,645 $13,843 $51,198 $46,078 $5,120 
Globe 8.0% 1,500 21.9% $17,710  $31,431 $192,261 $241,403 $217,263 $24,140 
Hayden-Winkelman 0.0% 307 4.5% $17,710  $0 $39,349 $57,060 $51,354 $5,706 
Miami 12.0% 1,126 16.5% $17,710  $47,147 $144,324 $209,182 $188,264 $20,918 
Payson 19.0% 2,221 32.5% $17,710  $74,650 $284,675 $377,035 $339,331 $37,703 
Pine-Strawberry 10.0% 165 2.4% $17,710  $39,289 $21,149 $78,148 $70,334 $7,815 
San Carlos 9.0% 1,270 18.6% $17,710  $35,360 $162,781 $215,852 $194,267 $21,585 
Tonto Basin 12.0% 89 1.3% $17,710  $47,147 $11,408 $76,265 $68,639 $7,627 
Young 30.0% 57 0.8% $17,710  $117,868 $7,306 $142,884 $128,596 $14,288 

TOTAL 105.0% 6,843 100%  $159,393  $412,538 $877,096 $1,449,027 $1,304,124 $144,903 
*SAIS ADMS46-Report FY2012 

   
+Subsequent distribution will be recommended to the BOS pending determination of 
funds that must be returned to the U.S. Forest Service due to Federal FY2013 
sequestration.     

  
    

TOTAL FY2012-13 GILA ALLOCATION FOR ROADS & SCHOOLS $1,499,027     
      

INITIAL PROPOSED DISTRIBUTION (100% of funds on deposit) 
  Schools (96.66% of total for Schools/Roads) 

 
$1,449,027 

    Roads (3.34% of total for Schools/Roads) 
 

$50,000  
    Total for Schools/Roads (80% of Total County Allocation) $1,499,027 
    

          REVISED DISTRIBUTION #1 (90% of funds on deposit) (Approved April 16, 2013) PROPOSED DISTRIBUTION #2 (10% of funds on deposit) 

Schools  $1,304,124 Schools $144,903 
Roads  $45,000  Roads $5,000 
Total for Schools/Roads  $1,349,124 Total for Schools/Roads $149,903 

  TOTAL FY2012-13 GILA ALLOCATION $1,499,027 
Prepared by L. O’Dell_August 19, 2013 



   

ARF-2015     Regular Agenda Item      3. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/03/2013  

Submitted For: Jeffrey
Hessenius,
Finance
Director

Submitted By:
Dana Sgroi, Contracts Support
Specialist, Finance Department

Department: Finance Department
Fiscal Year: 2013-2014 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

08-01-13
through
10-31-13

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Empire CAT-Replace Compactor Wheel Tips on Caterpillar 816F Compactor at
Buckhead Mesa Landfill in Payson, AZ.

Background Information
In May 2000, Gila County purchased an 816F Caterpillar compactor from Empire CAT
for a purchase price of $267,380.00. The compactor has been in service at the
Buckhead Mesa Landfill, near Payson, Arizona, since it was purchased.

Evaluation
The wheel tips on the 816F compactor need to be replaced. Gila County is a member
of the National IPA, a cooperative purchasing group. As a member of the National IPA,
Gila County can benefit through an existing contract that Caterpillar has between the
City of Tucson and the National IPA, to replace the wheel tips on the compactor.
County staff received a quote from Empire CAT dated June 10, 2013, to replace the
wheel tips. The amount of the June 10, 2013, quote was $30,961.30 for parts, and an
additional $9,902.80 for labor, lodging and travel, for a total amount of $40,864.10.
The quote was for wheel tips manufactured by Caron Compactor Company.
 
On July 31, 2013, County staff requested a second quote from Empire CAT utilizing
the City of Tucson/National IPA pricing. The wheel tips quoted through the City of
Tucson/National IPA pricing are an Empire Caterpillar brand. By utilizing the City of
Tucson/National IPA contract, and the Empire CAT brand, the quote was revised to
$19,630.50, resulting in a significant cost savings of $21,233.60 or 52%.

The replacement quote comes with a four-year warranty, which is identical to the
warranty provided by Caron Compactor Company, however, Recycling and Landfill
Management feels the County will get five years use out of the new wheel tips.

Conclusion



Due to procurement policies, all proposed contractual agreements with an aggregate
amount valued over $50,000 within a one-year period must have Board of Supervisors'
approval. The amount of money the County has spent with Empire CAT from January
1, 2013, to now exceeds the $50,000 aggregate amount; therefore, this expenditure is
being brought before the Board of Supervisors for approval.

Recommendation
Recycling and Landfill Management recommends that the Board approve the
expenditure of replacing the wheel tips on the Caterpillar 816F compactor, which is
located at the Buckhead Mesa Landfill through the City of Tucson/NIPA cooperative
agreement with Empire CAT, thereby saving the County $21,233.60.

Suggested Motion
Information/Action/Discussion to approve an expenditure with Empire CAT in the
amount of $19,630.50 to replace the wheel tips on the 816F compactor in service at
the Buckhead Mesa Landfill. (Sharon Winters)

Attachments
Empire Quote to replace compactor pads 06-10-13
Empire Quote to replace compactor pads-REVISED 07-31-13
City of Tucson Request for Proposal
City of Tucson Contract with Caterpillar
City of Tucson Contract Amendment No. 1
City of Tucson Contract Amendment No. 2
City of Tucson Contract Amendment No. 3
City of Tucson Contract Amendment No. 4
City of Tucson Contract Amendment No. 5
Legal Explanation









00 TRAVEL TO/FROM JOB SITE

LOCATION:
BUCK HEAD LAND FILL

BOOM TRUCK TRAVEL IS COVERED BY PROGRAM.

TOTAL PARTS 0.00

TOTAL LABOR 1356.00

LESS 50 % LABOR -678.00

TOTAL MISC 36.00

SEGMENT 00 TOTAL 714.00

40 REMOVE & INSTALL COMPACTOR WHEEL

ALL FOUR WHEELS.

TOTAL PARTS 0.00

TOTAL LABOR 2398.40

TOTAL MISC 0.00

SEGMENT 40 TOTAL 2398.40

41 REMOVE & INSTALL COMPACTOR WHEEL TIP

25% OFF TIP PROGRAM - 4 WHEELS FOR THE PRICE OF
3! ON PARTS.

NEW TIP WILL COME WITH 4YR 10,000 HR WARRANTY

TOTAL PARTS 12072.00

LESS 25 % PARTS -3018.00

TOTAL LABOR 6195.00

TOTAL MISC 500.00

SEGMENT 41 TOTAL 15749.00

EXPIRATION DATE 08/30/2013

ESTIMATE NUMBER 11049

CLIENT ORDER

CLIENT NUMBER 0054054

DATE

AGMT/PSO/WO #

07/31/2013

GILA COUNTY PAYSON MAINT
PAYSON PARTS/SVC ONLY 5320 EAST HWY 260
STAR VALLEY AZ 85541

SOLD TO

GILA CTY HWY DEPT
5322 E. HWY 260
PAYSON, AZ. 85541

SHIP TO

CATERPILLAR 816F

METER READING

11438

ID NUMBER

P008544

EQUIP #

H-3

ITEM DESCRIPTIONQUANTITY

MAKE MODEL

Page 1 of 2

SERIAL #

05FN00447



TOTAL ESTIMATE 19,630.50

EXPIRATION DATE 08/30/2013

CONDITIONS:
CLIENT ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THIS QUOTATION IS NOT AN OFFER AND IS MERELY A QUOTATION OF PRICE SUBJECT TO PRICE CHANGES AND AVAILABILITY OF GOODS. A "FIRM
QUOTATION" MAY BE GIVEN TO CLIENT UPON REQUEST AND IN SUCH A CASE IS IRREVOCABLE FOR A PERIOD OF THIRTY (30) DAYS, AFTER WHICH TIME THE QUOTATION IS SUBJECT
TO PRICE CHANGES AND AVAILABILITY OF GOODS. EMPIRE OFFERS TO DISASSEMBLE AND INSPECT CLIENT'S EQUIPMENT FOR THE PURPOSE OF GIVING A QUOTATION ON
PARTS AND/OR SERVICE NECESSARY TO THE REPAIR OF THE EQUIPMENT FOR THE PRICE LISTED HEREIN.  (REASSEMBLY COSTS WILL BE SEPARATELY NEGOTIATED).  CLIENT IS
DEEMED TO HAVE ACCEPTED THIS OFFER BY DELIVERING HIS EQUIPMENT TO EMPIRE'S PREMISES FOR THE ABOVE-DESCRIBED PURPOSES.  ACCEPTANCE REQUIRES PAYMENT OF
THE DISASSEMBLY AND INSPECTION CHARGE WITHIN THIRTY (30) DAYS OF BILLING.  THIS QUOTATION INCLUDES REBUILDING LABOR AND PARTS AS JUDGED BY US TO BE
REQUIRED FOR SATISFACTORY PERFORMANCE.  BECAUSE IT IS IMPOSSIBLE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF WEAR ON INTERNAL COMPONENTS, ADDITIONAL LABOR AND PARTS
MAY BE REQUIRED.  IF ADDITIONAL CHARGES ARE ESTIMATED TO EXCEED THIS AMOUNT, CLIENT WILL BE NOTIFIED.

ENVIRON. FEE 0.00

STATE/COUNTY TAX 601.90

CITY/OTHER TAX 167.20

EXPIRATION DATE 08/30/2013

ESTIMATE NUMBER 11049

CLIENT ORDER

CLIENT NUMBER 0054054

DATE

AGMT/PSO/WO #

07/31/2013

CATERPILLAR 816F

METER READING

11438

ID NUMBER

P008544

EQUIP #

H-3

ITEM DESCRIPTIONQUANTITY

MAKE MODEL

Page 2 of 2

SERIAL #

05FN00447



 

 

CITY OF TUCSON 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

 
 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NUMBER: 120377 

 PROPOSAL DUE DATE: NOVEMBER 14, 2011, AT 4:00 P.M. LOCAL AZ TIME 

 PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL LOCATION: DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT 

  255 W. ALAMEDA, 6
TH

 FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ 85701 

   

 MATERIAL OR SERVICE: HEAVY EQUIPMENT, PARTS, ACCESSORIES,  

  SUPPLIES AND RELATED SERVICES 

 

PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE DATE: OCTOBER 27, 2011 

 TIME: 9:00 A.M. LOCAL AZ TIME 

 LOCATION: CITY HALL, FINANCE CONFERENCE ROOM 

             255 W. ALAMEDA, 5
TH

 FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ   

 

CONFERENCE CALL NUMBER:  1-888-394-8197; PASSCODE:  640963 

 

 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS, C.P.M., CPPB 

 TELEPHONE NUMBER: (520) 837-4140 

  Victoria.Cortinas@tucsonaz.gov 

 
Interested offerors may obtain a copy of this complete solicitation by calling (520) 791-4217. A copy of this 
solicitation and possible future amendments may also be obtained from our Internet site at: 
http://www.tucsonprocurement.com/ by selecting the Bid Opportunities link and the associated solicitation 
number.  

 
Competitive sealed proposals for the specified material or service shall be received by the Department of 
Procurement, 255 W. Alameda, 6th Floor, Tucson, Arizona 85701, until the date and time cited.  
 
Proposals must be in the actual possession of the Department of Procurement at the location indicated, on or 
prior to the exact date and time indicated above. Late proposals shall not be considered. The prevailing clock 
shall be the City Department of Procurement clock. 
 
Proposals must be submitted in a sealed envelope. The Request for Proposal number and the offeror's name 

and address should be clearly indicated on the outside of the envelope. All proposals must be completed in ink 
or typewritten. Questions must be addressed to the Contract Officer listed above. 
 

****NOTICE**** 
 

Effective July 1, 2009, the City will no longer mail Notices of available solicitations via the U.S. Postal Service.  
Email notifications will be provided to those vendors that have updated their vendor record and selected email 
as their preferred delivery method.  For information on how to update your vendor record, please visit 
www.tucsonprocurement.com, click on What's New? and read the section titled "Notice of Solicitations."  You 
may also call (520) 791-4217 if you have questions.   
 
VC/sd 

 
PUBLISH DATE: October 12, 2011 

http://www.tucsonprocurement.com/


CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 2 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 

 

 

INTRODUCTION/ BACKGROUND 
 

The City of Tucson (herein referred to as the City) is requesting proposals from qualified and experienced 

firms to provide HEAVY EQUIPMENT, PARTS, ACCESSORIES, SUPPLIES AND RELATED SERVICES. The 
City requires a contractor who provides a diverse and extensive supply of equipment for purchase and/or 
rental to various locations in the Tucson metropolitan area.  
 
Heavy equipment will include, but not be limited to the following equipment categories:  Landfill, Construction, 
and Material Handling.  The City has approximately 150 pieces of heavy equipment that falls under the heavy 
equipment category.   
 
Requirements and qualifications are defined in detail in the Scope of Services Section of this Request for 
Proposal (RFP).  The City seeks a firm(s) that can supply the specified services, supplies, parts, equipment 
and materials.      
 

NATIONAL CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS 
 

The City, as the Principal Procurement Agency, as defined in Attachment A, has partnered with the National 
Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance Company (“National IPA”) to make the resultant contract (“Master 
Agreement”) from this solicitation available to other public agencies nationally, including state and local 
governmental entities, public and private primary, secondary and higher education entities, non-profit entities, 
and agencies for the public benefit (“Public Agencies”), through National IPA’s cooperative purchasing 
program. The City is acting as the contracting agency for any other Public Agency that elects to utilize the 
resulting Master Agreement.  Use of the Master Agreement by any Public Agency is preceded by their 
registration with National IPA as a Participating Public Agency in National IPA’s cooperative purchasing 
program.  Attachment A contains additional information on National IPA and the cooperative purchasing 
agreement. 
  
With corporate, pricing and sales commitments from the Supplier, National IPA provides marketing and 
administrative support for the Supplier that directly promotes the Supplier’s products and services to 
Participating Public Agencies though multiple channels, each designed to promote specific products and 
services to Public Agencies on a national basis.  Public Agencies benefit from pricing based on aggregate 
spend and the convenience of a contract that has already been advertised and competed.  The Supplier 
benefits from a contract that allows Participating Public Agencies to directly purchase goods and services 
without the Supplier’s need to respond to additional competitive solicitations. As such, the Supplier must be 
able to accommodate a nationwide demand for services and to fulfill obligations as a nationwide Supplier and 
respond to the National IPA documents (Attachment A).  The City reserves the right to deem submissions that 
do not include a response to the National IPA documents as non-responsive. 
 
The City anticipates spending approximately $15 million over the full potential Master Agreement term for 
heavy equipment.  For this fiscal year, the City anticipates purchasing an excavator and a water wagon.  While 
no minimum volume is guaranteed to the Supplier, the estimated annual volume of heavy equipment 
purchased under the Master Agreement through National IPA is approximately $100,000,000.  This projection 
is based on the current annual volumes among the City, other Participating Public Agencies that are 
anticipated to utilize the resulting Master Agreement to be made available to them through National IPA, and 
volume growth into other Public Agencies through a coordinated marketing approach between the Supplier 
and National IPA. 

 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 3 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 

 

 

TENTATIVE SCHEDULE OF EVENTS 
 
To the extent achievable, the following schedule shall govern the review, evaluation and award of the contract.  
The dates are estimates only and the City reserves the right to modify the dates below as necessary. 
 

Activity Estimated Finish Date of Activity 

RFP Published October 12, 2011 

Pre-proposal conference October 27, 2011 

Proposal due date  November 14, 2011 

Review of Proposals by Evaluation Committee and 
Reference Checks 

November 15, 2011 – January 18, 2012 

Vendor Interview / Demonstration  December 7-9, 2011 

Evaluation Committee’s recommendation January 4, 2012 

Final negotiation completed January 4-10, 2012 

Contract award & issuance of purchase order January 15, 2012 

 

 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

A. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

 
1.  QUALIFIED FIRMS:  Offerors should meet the minimum qualifications: 
 
   a. Have a strong national presence in the heavy equipment industry. 
   b. Have a distribution model capable of delivering heavy equipment nationwide. 
   c. Have a demonstrated sales presence. 

d. Be able to meet the minimum requirements of the cooperative purchasing program 
detailed herein. 

e. Be able to provide the full range of products, equipment, parts, materials and services to 
meet the demands of the City and all agencies that opt to participate in the cooperative 
purchasing program with the City. 

 

2. PRODUCTION REPORTS:  The Contractor or associated dealer must have the ability to furnish the 
agency ordering equipment and National IPA MONTHLY progress reports confirming status of delivery 
dates as agreed upon.  These reports shall consist of, but not limited to the following: 

a. Copy of Contractor’s order to the factory. 
b. Copy of factory acknowledgment of order indicating scheduled date of production and shipment 

from factory. 
c. Factory generated computer status reports. 
d. Notification to the City of any changes in production or shipping dates. 
e. Any special information the Contractor shall have that would affect the timely delivery of the 

vehicles ordered in accordance with original delivery date promise. 
 
In lieu of written reports submitted to Fleet Services, the Contractor may provide access to an Internet 
based on-line order tracking system.  Any on-line system provided must provide the information 
required above.  The Contractor must provide all access codes necessary to view this information. 

 

3. DELIVERY and DELIVERY DOCUMENTATION:  The following documents are due upon delivery of 
the completed vehicles to the City: 

a. Invoice 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 4 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 

 

b. Warranty document 
c. Level 1 Inspection 
d. Required manuals 

 
 Upon contract award, the Contractor will be required to supply a delivery ticket specifying the purchase 

order number of each vehicle.   
 
 Delivery to the City of Tucson:  All deliveries shall be made Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 

3:00 p.m.  The Contractor shall be required to give the Operations/Fleet Services Department a 
minimum of 24-hour notification prior to delivery with the anticipated time of delivery and quantity of 
units to be delivered. 

 

4. VEHICLE INSPECTION:  The purchasing agency will assist the Contractor or the authorized dealer in 
arranging for inspection of each piece of equipment purchased.  Each vehicle delivered shall be 
subject to a complete inspection by the purchasing agency’s staff prior to acceptance.  Inspection 
criteria shall include, but not be limited to, conformity to the specifications, mechanical integrity, quality, 
workmanship and materials.  If delivered equipment is returned to the Contractor prior to acceptance 
for any reason, all corrections shall be made without any inconvenience to the City. 

 

5. TRAINING:  The Contractor shall provide, at no additional cost, training for each basic unit of 
equipment purchased.  This training shall be adequate to the needs of the typical equipment operator 
and service technician in order to assure proper operation, utilization and maintenance of the 
equipment supplied.  Any manuals necessary to perform the required training shall be furnished by the 
Contractor.  The trainer shall be factory-trained and thoroughly knowledgeable in equipment operator 
and service technician functions.  Training shall be presented in a quality suitable for videotaping.  The 
City reserves the right to videotape part or all of the training provided at no additional cost to the 
agency. 

 

6. REPAIRS:  The Contractor will be responsible for transport of vehicles to and from his place of 
business for repairs, at not additional cost to the City, until such time as the City of Tucson places the 
vehicle in service.  Transport of the vehicle will not be delayed more that one working day from date of 
notification. 

 

7. WARRANTIES:  Offeror shall warrant that all equipment and parts furnished in their offer are newly 
manufactured and free from defects in material and workmanship from the date the City places the 
equipment into service.  Warranty shall also guarantee accepted trade standards of quality, fitness for 
the intended uses, and conformance to promises or specified specifications. No other express or 
implied warranty shall eliminate the vendor’s liability as stated herein. 

 

8. VENDOR SERVICE AND MAINTENANCE:  Contractor will provide and maintain a factory authorized 
parts and service facility within a reasonable distance to the purchasing location. 

 
 For the City, the parts and service facility must be within 125 mile radius of the City of Tucson Price 

Service Center (4004 S. Park Avenue, 85714).  If warranty service is not provided within the Tucson 
metro area, the Contractor shall be responsible for all costs, including fuel and labor, of transporting 
vehicle (s) between the City’s Price Service Center and the Contractor’s service center. The method of 
transportation must be mutually agreed to by the Contractor and the City prior to transport.   

 
For service calls, the City expects the Contractor to provide a response within 60 minutes. 

 

9. VEHICLE RECALL NOTICES:  In the event of any recall notice, technical service bulletin, or other 
important notification affecting a vehicle purchased from this contract, a notice shall be sent to the 
purchasing agency’s representative.  For the City of Tucson, all notices shall be sent to General 
Services, Fleet Services Division, 4004 S. Park Avenue, Building 1, Tucson, AZ 85714.   



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 5 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 

 

 

 

B. EQUIPMENT AND PRODUCT REQUIREMENTS:   
 

1.  EQUIPMENT: A complete and comprehensive line of Heavy Equipment to support various needs of 
agencies is requested. The categories include, but are not limited to the following.  
 

Landfill Equipment: 
Landfill Dozers 
Landfill Compactors 
Landfill Scraper 

 

Material Handling 
Fork Lift 
Crane / Wheeled 
Crane / Track 

 
 

Construction Equipment 
Air Compressor 
Articulated Dump Truck 
Asphalt Cold Planer 
Asphalt Rotary Mixer 
Bucket Truck 
Cement Mixer 
Chip Spreader 
Crack Sealer 

Dozers / Tracked 
Dozers / Wheeled 
Dump Trucks 
Excavators / Tracked 
Excavators / Wheeled 
Ice Resurfacer 
Loaders / Backhoe / Wheeled 
Loaders / Tracked 
Loaders / Wheeled  
Motor Graders 
Patcher Truck 

Paver / Tracked 
Paver / Wheeled  
Rollers / Drum / Vibrate 
Rollers / wheeled / Pneumatic 
Rollers / Drum / Wheeled 
Scrapers  
Skid Steer Loaders 
Soil Compactors 
Sweeper / Scrubber 
Sweeper / Street 
Sweeper / walkway 
Trailer / Tilt 
Trailer / Flatbed 
Trailer / Drop Neck 
Trailer / Utility  
Trencher 
Water Truck 
Water Wagon 

 

2.  CURRENT EQUIPMENT AND PRODUCTS: All equipment and products being offered in response to 
this solicitation shall be in current and ongoing production; shall be formally announced for general 
marketing purposes; shall be a model or type currently functioning in a user (paying customer) 
environment and capable of meeting or exceeding all specifications and requirements set forth in this 
solicitation. 

 

3.  PRICING:  Offerors shall provide a verifiable price index, to include but not limited to a discount from a 
verifiable price index, a reduced net pricing schedule, a hybrid or other supplier specific pricing model.  
The pricing model shall remain firm and will include all charges that may be incurred in fulfilling 
requirement(s) for the twelve-month period following contract award.  Where applicable, pricing shall 
be determined by applying Offerors discounts to the prices listed on their manufacturer’s price lists, 
retail price sheets, catalogs or by utilizing the reduced net pricing schedule.    



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 6 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 

 

 

C. SERVICE REQUIREMENTS 

  
1. SERVICES: The City is interested in inclusion of value-add services. These services may be 

provided by the authorized manufacturer or dealer and sample categories include, but are not 
limited to: 

 

a. Repair Services:  The ability to provide repair services through authorized 
manufacturer’s facilities or dealers.  Repairs services may include, but not limited to, 
hourly rate for repairs in shop, hourly rate for repairs in field, weld repairs, machining 
work, etc. 

 

b. Maintenance Services:  The ability to provide various maintenance services and 
options through authorized manufacturer’s facilities or dealers.  Maintenance services 
may include scheduled services based upon the manufactures recommended 
guidelines, to include but not limited to, daily scheduled services, daily fuel dispensing, 
major/ minor machine cleaning, etc. 

 
 For landfill equipment, if the City has purchased the maintenance services from the 

manufacturer’s dealer, the City requires a loaner or rental equipment, at no additional 
cost, if the machine is down for more than 24 hours. 

 

c. Warranties: The ability to provide a full range of extended warranties. 
 

d. Financing Options:  The ability to provide financing options. 
 

e. Trade-In or Buyback Options: The ability to trade-in used equipment or obtain a 
guaranteed buy back price at the time of purchase. 

 

f. Rental: The ability to rent heavy equipment through the manufacturer or dealer. 

 

g. Small Business Program: The ability to incorporate small business enterprises into 
your distribution, sales and product offerings.  

 

h. Green/Sustainability Program:  
1. Policies: Efforts and policies pertaining to green and sustainability.  
2. Products: Impact on product offerings.    
3. Distribution: Impact in distribution. 
4. Certifications: The industry recognized certifications and standards obtained.  

 

i. Training & Education: The ability to provide on-site and/or online training and 
educational programs/seminars. 

 

j. Customer Support Services: The policies on replacements, returns, restocking 
charges, after hours service, after sales support, out of stock, order tracing, technical 
feedback, quality assurance for orders and drop shipments.   

 

k. Other Services/Options: Other value-add services not included in above categories. 

 
 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 7 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 

 

INSTRUCTIONS TO OFFERORS 
 

1. DEFINITION OF KEY WORDS USED IN THE SOLICITATION: 
 For purposes of this solicitation and subsequent contract, the following definitions shall apply: 

 City: The City of Tucson, Arizona  

 Contract: The legal agreement executed between the City and the Contractor/Consultant. The Contract shall include this 
RFP document incorporated herein by reference, all terms, conditions, specifications, scope of work, Amendments, the 
Contractor’s offer and negotiated items as accepted by the City. 

 Contractor/Consultant: The individual, partnership, or corporation who, as a result of the competitive solicitation process, 
is awarded a contract by the City. 

 Contract Representative: The City employee or employees who have specifically been designated to act as a contact 
person or persons to the Contractor, and is responsible for monitoring and overseeing the Contractor's performance under 
this Contract. 

 Director of Procurement: The contracting authority for the City, authorized to sign contracts and amendments thereto on 
behalf of the City. 

 May: Indicates something that is not mandatory but permissible. 

 Offeror: The individual, partnership, or corporation who submits a proposal in response to a solicitation. 

 Shall, Will, Must: Indicates a mandatory requirement. Failure to meet these mandatory requirements, if they constitute a 
substantive requirement, may, at the City’s sole discretion, result in the rejection of a proposal as non-responsive. 

 Should: Indicates something that is recommended but not mandatory. If the Offeror fails to provide recommended 
information, the City may, at its sole option, ask the Offeror to provide the information or evaluate the proposal without the 
information. 

  

2. PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE: If scheduled, the date and time of a Pre-Proposal conference is indicated on the cover 
page of this document. Attendance at this conference is not mandatory. Written minutes and/or notes will not be available, 
therefore attendance is encouraged. If an Offeror is unable to attend the Pre-Proposal Conference questions may be 
submitted in writing. Offerors are encouraged to submit written questions, via electronic mail or facsimile, at least five days 
prior to the Request for Proposal due date to the Contract Officer listed above. The purpose of this conference will be to 
clarify the contents of this Request for Proposal in order to prevent any misunderstanding of the City's position. Any doubt 
as to the requirements of this Request for Proposal or any apparent omission or discrepancy should be presented to the 
City at this conference. The City will then determine the appropriate action necessary, if any, and may issue a written 
amendment to the Request for Proposal. Oral statements or instructions will not constitute an amendment to this Request 
for Proposal. 

 

3. INQUIRIES: Any question related to the Request for Proposal shall be directed to the Contract Officer whose name appears 
above. An offeror shall not contact or ask questions of the department for whom the requirement is being procured. The 
Contract Officer may require any and all questions be submitted in writing. Offerors are encouraged to submit written 
questions via electronic mail or facsimile, at least five days prior to the proposal due date. Any correspondence related to a 
solicitation should refer to the appropriate Request for Proposal number, page and paragraph number. An envelope 
containing questions should be identified as such, otherwise it may not be opened until after the official proposal due date 
and time. Oral interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. Only questions answered by a formal written 
amendment to the Request for Proposal will be binding. 

 

4. AMENDMENT OF REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL: The Offeror shall acknowledge receipt of a Request for Proposal 
Amendment by signing and returning the document by the specified due date and time. 

 

5. FAMILIARIZATION OF SCOPE OF WORK: Before submitting a proposal, each offeror shall familiarize itself with the Scope 
of Work, laws, regulations and other factors affecting contract performance. The Offeror shall be responsible for fully 
understanding the requirements of the subsequent Contract and otherwise satisfy itself as to the expense and difficulties 
accompanying the fulfillment of contract requirements. The submission of a proposal will constitute a representation of 
compliance by the Offeror. There will be no subsequent financial adjustment, other than that provided by the subsequent 
Contract, for lack of such familiarization. 

 

6.  PREPARATION OF PROPOSAL:  
A. All proposals shall be on the forms provided in this Request for Proposal package. It is permissible to copy these forms 

as required. Facsimiles or electronic mail proposals shall not be considered. 
B. At a minimum, your proposal should include the signed Offer and Acceptance form, signed copies of any solicitation 

amendments, completed Price Page and your response to all evaluation criteria. 
C. The Offer and Acceptance page shall be signed by a person authorized to submit an offer. An authorized signature on 

the Offer and Acceptance page, Proposal Amendment(s), or cover letter accompanying the proposal documents shall 
constitute an irrevocable offer to sell the good and/or service specified herein. Offeror shall submit any additional 
requested documentation, signifying intent to be bound by the terms of the agreement. 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 8 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 

 
D. The authorized person signing the proposal shall initial erasure, interlineations or other modifications on the proposal. 

 E. In case of error in the extension of prices in the proposal, unit price shall govern when applicable. 
 F. Periods of time, stated as a number of days, shall be in calendar days. 
 G. It is the responsibility of all offerors to examine the entire Request for Proposal package and seek clarification of any 

requirement that may not be clear and to check all responses for accuracy before submitting a proposal. Negligence in 
preparing a proposal confers no right of withdrawal after due date and time. 

H. The City shall not reimburse the cost of developing, presenting, submitting or providing any response to this solicitation. 
I. Offeror must list any subcontractors to be utilized in the performance of the services specified herein. For each 

subcontractor, details on respective qualifications must be included. 

 

7. PAYMENT DISCOUNTS: Payment discount periods shall be computed from the date of receipt of the material/service or 
correct invoice, whichever is later, to the date City’s payment warrant is mailed.  Unless freight and other charges are 
itemized, any discount provided shall be taken on full amount of invoice. Payment discounts of twenty-one calendar days or 
more shall be deducted from the proposed price in determining the price points.  However, the City shall be entitled to take 
advantage of any payment discount offered by a vendor provided payment is made within the discount period.  

 

8. TAXES: The City of Tucson is exempt from federal excise tax, including the federal transportation tax. 

 

9. PROPOSAL/SUBMITTAL FORMAT: An original and 6 copies (7 total) of each proposal should be submitted on the 
forms and in the format specified in the RFP. Offerors shall also submit 3 electronic copies of the complete proposal 
response on cd, jump drive or zip disc in MS Office97 or .pdf format. Any confidential information shall be submitted in a 
separate file on the cd, jump drive or zip disc. The original copy of the proposal should be clearly labeled "Original" and shall 

be single-sided, three hole punched and in a binder. The material should be in sequence and related to the RFP. The 

sections of the submittal should be tabbed, clearly identifiable and should include a minimum of the following 

sections: the completed Offer and Acceptance Form, all signed Amendments, a copy of this RFP document and the 

Offeror’s response to the Evaluation Criteria including the completed Price Page. Failure to include the requested 
information may have a negative impact on the evaluation of the offeror's proposal.  

 

10. EXCEPTIONS TO CONTRACT PROVISIONS: A response to any Request for Proposal is an offer to contract with the City 
based upon the contract provisions contained in the City’s Request for Proposal, including but not limited to, the 
specifications, scope of work and any terms and conditions. Offerors who wish to propose modifications to the contract 
provisions must clearly identify the proposed deviations and any proposed substitute language. The provisions of the 
Request for Proposal cannot be modified without the express written approval of the Director or his designee. If a proposal 
or offer is returned with modifications to the contract provisions that are not expressly approved in writing by the Director or 
his designee, the contract provisions contained in the City’s Request for Proposal shall prevail. 

 

11. PUBLIC RECORD: All proposals submitted in response to this Request for Proposal shall become the property of the City 
and shall become a matter of public record available for review subsequent to the award notification. 

 

12. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION: The City of Tucson is obligated to abide by all public information laws. If an Offeror 
believes that any portion of a proposal, offer, specification, protest or correspondence contains information that should be 
withheld, a statement advising the Contract Officer of this fact should accompany the submission and the information shall 
be so identified wherever it appears. The City shall review all requests for confidentiality and may provide a written 
determination to designate specified documents confidential or the request may be denied. Price is not confidential and will 
not be withheld. If the confidential request is denied, such information shall be disclosed as public information, unless the 
offeror submits a formal written objection. 

 

13. CERTIFICATION: By signature on the Offer and Acceptance page, solicitation Amendment(s), or cover letter accompanying 
the submittal documents, Offeror certifies: 
A. The submission of the offer did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive practices. 
B. The Offeror shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment in violation of Federal or State 

law. 
C. The Offeror has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future 

employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, meal or service to a public servant in connection with the 
submitted offer. 

D. The Offeror hereby certifies that the individual signing the submittal is an authorized agent for the Offeror and has the 
authority to bind the Offeror to the Contract. 

 

14. WHERE TO SUBMIT PROPOSALS: In order to be considered, the Offeror must complete and submit its proposal to the 
City of Tucson Department of Procurement at the location indicated, prior to or at the exact date and time indicated on the 
Notice of Request for Proposal page. The Offeror’s proposal shall be submitted in a sealed envelope. The words “SEALED 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 9 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 

 
PROPOSAL” with the REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL TITLE, REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NUMBER, PROPOSAL DUE 
DATE AND TIME and OFFEROR’S NAME AND ADDRESS shall be written on the envelope. 

 

15. LATE PROPOSALS: Late proposals will be rejected. 
 

16. OFFER AND ACCEPTANCE PERIOD: In order to allow for an adequate evaluation, the City requires an offer in response 
to this solicitation to be valid and irrevocable for ninety (90) days after the proposal due date and time. 

 

17. WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSAL: At any time prior to the specified solicitation due date and time, an offeror may formally 
withdraw the proposal by a written letter, facsimile or electronic mail from the Offeror or a designated representative. 
Telephonic or oral withdrawals shall not be considered. 

 

18. DISCUSSIONS: The City reserves the right to conduct discussions with offerors for the purpose of eliminating minor 
irregularities, informalities, or apparent clerical mistakes in the proposal in order to clarify an offer and assure full 
understanding of, and responsiveness to, solicitation requirements. 

 

19. CONTRACT NEGOTIATIONS: Exclusive or concurrent negotiations may be conducted with responsible offeror(s) for the 
purpose of altering or otherwise changing the conditions, terms and price of the proposed contract unless prohibited. 
Offerors shall be accorded fair and equal treatment in conducting negotiations and there shall be no disclosure of any 
information derived from proposals submitted by competing offerors.  Exclusive or concurrent negotiations shall not 
constitute a contract award nor shall it confer any property rights to the successful offeror. In the event the City deems that 
negotiations are not progressing, the City may formally terminate these negotiations and may enter into subsequent 
concurrent or exclusive negotiations with the next most qualified firm(s). 

 

20. VENDOR APPLICATION: Prior to the award of a Contract, the successful offeror shall register with the City’s Department of 
Procurement. Registration can be completed at http://www.tucsonprocurement.com/ by clicking on Vendor Services.  Please 
note that email notifications of newly published solicitations and amendments will be provided to those vendors that select 
email as their preferred delivery method in their vendor record. 

 

21. CITY OF TUCSON BUSINESS LICENSE:  It is the responsibility of the Contractor to have a City of Tucson Business 
License throughout the life of this contract or a written determination from the City's Business License Section that a license 
is not required.   At any time during the contract, the City may request the Contractor to provide a valid copy of the business 
license or a written determination that a business license is not required.  Application for a City Business License can be 
completed at http://www.tucsonaz.gov/etax.  For questions contact the City's Business License Section at (520) 791-4566 or 
email at tax-license@tucsonaz.gov. 

 

22. UPON NOTICE OF INTENT TO AWARD: The apparent successful offeror shall sign and file with the City, within five (5) 
days after Notice of Intent to Award, all documents necessary to the successful execution of the Contract. 

 

23. AWARD OF CONTRACT: Notwithstanding any other provision of the Request for Proposal, the City reserves the right to: 
 (1) waive any immaterial defect or informality; or 
 (2) reject any or all proposals, or portions thereof; or 
 (3) reissue the Request for Proposal. 
 
 A response to this Request for Proposal is an offer to contract with the City based upon the terms, conditions and Scope of 

Work contained in the City's Request for Proposal. Proposals do not become contracts unless and until they are executed 
by the City's Director of Procurement and the City Attorney. A contract has its inception in the award, eliminating a formal 
signing of a separate contract. All of the terms and conditions of the contract are contained in the Request for Proposal, 
unless any of the terms and conditions are modified by a Request for Proposal amendment, a Contract Amendment, or by 
mutually agreed terms and conditions in the Contract documents. 

 

24. PROPOSAL RESULTS: The name(s) of the successful offeror(s) will be posted on the Procurement Department’s Internet 
site at http://www.tucsonprocurement.com/ upon issuance of a Notice of Intent to Award or upon final contract execution. 

 

25. PROTESTS: A protest shall be in writing and shall be filed with the Director of Procurement. A protest of a Request for 
Proposal shall be received at the Department of Procurement not less than five (5) working days before the Request for 
Proposal due date. A protest of a proposed award or of an award shall be filed within ten (10) days after issuance of 
notification of award or issuance of a notice of intent to award, as applicable. A protest shall include: 

A.    The name, address, and telephone number of the protestant; 
B.    The signature of the protestant or its representative; 
C.    Identification of the Request for Proposal or Contract number; 
D.    A detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of protest including copies of relevant documents; and 
E.    The form of relief requested. 

http://www.tucsonprocurement.com/
http://www.tucsonprocurement.com/


CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 10 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 

 

PROPOSAL EVALUATION REQUIREMENTS 
 

 

I. PROPOSAL EVALUATION CRITERIA – (listed in relative order of importance) 
  

A. Method of Approach 

B. Price Proposal 

C. Qualifications & Experience 
 

II. REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIC TO EVALUATION CRITERIA: The narrative portion and the materials 
presented in response to this Request for Proposal should be submitted in the same order as requested 
and must contain, at a minimum, the following: 

 

A. Method of Approach 
 

1. National Program 
a. Provide a response to the national program include a detailed response to 

Attachment A, Exhibit A, National IPA Response for National Cooperative Contract 
and provide any proposed exceptions to Attachment A, Exhibit B, National IPA 
Administration Agreement, example. 
 

2. Distribution Network 
a.  Describe how your firm proposes to distribute the equipment, accessories, 

parts, repair and services nationwide.  Describe any parts the distribution 
network will have “on-hand” and those that must be ordered. 

b. Identify all other companies/distributors/dealers that will be involved in 
processing, handling or shipping the products/services to Participating Public 
Agencies. 

c. Provide the number, size and location of your firm’s manufacturing, distribution 
facilities, warehouses, service facilities and dealer networks as applicable. State 
the estimated dollar value of your inventory. Include a map showing heavy 
equipment distribution network coverage nationwide.   

d. Describe your dealer network and their role in providing products, services, etc. 
under this contract. 

 
3. Product  

 a. Provide a detailed written response illustrating how the equipment, accessories, 
parts, supplies and related services offered will meet the requirements of this 
solicitation.  Offerors shall identify and describe their heavy equipment 
categories. For each proposed category, describe in detail and provide at a 
minimum the following types of information:  

  1. Identification and description of equipment categories offered.  

  2. Identification and description of sub categories. 

3.  Identify accessories, parts, services, etc. that are available through the 
manufacturer. 

4. Identify accessories, parts, services, etc. that are available through the 
authorized dealer. 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 11 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 

 

5. Provide descriptions, catalog(s) or website links for accessories, parts 
and supplies offered. 

 b. Describe your warranty program, including 

1. Types of warranties available (by category or equipment) 

2. Describe your warranty claims procedures. 

3. Describe your policy addressing warranty issues related to  

a. Major Component Failures 

b. Engineering Deficiencies 

c. Describe your firm’s standard response time to address warranty 
failure issues. 

c. Is there a dedicated support representative that the City should contact?  If yes, 
provide their name and complete contact information. 

d. Provide information which details the costs, types, and extents of available 
extended warranty coverage for heavy equipment. 

e. Describe how your firm is anticipating and ensuring compliance with the 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) emission changes. 

 f. Submit all information that will aid the City in evaluating your proposal.  

 
4. Services 

 a. Provide a detailed written response illustrating how your firm or the authorized 
dealers will provide services to meet the requirements of this solicitation. 
Offerors shall provide the proposed services that will meet the Service 
Requirements section of the Scope Work outlined in this solicitation.  For each 
proposed category, describe and/or provide details explaining your capabilities. 
In your response include information such as:  

b. Provide detailed information explaining your service capabilities. 
c. Provided detailed information explaining the service capabilities of your authorized 
 dealers. 
d. Describe the maintenance programs offered.  If a maintenance program is 

selected by the City, will your firm provide a loaner or rental machine if the machine 
is down for more than 24 hours? 

e. Describe your training programs.  The proposed training program shall include but 
 not limited to: 

1. How will equipment training be conducted? 

2. Describe the training curriculum for the equipment operators. 

3. Describe the training curriculum for the service technicians. 

4. How will you accommodate various work shifts? 

5. What type of documentation is provided with the proposed training? 

6. Is a “train the trainer” program available?  Is this training different than 
the regular initial training?  Can training sessions be recorded for future 
use by the agency? 

 
f. Submit any other services information that will aid the City in evaluating your 
 proposal. 

 
  5. Ordering and Invoices  

a. Describe your order process.   



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 12 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 

 

b. How do agencies work with your firm to determine appropriate equipment 
needs? 

c. Describe the equipment delivery process and your delivery commitment. 

d. What is your standard equipment delivery timeframes? 

e. How does your firm communicate order cut off dates to your customers? 

f. Identify and describe any exceptions or challenges. 

g. Provide details of the capabilities of your E Commerce website including ability to 
display contract pricing, on-line ordering, order tracking, search options, order 
history, technical assistance, lists, technical data and documentation, 
identification of alternate green products, etc. 

h. Describe your invoicing process.  Is electronic invoicing available? Is summary 
invoicing available?  Are there other options on how an agency receives an 
invoice? Submit sample invoices. 

i. Describe how problems – such as a customer ordering a wrong product; a 
customer receiving a defective or wrong product; etc. – are resolved. 

j. Describe how your firm measures performance including identification, 
calculation, tracking and reporting of measurements. 

 
  6. Other 

  a. Describe any government rebate programs applicable.  
 

B. Price Proposal 

 
1. Provide a Price Proposal.  Submit the Price Proposal as a separate and clearly identified 

document.  The Price Proposal shall minimally include the following:  Offerors shall 
submit pricing based on the Equipment, Product Requirements and Service 
Requirement categories identified on the Scope of Services. Pricing should be based 
upon a verifiable pricing structure, such as a fixed percent discount from an index or 
indices or established price list, etc.  Where applicable, Offerors shall provide pricing for 
all product and services offered.  Describe how pricing is determined for a base model 
equipment purchase and how pricing is determined for options, accessories and 
services.  Identify the price list being used and include an electronic copy (or website 
link) so that net prices can be determined.   

 
The price proposal should include pricing for equipment, accessories and options, parts, 
service and any additional value-add goods or services available such as financing, 
rental and used equipment for purchase from the vendor.  Vendors must indicate if 
discounts are based on manufacturer price lists or dealer price lists. 

 
2. The City’s expectation is that the proposed pricing will not include freight.  Based on 

your distribution network, explain how freight is calculated.   
 
3. The discount structure provided by the supplier is intended to remain constant 

throughout the term of the Contact.  Discuss how often price lists are updated and 
provide a listing of price list changes that have taken place over the last 3 years.  
Discuss any known future price list changes or industry changes that will effect pricing 
over the next 5 years.  

 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 13 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 

 

4. State if pricing is most favorable offered to government agencies. Describe how your 
firm will ensure this contract will continually offer the best pricing available to 
Participating Public Agencies. 

 
5. Provide details of and propose additional discounts for volume orders, special 

manufacturer’s offers, minimum order quantity, free goods program, total annual spend, 
etc. 

 
6. Provide information on any ordering methods – such as electronic ordering or payment 

via pCard or EFT – or other criteria which entitle the using agency to additional 
discounts off of a manufacturer’s price list.  If so, please provide the percentage 
discount. 

 
7. As stated in the Instructions to Offerors, 7. Discounts, the price(s) herein can be 

discounted by _______%, if payment is made within ______ days.  

8 Indicate if payment will be accepted via credit card. ______Yes  ______No 

a. If yes, can commercial payment(s) be made online? _____Yes  _____No 

b. Will a third party be processing the commercial credit card payment(s)? 
   _____Yes  _____No 

c. If yes, indicate the flat fee per transaction $___________ (as allowable, per Section 
5.2.E of Visa Operating Regulations). 

If “no” to above, will consideration be given to accept the card? ____Yes _____No 
 

9. Does your firm have a City of Tucson Business License? _____Yes  _____No 
 If yes, please provide a copy of your City of Tucson Business license.  
 

C. Qualifications and Experience 

 
1. Provide a brief history and description of your company. Describe your market position 

in the local government, educational and medical market spaces.  
 
2. Describe your dealer network and their role in providing products and services under 

this contract. 
 
3. Provide a listing of key personnel who may be assigned to the City’s contract.  Include 

their title within your organization and the description of the type of work they may 
perform.  Please identify an executive corporate sponsor who will be responsible for the 
overall management of the awarded Master Agreement. 

 
4. Summarize your experience in providing equipment, products and services similar to that 

outlined in the Scope of Work.  Provide a minimum of three references for which you have 
provided similar products and services.  References from other public agencies, 
particularly municipal governments, are preferred. Please include company name, 
address, phone, email, and contact person. 

 
5. Please submit any additional information that you feel is applicable to your qualifications 

and experience.   
 
6. Provide the qualifications of technicians that will be servicing equipment throughout the 

nation. 
 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 14 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 

 

7. Describe your quality control program including but not limited to:  what is your quality 
control procedures, who performs the quality control inspection? What are the 
qualifications of the inspectors?  What items are inspected / tested? Etc. 

 
 

III. GENERAL 
 

A. Shortlist: 
   

The City reserves the right to shortlist the offerors on Method of Approach, Price Proposal and 
Qualifications & Experience of the stated criteria. For the initial scoring, pricing will be evaluated 
subjectively by the evaluation committee.  However, for final award, the City will request specific 
pricing for equipment based upon the City’s specifications.  However, the City may determine that 
shortlisting is not necessary.  
 

B. Interviews/Demonstrations: 

 
 The City reserves the right to conduct interviews and/or product demonstrations with some or all of 

the offerors at any point during the evaluation process. However, the City may determine that 
interviews and/or demonstrations are not necessary. In the event these are conducted, information 
provided during the interview and/or demonstration process shall be taken into consideration when 
evaluating the stated criteria. The City shall not reimburse the offeror for the costs associated with 
the interview and/or demonstration process. 

  

 C. Additional Investigations: 
  
 The City reserves the right to make such additional investigations as it deems necessary to establish 

the competence and financial stability of any offeror submitting a proposal. 
 

D. Prior Experience: 
  
 Experiences with the City and entities that evaluation committee members represent may be taken 

into consideration when evaluating offers. 
 

E. Multiple Awards: 
 
 To provide adequate contract coverage, at the City’s sole discretion, multiple awards may be made. 
 

 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 15 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 

 

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

1. FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL TAXES, LICENSES AND PERMITS:  The Supplier shall comply with all 
Federal, State, and local licenses and permits required for the operation of the business conducted by the 
Supplier as applicable to this Contract.  The Supplier shall, at no expense to the City, National IPA, or 
other Participating Public Agencies, procure and keep in force during the entire period of the Agreement 
all such permits and licenses. 
 

2. SUBCONTRACTORS:  No subcontract shall be made by the contractor with any other party for 
furnishing any of the services herein contracted for without the advance written approval of the 
Department of Procurement.  All subcontractors shall comply with Federal and State laws and regulations 
that are applicable to the services covered by the subcontractor and shall include all the terms and 
conditions set forth herein which shall apply with equal force to the subcontract, as if the subcontractor 
were the Contractor referred to herein.  Contractor is responsible for contract performance whether or not 
subcontractors are used. 
 

3. FOB DESTINATION FREIGHT PREPAID:  Prices shall be FOB Destination Freight Prepaid to the 
delivery location designated. Contractor shall retain title and control of all goods until they are delivered 
and the Contract of coverage has been completed. All risk of transportation and all related charges shall 
be the responsibility of the Contractor. All claims for visible or concealed damage shall be filed by the 
Contractor. The City will assist the Contractor in arranging for inspection. 
 

4. INSURANCE:  The Contractor agrees to: 
 
A. Obtain insurance coverage of the types and amount required in this section and keep such 

insurance coverage in force throughout the life of this Contract. All policies will contain an 
endorsement providing that written notice be given to the City at least ten (10) calendar days prior 
to termination, cancellation, or reduction in coverage in any policy. 

 
B. The Comprehensive General Liability Insurance and Comprehensive Automobile Liability 

Insurance policies will include the City as an additional insured with respect to liability arising out 
of the performance of this Contract. The Contractor agrees that the insurance hereunder will be 
primary and that any insurance carried by the City will be excess and not contributing. 

 
C. Provide and maintain minimum insurance limits as applicable. 
 Coverage Afforded     Limits of Liability 
 
 Workmen’s Compensation    Statute 
 Employer’s Liability     $100,000 
 
 Comprehensive General    $1,000,000 Bodily Injury 
 Liability Insurance     Combined Single Limit 
 Including:      $100,000 Property Damage 
 (1) Products & Completed 
 Operations 
 (2) Blanket Contractual 
 
 Comprehensive Automobile    $1,000,000 Bodily Injury Liability Insurance 
        Combined Single Limit 
 Including:      $100,000 Property Damage 
 (1) Non-Owned 
 (2) Leased 
 (3) Hired Vehicles 
 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 16 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 

 

 Contractor will present to the City written evidence (Certifications of Insurance) of compliance with 
Items A., B and C. above.  Said evidence shall be to the City Procurement Director’s satisfaction. 

 

5. PAYMENTS:  All payments made by the City of Tucson for goods or services will be made to the vendor 
named on the Offer and Acceptance form. If you do not wish payment to be made to that address, you 
must submit an attached sheet indicating the proper mailing address with this bid. 
 

6. RIGHT TO TERMINATE FOR CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP OR MATERIAL RESTRUCTURE OF THE 

CONTRACTOR:  In addition to the Termination of Contract clause in the Standard Terms and Conditions 
section of this solicitation and resulting contract, the City reserves the right to cancel the whole or part of 
this contract within 60 days written notice of the completion of any material change of ownership in the 
Contractor’s company, including its sale, merger, consolidation or dissolution. 
 

7. TERM AND RENEWAL:  The term of the Contract shall commence upon award and shall remain in effect 
for a period of one (1) year, unless terminated, canceled or extended as otherwise provided herein.  The 
Contractor agrees that the City of Tucson shall have the right, at its sole option, to renew the Contract for 
four (4) additional one-year periods or portions thereof.  In the event that the City exercises such rights, all 
terms, conditions and provisions of the original Contract shall remain the same and apply during the 
renewal period with the possible exception of price and minor scope additions and/or deletions. 

 

8. PRICE ADJUSTMENT: The City will review fully documented requests for price adjustment after any 
Contract has been in effect for one (1) year.  Any price adjustment will only be made at the time of 
Contract renewal and/or extension and will be a factor in the extension review process.  The City will 
determine whether the requested price adjustment or an alternate option, is in the best interest of the 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 17 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 

 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

1. ADVERTISING: Contractor shall not advertise or publish information concerning this Contract without prior written consent 
of the City’s Director of Procurement. 

 

2. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION: Contractor shall abide by the provisions of the Tucson Procurement Code Chapter 28, Article XII.  
 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: The Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101, et seq.) and applicable Federal regulations under the Act. 

 

4. APPLICABLE LAW: This Contract shall be governed, and the City and Contractor shall have all remedies afforded to each, 
by the Tucson Procurement Code and the law of the State of Arizona. State law claims shall be brought only in Pima County 
Superior Court.  

 

5. ASSIGNMENT-DELEGATION: No right or interest in this Contract shall be assigned by the Contractor without prior written 
permission of the City, and no delegation of any duty of the Contractor shall be made without prior written permission of the 
City's Director of Procurement. The City shall not unreasonably withhold approval and shall notify the Contractor of the 
City's position by written notice. 

 

6. CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH A.R.S. SEC. 35-393 ET SEQ.:  By signing this contract, the Contractor certifies 
that it does not have scrutinized business operations in Iran as required by A.R.S. sec. 35-393 et seq.  If the City determines 
that the Contractor has submitted a false certification, the City may impose remedies as provided in the Tucson 
Procurement Code up to and including termination of this contract. 

 

7. CHILD/SWEAT-FREE LABOR POLICY: The Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of the United States 
Federal and State Child Labor and Worker's Right laws and agrees if called upon to affirm in writing, that they, and any 
subcontractor involved in the provision of goods to the City, are in compliance. 

 

8. CLEAN UP: The Contractor shall at all times keep the contract area, including storage areas used by the Contractor, free 
from accumulation of waste material or rubbish and, prior to completion of the work, remove any rubbish from the premises 
and all tools, scaffolding, equipment and materials not property of the City. Upon completion of the repair, the Contractor 
shall leave the work and premises in clean, neat and workmanlike condition. 

 

9. COMMENCEMENT OF WORK: The Contractor is cautioned not to commence any billable work or provide any material or 
service under this Contract until Contractor receives purchase order or is otherwise directed to do so, in writing, by the City. 

 

10. CONFIDENTIALITY OF RECORDS: The Contractor shall establish and maintain procedures and controls that are 
acceptable to the City for the purpose of assuring that no information contained in its records or obtained from the City or 
from others in carrying out its functions under the Contract shall be used by or disclosed by it, its agents, officers, or 
employees, except as required to efficiently perform duties under the Contract. Persons requesting such information should 
be referred to the City. Information pertaining to individual persons shall not be divulged other than to employees or officers 
of Contractor as needed for the performance of duties under the Contract, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the City. 

 

11. CONTRACT AMENDMENTS: The Procurement Department has the sole authority to: 
 

A. Amend the contract or enter into supplemental verbal or written agreements; 
B. Grant time extensions or contract renewals; 
C. Otherwise modify the scope or terms and provisions of the contract. 

 
This Contract shall only be modified with the approval of the Department of Procurement. Except in the case of a 
documented emergency, approval must be granted prior to performance.  Any contract modification not explicitly approved 
by the Procurement Department through a written contract amendment or change order is performed at the sole risk of the 
Contractor and may not be eligible for payment by the City. 

 

12. CONTRACT: The Contract shall be based upon the Request for Proposal issued by the City and the Offer submitted by the 
Contractor in response to the Request for Proposal. The offer shall substantially conform to the terms, conditions, 
specifications and other requirements set forth within the text of the Request for Proposal. The City reserves the right to 
clarify any contractual terms with the concurrence of the Contractor; however, any substantial non-conformity in the offer, as 
determined by the City's Director of Procurement, shall be deemed non-responsive and the offer rejected. The Contract 
shall contain the entire agreement between the City of Tucson and the Contractor relating to this requirement and shall 
prevail over any and all previous agreements, contracts, proposals, negotiations, purchase orders, or master agreements in 
any form. 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 18 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 

 
 

13. DEFAULT IN ONE INSTALLMENT TO CONSTITUTE TOTAL BREACH: Contractor shall deliver conforming materials in 
each installment or lot of this Contract and may not substitute nonconforming materials. Delivery of nonconforming 
materials, or default of any nature, may constitute breach of the Contract. Noncompliance may be deemed a cause for 
possible Contract termination. 

 

14. DUPLEXED/RECYCLED PAPER: In accordance with efficient resource procurement and utilization policies adopted by the 
City of Tucson, the Contractor shall ensure that, whenever practicable, all printed materials produced by the Contractor in 
the performance of this Contract are duplexed (two-sided copies), printed on recycled paper and labeled as such. 

  

15. EXCLUSIVE POSSESSION: All services, information, computer program elements, reports and other deliverables created 
under this Contract are the sole property of the City of Tucson and shall not be used or released by the Contractor or any 
other person except with prior written permission by the City. 

 

16. FEDERAL IMMIGRATION LAWS AND REGULATIONS:  Contractor warrants that it complies with all Federal Immigration 
laws and regulations that relate to its employees and complies with A.R.S. § 23-214(A) and that it requires the same 
compliance of all subcontractors under this Contract. Contractor acknowledges that pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-4401 and 
effective September 30, 2008, a breach of this warranty is a material breach of this Contract subject to penalties up to and 
including termination of this Contract. The City retains the legal right to audit the records of the Contractor and inspect the 
papers of any employee who works for the Contractor to ensure compliance with this warranty and the Contractor shall 
assist in any such audit.  The Contractor shall include the requirements of this paragraph in each contract with 
subcontractors under this Contract. 

 
If the Contractor or subcontractor warrants that it has complied with the employment verification provisions prescribed by 
sections 274(a) and 274(b) of the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act and the E-verify requirements prescribed by 
A.R.S. § 23-214(A), the Contractor or subcontractor shall be deemed to be in compliance with this provision.  The City may 
request proof of such compliance at any time during the term of this Contract by the Contractor and any subcontractor. 

 

17. FORCE MAJEURE: Except for payment of sums due, neither party shall be liable to the other nor deemed in default under 
this Contract if and to the extent that such party's performance of this Contract is prevented by reason of Force Majeure. 
The term "Force Majeure" means an occurrence that is beyond the control of the party affected and occurs without its fault 
or negligence. Force Majeure shall not include late performance by a subcontractor unless the delay arises out of a Force 
Majeure occurrence in accordance with this Force Majeure term and condition. 

 
 If either party is delayed at any time in the progress of the work by Force Majeure, the delayed party shall notify the other 

party in writing of such delay, as soon as is practical, of the commencement thereof and shall specify the causes of such 
delay in such notice. Such notice shall be hand-delivered or mailed certified-return receipt and shall make a specific 
reference to this article, thereby invoking its provisions. The delayed party shall cause such delay to cease as soon as 
practicable and shall notify the other party in writing when it has done so. The time of completion shall be extended by 
contract modification for a period of time equal to the time that results or effects of such delay prevent the delayed party 
from performing in accordance with this Contract. 

 

18. GRATUITIES: The City may, by written notice to the Contractor, terminate this Contract if it is found that gratuities, in the 
form of entertainment, gifts, meals or otherwise, were offered or given by the Contractor or any agent or representative of 
the Contractor, to any officer or employee of the City amending, or the making of any determinations with respect to the 
performing of such Contract. In the event this Contract is terminated by the City pursuant to this provision, the City shall be 
entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover or withhold from the Contractor the amount of the gratuity. 

 

19. HUMAN RELATIONS: Contractor shall abide by the provisions of the Tucson City Code Chapter 28, Article XII. 
 

20. INDEMNIFICATION: To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor, its successors, assigns and guarantors, shall pay, 
defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City of Tucson, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials and 
employees from and against all allegations, demands, proceedings, suits, actions, claims, including claims of patent or 
copyright infringement, damages, losses, expenses, including but not limited to, attorney fees, court costs, and the cost of 
appellate proceedings, and all claim adjusting and handling expense, related to, arising from or out of or resulting from any 
actions, acts, errors, mistakes or omissions caused in whole or part by Contractor relating to work, services and/or products 
provided in the performance of this Contract, including but not limited to, any Subcontractor or anyone directly or indirectly 
employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable and any injury or damages claimed by any of 
Contractor’s and Subcontractor’s employees. 

 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 19 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 

 

21. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: It is understood that each party shall act in its individual capacity and not as an agent, 
employee, partner, joint venturer, or associate of the other. An employee or agent of one party shall not be deemed or 
construed to be the employee or agent of the other party for any purpose. 

 
 The Contractor shall not be entitled to compensation in the form of salaries, paid vacation or sick days by the City.  
 
 The City of Tucson will not provide any insurance coverage to the Contractor, including Worker's Compensation coverage. 

The Contractor is advised that taxes, social security payments, and other withholdings shall not be withheld from a City 
payment issued under this Contract and that Contractor should make arrangements to directly pay such expenses. 

 

22. INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE: All material or service is subject to final inspection and acceptance by the City. Material 
or service failing to conform to the specifications of this Contract shall be held at the Contractor's risk and may be returned 
to the Contractor. If returned, all costs are the responsibility of the Contractor. Noncompliance may be deemed a cause for 
possible Contract termination.  

 

23. INTERPRETATION-PAROLE EVIDENCE: This Contract is intended by the parties to be a final expression of their 
agreement and is intended also as a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of this agreement. No course of prior 
dealings between the parties and no usage of the trade shall be relevant to supplement or explain any term used in the 
Contract. Acceptance or consent in the course of performance under this Contract shall not be relevant to determine the 
meaning of this Contract even though the accepting or consenting party has knowledge of the nature of the performance 
and the opportunity to object. 

 

24. LICENSES: Contractor shall maintain in current status all Federal, State, and local licenses and permits required for the 
operation of the business conducted by the Contractor as applicable to this Contract. 

 

25. LIENS: All materials, services, and other deliverables supplied to the City under this Contract shall be free of all liens other 
than the security interest. Security interest shall extinguish upon full payment made by the City. Upon the City’s request, the 
Contractor shall provide a formal release of all liens. 

 

26. NO REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE TENDER: Every tender of materials must fully comply with all provisions of this 
Contract. If a tender is made which does not fully comply, this shall conform to the termination clause set forth within this 
document. 

 

27. NON-EXCLUSIVE CONTRACT: Any contract resulting from this solicitation shall be awarded with the understanding and 
agreement that it is for the sole convenience of the City of Tucson. The City reserves the right to obtain like goods or 
services from another source when necessary. 

 

28. OVERCHARGES BY ANTITRUST VIOLATIONS: The City maintains that, in actual practice, overcharges resulting from 
antitrust violations are borne by the purchaser. Therefore, to the extent permitted by law, the Contractor hereby assigns to 
the City any and all claims for such overcharges as to the materials or services used to fulfill the Contract. 

 

29. PAYMENT: The City’s preferred method of payment is via credit card.  The City will issue a Purchase Order and, in some 
cases, either provide a credit card for payment at the time of ordering or pay subsequent invoices by credit card upon 
receipt of goods or services in good order.  However, not all City employees will possess a credit card and, therefore, the 
City reserves the right to make payment by check as it deems necessary. 

  
Unless payment is made by credit card at time of order or point of sale, a separate invoice shall be issued for each shipment 
of material or service performed, and no payment shall be issued prior to receipt of material or service and correct invoice. 

  
The City shall make every effort to process payment for the purchase of materials or services within twenty-one (21) 
calendar days after receipt of materials or services and a correct invoice. 

 

30. PROTECTION OF GOVERNMENT PROPERTY: The Contractor shall use reasonable care to avoid damaging existing 
buildings, equipment, and vegetation (such as trees, shrubs, and grass) on City property. If the Contractor fails to do so and 
damages such property, the Contractor shall replace or repair the damage at no expense to the City, as determined and 
approved by the City’s Director of Procurement. If the Contractor fails or refuses to make such repair or replacement, the 
City will determine a cost and the Contractor shall be liable for the cost thereof, which may be deducted from the Contract 
price. 

 

31. PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY LAW: Each and every provision of law and any clause required by law to be in the Contract 
shall be read and enforced as though it were included herein, and if through mistake or otherwise any such provision is not 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 20 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 

 
inserted, or is not correctly inserted, then upon the application of either party the Contract shall be amended to make such 
insertion or correction. 

 

32. RECORDS: Internal control over all financial transactions related to this Contract shall be in accordance with sound fiscal 
policies. The City may, at reasonable times and places, audit the books and records of the Contractor and/or any 
subcontractors. Said audit shall be limited to this Contract. 

 

33. RIGHT TO ASSURANCE: Whenever one party to this Contract has reason to question, in good faith, the other party's intent 
to perform, the former party may demand that the other party give a written assurance of this intent to perform. In the event 
that a demand is made and no written assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may treat this failure as 
the other party’s intent not to perform and as a cause for possible Contract termination. 

 

34. RIGHT TO INSPECT: The City may, at reasonable times, and at the City's expense, inspect the place of business of a 
Contractor or subcontractor which is related to the performance of any Contract as awarded or to be awarded. 

 

35. RIGHTS AND REMEDIES: No provision in this document or in the Contractor's proposal shall be construed, expressly or by 
implication, as a waiver by either party of any existing or future right and/or remedy available by law in the event of any 
claim, default or breach of contract. The failure of either party to insist upon the strict performance of any term or condition 
of the Contract, to exercise or delay the exercise of any right or remedy provided in the Contract or by law, or to accept 
materials or services required by this Contract or by law shall not be deemed a waiver of any right of either party to insist 
upon the strict performance of the Contract. 

 

36. SEVERABILITY: The provisions of this Contract are severable to the extent that any provision or application held to be 
invalid shall not affect any other provision or application of the Contract which may remain in effect without the valid 
provision or application. 

 

37. SHIPMENT UNDER RESERVATION PROHIBITED: No tender of a bill of lading shall operate as a tender of the materials. 
Non-compliance shall conform to the termination clause set forth within this document.  

 

38. SUBCONTRACTS: No subcontract shall be entered into by the Contractor with any other party to furnish any of the 
material/service specified herein without the advance written approval of the City's Director of Procurement. All subcontracts 
shall comply with Federal and State laws and regulations which are applicable to the services covered by the subcontract 
and shall include all the terms and conditions set forth herein which shall apply with equal force to the subcontract, as if the 
subcontractor were the Contractor referred to herein. The Contractor is responsible for contract performance whether or not 
subcontractors are used.  

 

39. SUBSEQUENT EMPLOYMENT: The City may terminate this Contract without penalty or further obligation pursuant to 
A.R.S. Section 38-511 if any person significantly involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting, or creating the 
Contract, on behalf of the City, is or becomes, at any time while the Contract or any extension of the Contract is in effect, an 
employee of, or a contractor to, any other party to this Contract with respect to the subject matter of the Contract. 
Termination shall be effective when written notice from the City's Director of Procurement is received by the parties to this 
Contract, unless the notice specifies a later time. 

 

40. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT: This Contract may be terminated at any time by mutual written consent, or by the City, 
with or without cause, upon giving thirty (30) days written notice. The City, at its convenience, by written notice, may 
terminate this Contract, in whole or in part. If this Contract is terminated, the City shall be liable only for payment under the 
payment provisions of this Contract for services rendered and accepted material received by the City before the effective 
date of termination. 

 
 The City reserves the right to terminate the whole or any part of this Contract due to the failure of the Contractor to carry out 

any term or condition of the Contract. The City will issue a written ten (10) day notice of default to the Contractor for acting 
or failing to act as specified in any of the following: 

 
 In the opinion of the City, the Contractor provides personnel that do not meet the requirements of the Contract; 
 
 In the opinion of the City, the Contractor fails to perform adequately the stipulations, conditions or services/specifications 

required in this Contract; 
 
 In the opinion of the City, the Contractor attempts to impose personnel, materials, products or workmanship of an 

unacceptable quality; 
 
 The Contractor fails to furnish the required service and/or product within the time stipulated in the Contract; 
 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 21 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 

 
 In the opinion of the City, the Contractor fails to make progress in the performance of the requirements of the Contract; 
 
 The Contractor gives the City a positive indication that the Contractor will not or cannot perform to the requirements of the 

Contract. 
 
 Each payment obligation of the City created by this Contract is conditioned upon the availability of City, State and Federal 

funds that are appropriated or allocated for the payment of such an obligation. If funds are not allocated by the City and 
available for the continued purchase of the services and/or materials provided under this Contract, this Contract may be 
terminated by the City at the end of the period for which funds are available. The City will endeavor to notify the Contractor 
in the event that continued service will or may be affected by non-appropriation. No penalty shall accrue to the City in the 
event this provision is exercised, and the City shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments due or for any 
damages as a result of termination under this paragraph. 

  

41. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS: The title and risk of loss of material or service shall not pass to the City until the City actually 
receives the material or service at the point of delivery, unless otherwise provided within this Contract. 

  

42. WARRANTIES: Contractor warrants that all material or service delivered under this Contract shall conform to the 
specifications of this Contract. Mere receipt of shipment of the material or service specified and any inspection incidental 
thereto by the City shall not alter or affect the obligations of the Contractor or the rights of the City under the foregoing 
warranties. Additional warranty requirements may be set forth in this document. 

 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 22 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 

 

OFFER AND ACCEPTANCE  
 

OFFER 
 

TO THE CITY OF TUCSON: 
The Undersigned hereby offers and shall furnish the material or service in compliance with all terms, scope of work, conditions, 
specifications, and amendments in the Request for Proposal which is incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein. 
 
 
         For clarification of this offer, contact: 
 
 
        Name:       
Company Name 
 
        Title:        
Address 
 
        Phone:        
City    State  Zip 
 
        Fax:       
Signature of Person Authorized to Sign 
 
        E-mail:  _________________________________ 
Printed Name 
 
        
Title 
 
 
 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER 
 

The Offer is hereby accepted. The Contractor is now bound to sell the materials or services specified in the Contract. This Contract 
shall be referred to as Contract No.                              .  
 
 
 

         CITY OF TUCSON, a municipal corporation 
 
Approved as to form this _____ day of                    , 2011.  Awarded this             day of                     , 2011. 
 
 
 
               
As Tucson City Attorney and not personally   Mark A. Neihart, C.P.M., CPPB, A.P.P., CPM 
        As Director of Procurement and not personally 
 
 



 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

 

 
 

 
 

Requirements for National Cooperative Contract 

To be Administered by  

National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance Company 

 
The following documents are used in evaluating and administering national cooperative contracts and are 

included for Supplier’s review and response. 

 

National IPA Exhibit A – NATIONAL IPA RESPONSE FOR NATIONAL COOPERATIVE 

CONTRACT  

 

National IPA Exhibit B – NATIONAL IPA ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT, EXAMPLE 

 

National IPA Exhibit C – NATIONAL IPA MASTER INTERGOVERNMENTAL 

COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT, EXAMPLE 

 

National IPA Exhibit D – NATIONAL IPA PRINCIPAL PROCUREMENT AGENCY 

CERTIFICATE, EXAMPLE 

 

National IPA Exhibit E – NATIONAL IPA CONTRACT SALES REPORTING TEMPLATE 

 

National IPA Exhibit F – NATIONAL IPA ADVERTISING COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENT 



Requirements for National Cooperative Contract 

Page 24 of 44 

NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT A- RESPONSE FOR NATIONAL COOPERATIVE CONTRACT 

 

 
1.0 Scope of National Cooperative Contract 

1.1 Requirement 

The City of Tucson (hereinafter defined and referred to as “Principal Procurement Agency”), on 

behalf of itself and the National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance Company (“National IPA”), is 

requesting proposals for PRODUCT. The intent of this Request for Proposal is that any contract 

between Principal Procurement Agency and Supplier resulting from this Request for Proposal 

(hereinafter defined and referred to as the “Master Agreement”) be made available to other public 

agencies nationally, including state and local governmental entities, public and private primary, 

secondary and higher education entities, non-profit entities, and agencies for the public benefit 

(“Public Agencies”), through National IPA’s cooperative purchasing program.  The Principal 

Procurement Agency has executed a Principal Procurement Agency Certificate with National IPA (an 

example of which is included as Exhibit D) and has agreed to pursue the Master Agreement.  Use of 

the Master Agreement by any Public Agency, including the Principal Procurement Agency, will be 

preceded by their registration with National IPA as a Participating Public Agency in National IPA’s 

cooperative purchasing program.  Registration with National IPA as a Participating Public Agency is 

accomplished by Public Agencies entering into a Master Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement, an example of which is attached as Exhibit C.  The terms and pricing established in the 

resulting Master Agreement between the Supplier and the Principal Procurement Agency will be the 

same as that available to Participating Public Agencies through National IPA.   

 

All transactions, purchase orders, etc., will occur directly between the Supplier and each Participating 

Public Agency individually, and neither National IPA, any Principal Procurement Agency nor any 

Participating Public Agency, including their respective agents, directors, employees or representatives, 

shall be liable to Supplier for any acts, liabilities, damages, etc. incurred by any other Participating 

Public Agency. 

 

This Exhibit A defines the expectations for qualifying Suppliers based on National IPA’s requirements 

to market the resulting Master Agreement nationally to Public Agencies.  Each section in this Exhibit 

A refers to the capabilities, requirements, obligations, and prohibitions of competing Suppliers on a 

national level in order to serve Participating Public Agencies through National IPA. 

 

These requirements are incorporated into and are considered an integral part of this RFP.  National 

IPA reserves the right to determine whether or not to make the Master Agreement awarded by the 

Principal Procurement Agency available to Participating Public Agencies. 

 

1.2 Marketing and Administrative Support 

During the term of the Master Agreement National IPA intends to provide marketing and 

administrative support for Supplier pursuant to this section 1.2 that directly promotes the Supplier’s 

products and services to Participating Public Agencies through multiple channels, each designed to 

promote specific products and services to Public Agencies on a national basis. 

 

The National IPA marketing team will work in conjunction with Supplier to promote the Master 

Agreement to both existing Participating Public Agencies and prospective Public Agencies through: 

A. Marketing collateral (print, email, presentations) 

B. Website support 

C. Trade shows/conferences/meetings 

D. Advertising 

 

The National IPA sales teams will work in conjunction with Supplier to promote the Master 

Agreement to both existing Participating Public Agencies and prospective Public Agencies through: 

A. Individual sales calls  

B. Joint sales calls 

C. Communications/customer service 

D. Training sessions for Public Agency teams 



NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT A- NATIONAL IPA RESPONSE FOR NATIONAL COOPERATIVE CONTRACT 

 

 

E. Training sessions for Supplier teams 

 

The National IPA contracting teams will work in conjunction with Supplier to promote the Master 

Agreement to both existing Participating Public Agencies prospective Public Agencies through: 

A. Serving as the subject matter expert for questions regarding joint powers authority and state 

statutes and regulations for cooperative purchasing 

B. Training sessions for Public Agency teams 

C. Training sessions for Supplier teams 

D. Regular business reviews to monitor program success 

E. General contract administration 

 

Suppliers are required to pay an administrative fee of 2.5% of the greater of the Contract Sales under 

the Master Agreement and guaranteed Contract Sales under this Request for Proposal.  Supplier will 

be required to execute the National IPA Administration Agreement (refer to Exhibit B). 

 

Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings given to them in the Master Agreement 

or in the National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance Company Administration Agreement between 

Supplier and National IPA (the "National IPA Administration Agreement") 

 

1.3 Estimated Volume 

The dollar volume purchased under the Master Agreement is estimated to be approximately 

$100,000,000 annually.  While no minimum volume is guaranteed to Supplier, the estimated annual 

volume is projected based on the current annual volumes among the Principal Procurement Agency, 

other Participating Public Agencies that are anticipated to utilize the resulting Master Agreement to be 

made available to them through National IPA, and volume growth into other Public Agencies through 

a coordinated marketing approach between Supplier and National IPA.   

 

1.4 Award Basis 

The basis of any contract award resulting from this RFP made by Principal Procurement Agency will 

be the basis of award on a national level through National IPA.  If multiple suppliers are awarded by 

Principal Procurement Agency under the Master Agreement, those same suppliers will be required to 

extend the Master Agreement to Participating Public Agencies through National IPA.  Utilization of 

the Master Agreement by Participating Public Agencies will be at the discretion of the individual 

Participating Public Agency. Certain terms of the Master Agreement specifically applicable to the 

Principal Procurement Agency are subject to modification for each Participating Public Agency as 

Supplier, such Participating Public Agency and National IPA shall agree. 

 

1.5 Objectives of Cooperative Program  

This RFP is intended to achieve the following objectives regarding availability through National IPA’s 

cooperative program:  

A. Provide a comprehensive competitively solicited and awarded national agreement offering the 

Products covered by this solicitation to Participating Public Agencies; 

B. Establish the Master Agreement as the Supplier’s primary go to market strategy to Public 

Agencies nationwide; 

C. Achieve cost savings for Supplier and Public Agencies through a single solicitation process that 

will reduce the Supplier’s need to respond to multiple solicitations; 

D. Combine the aggregate purchasing volumes of Participating Public Agencies to achieve cost 

effective pricing. 

 

2.0 REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS 

As a condition to Supplier entering into the Master Agreement, which would be available to all Public 

Agencies, Supplier must make certain representations, warranties and covenants to both the Principal 

Procurement Agency and National IPA designed to ensure the success of the Master Agreement for all 

Participating Public Agencies as well as the Supplier. 

 

 

 



NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT A- NATIONAL IPA RESPONSE FOR NATIONAL COOPERATIVE CONTRACT 

 

 

2.1 Corporate Commitment 

Supplier commits that (1) the Master Agreement has received all necessary corporate authorizations 

and support of the Supplier’s executive management, (2) the Master Agreement is Supplier's primary 

“go to market” strategy for Public Agencies, (3) the Master Agreement will be promoted to all Public 

Agencies, including any existing customers, and Supplier will transition existing customers, upon their 

request, to the Master Agreement, and (4) that the Supplier has read and agrees to the terms and 

conditions of the Administration Agreement with National IPA and will execute such agreement 

concurrent with and as a condition of its execution of the Master Agreement with the Principal 

Procurement Agency. Supplier will identify an executive corporate sponsor and a separate national 

account manager within the RFP response that will be responsible for the overall management of the 

Master Agreement. 

 

2.2 Pricing Commitment 

Supplier commits that the Master Agreement pricing is its lowest available (net to buyer) to Public 

Agencies nationwide and further commits that if a Participating Public Agency is eligible for lower 

pricing through a national, state, regional or local or cooperative contract, that the Supplier will match 

such lower pricing to that Participating Public Agency under the Master Agreement. 

 

2.3 Sales Commitment 

Supplier commits to aggressively market the Master Agreement as its go to market strategy in this 

defined sector and that its sales force will be trained, engaged and committed to offering the Master 

Agreement to Public Agencies through National IPA nationwide. Supplier commits that all Master 

Agreement sales will be accurately and timely reported to National IPA in accordance with the 

National IPA Administration Agreement.  Supplier also commits that its sales force will be 

compensated, including sales incentives, for sales to Public Agencies under the Master Agreement in a 

consistent or better manner compared to sales to Public Agencies if the Supplier were not awarded the 

Master Agreement.  

 

3.0 SUPPLIER QUALIFICATIONS 

Supplier must supply the following information in order for the Principal Procurement Agency to determine 

Supplier’s qualifications to extend the resulting Master Agreement to Participating Public Agencies through 

National IPA.   
 

3.1 Company 

A. Brief history and description of your company.  

B. Total number and location of sales persons employed by your company. 

C. Number and location of support centers (if applicable). 

D. Annual sales for the three previous fiscal years. 

E. Submit your FEIN and Dunn & Bradstreet report. 

 

3.2 Distribution, Logistics 

A. Describe how your company proposes to distribute the products/service nationwide. 

B. Identify all other companies that will be involved in processing, handling or shipping the 

products/service to the end user. 

C. Provide the number, size and location of your company’s distribution facilities, warehouses and 

retail network as applicable. 

D.  State any return and restocking policy and fees, if applicable, associated with returns. 

 
3.3 Marketing and Sales 

A. Provide a detailed ninety-day plan beginning from award date of the Master Agreement 

describing the strategy to immediately implement the Master Agreement as your company’s 

primary go to market strategy for Public Agencies to your teams nationwide, to include, but not 

limited to: 

i. Executive leadership endorsement and sponsorship of the award as the public sector go-

to-market strategy within first 10 days 

ii. Training and education of your national sales force with participation from the executive 

leadership of your company, along with the National IPA team within first 90 days 

 



NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT A- NATIONAL IPA RESPONSE FOR NATIONAL COOPERATIVE CONTRACT 

 

 

B. Provide a detailed ninety-day plan beginning from award date of the Master Agreement 

describing the strategy to market the Master Agreement to current Participating Public Agencies, 

existing Pubic Agency customers of Supplier, as well as to prospective Public Agencies 

nationwide immediately upon award, to include, but not limited to: 

i. Creation and distribution of a co-branded press release to trade publications within first 

10 days 

ii. Announcement, contract details and contact information published on the company 

website within first 30 days 

iii. Design, publication and distribution of co-branded marketing materials within first 90 

days 

iv. Commitment to attendance and participation with National IPA at national (i.e. NIGP 

Annual Forum, NPI Conference, etc.), regional (i.e. Regional NIGP Chapter Meetings, 

etc.) and supplier-specific trade shows, conferences and meetings throughout the term of 

the Master Agreement 

v. Commitment to attend, exhibit and participate at the NIGP Annual Forum in an area 

reserved by National IPA for partner suppliers.  Booth space will be purchased and 

staffed by your company.  In addition, you commit to provide reasonable assistance to 

the overall promotion and marketing efforts for the NIGP Annual Forum, as directed by 

National IPA. 

vi. Design and publication of national and regional advertising in trade publications 

throughout the term of the Master Agreement 

vii. Ongoing marketing and promotion of the Master Agreement throughout its term (case 

studies, collateral pieces, presentations, etc.) 

viii. Dedicated National IPA internet web-based homepage with: 

 National IPA standard logo; 

 Copy of original Request for Proposal; 

 Copy of contract and amendments between Principal Procurement Agency and 

Supplier; 

 Summary of Products and pricing; 

 Marketing Materials 

 Electronic link to National IPA’s online registration page; 

 A dedicated toll free number and email address for National IPA 

C. Describe how your company will transition any existing Public Agency customers’ accounts to the 

Master Agreement available nationally through National IPA. Include a list of current cooperative 

contracts (regional and national) your company holds and describe how the Master Agreement 

will be positioned among the other cooperative agreements. 

D. Acknowledge that your company agrees to provide its company/corporate logo(s) to National IPA 

and agrees to provide permission for reproduction of such logo in marketing communications and 

promotions. 

E. Supplier is responsible for proactive direct sales of Supplier’s goods and services to Public 

Agencies nationwide and the timely follow up to leads established by National IPA. All sales 

materials are to use the National IPA logo. At a minimum, the Supplier’s sales initiatives should 

communicate: 

i. Master Agreement was competitively solicited by a Principal Procurement Agency 

ii. Best government pricing 

iii. No cost to participate 

iv. Non-exclusive contract 

F.  Supplier is responsible for the training of its national sales force on the Master Agreement.  At a 

minimum, sales training should include: 

i. Key features of Master Agreement 

ii. Working knowledge of the solicitation process 

iii. Awareness of the range of Public Agencies that can utilize the Master Agreement 

through National IPA 

 

 

 

 



NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT A- NATIONAL IPA RESPONSE FOR NATIONAL COOPERATIVE CONTRACT 

 

G. Provide contact information for the person(s), who will be responsible for:  

i. Marketing 

ii. Sales 

iii. Sales Support 

iv. Financial Reporting 

v. Contracts 

H. Describe in detail how your company’s national sales force is structured, including contact 

information for the highest-level executive in charge of the sales team. 

I.  Explain in detail how the sales teams will work with the National IPA team to implement, grow 

and service the national program. 

J.  Explain in detail how your organization will manage the overall national program throughout the 

term of the Master Agreement, including ongoing coordination of marketing and sales efforts, 

timely new Participating Public Agency account set-up, etc. 

K.  State the amount of your company’s Public Agency sales for the previous fiscal year.  Provide a 

list of your top 10 Public Agency customers, the total purchases for each for the previous fiscal 

year along with a key contact for each. 

L. Describe your company’s information systems capabilities and limitations regarding order 

management through receipt of payment, including description of multiple platforms that may be 

used for any of these functions. 

M. Provide the Contract Sales (as defined in Section 10 of the National Intergovernmental 

Purchasing Alliance Company Administration Agreement) that your company will guarantee each 

year under the Master Agreement for the initial three years of the Master Agreement. 

 

$_______.00 in year one 

$_______.00 in year two 

$_______.00 in year three 

 

N. Even though it is anticipated that many Public Agencies will be able to utilize the Master 

Agreement without further formal solicitation, there may be circumstances where Public Agencies 

will issue their own solicitations. The following options are available when responding to a 

solicitation that is for Products covered under the Master Agreement.  

i. Respond with Master Agreement pricing (Contract Sales reported to National IPA). 

ii. If competitive conditions require pricing lower than the standard Master Agreement 

pricing, Supplier may respond with lower pricing through the Master Agreement. If 

Supplier is awarded the contract, the sales are reported as Contract Sales to National IPA 

under the Master Agreement.  

iii. Respond with pricing higher than Master Agreement only in the unlikely event that the 

Public Agency refuses to utilize Master Agreement. 

iv. If alternative or multiple proposals are permitted, respond with pricing higher than 

Master Agreement, and include Master Agreement as the alternate or additional 

proposal. 

 

Detail your strategies under these options when responding to a solicitation. 



Requirements for National Cooperative Contract 

Page 29 of 44 

NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT B-NATIONAL IPA ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT  

 

NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY 

ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT 
 

This ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT is made this ___ day of ______ 20___, between National 

Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance Company (“National IPA”), and ________________ (herein 

“Supplier”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

 WHEREAS, the _______________________ (herein “Principal Procurement Agency”) has 

entered into a Master Agreement dated _________________, Agreement No_______, by and 

between the Principal Procurement Agency and Supplier, (as may be amended from time to time in 

accordance with the terms thereof, the “Master Agreement”), for the purchase of 

___________________________ (herein “Product”); 

 

 WHEREAS, said Master Agreement provides that any or all public agencies, including state 

and local governmental entities, public and private primary, secondary and higher education entities, 

non-profit entities, and agencies for the public benefit (“Public Agencies”), that register with 

National IPA or otherwise execute a Master Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement 

(hereinafter referred to as a "Participating Public Agency") may purchase Product at prices stated in 

the Master Agreement; 

 

 WHEREAS, National IPA serves as the contract administrator for Principal Procurement 

Agency with regard to the Master Agreement, which is offered through National IPA to Public 

Agencies; 

 

 WHEREAS, Principal Procurement Agency desires National IPA to proceed with 

administration of the Master Agreement; and 

 

 WHEREAS, National IPA and Supplier desire to enter into this Agreement to make 

available the Master Agreement to Participating Public Agencies on a national basis and to set forth 

certain terms and conditions governing the relationship between National IPA and Supplier. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the payments to be made hereunder and the 

mutual covenants contained in this Agreement, National IPA and Supplier hereby agree as follows: 

 

DEFINITIONS 

 

 1. Capitalized terms used in this Agreement and not otherwise defined herein shall have 

the meanings given to them in the Master Agreement. 

 



NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT B- NATIONAL IPA ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 2. The Master Agreement, as attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by 

reference as though fully set forth herein, and the terms and conditions contained therein shall apply 

to this Agreement except as expressly changed or modified by this Agreement.  In the event of any 

conflict between the provisions of this Agreement and the Master Agreement, as between National 

IPA and Supplier the provisions of this Agreement shall prevail.  Supplier acknowledges and agrees 

that the covenants and agreements of Supplier set forth in the solicitation resulting in the Master 

Agreement are incorporated herein and are an integral part hereof. 

 

 3. National IPA shall be afforded all of the rights, privileges and indemnifications 

afforded to Principal Procurement Agency under the Master Agreement, and such rights, privileges 

and indemnifications shall accrue and apply with equal effect to National IPA, its agents, 

employees, directors, and representatives under this Agreement including, but not limited to, the 

Supplier’s obligation to provide appropriate insurance. 

 

 4. National IPA shall perform all of its duties, responsibilities and obligations as 

contract administrator under the Master Agreement as set forth herein, and Supplier hereby 

acknowledges and agrees that National IPA shall act in the capacity of contract administrator under 

the Master Agreement. 

 

 5. With respect to any purchases by Principal Procurement Agency or any Participating 

Public Agency pursuant to the Master Agreement, National IPA: (i) shall not be construed as a 

dealer, re-marketer, representative, partner or agent of any type of the Supplier, Principal 

Procurement Agency or such Participating Public Agency; (ii) shall not be obligated, liable or 

responsible for any order made by Principal Procurement Agency or any Participating Public 

Agency or any employee thereof under the Master Agreement or for any payment required to be 

made with respect to such order; and (iii) shall not be obligated, liable or responsible for any failure 

by Principal Procurement Agency or any Participating Public Agency to comply with procedures or 

requirements of applicable law or the Master Agreement or to obtain the due authorization and 

approval necessary to purchase under the Master Agreement. National IPA makes no representation 

or guaranty with respect to any minimum purchases by Principal Procurement Agency or any 

Participating Public Agency or any employee thereof under this Agreement or the Master 

Agreement. 

 

TERM OF AGREEMENT 

 

 6. This Agreement shall be in effect so long as the Master Agreement remains in effect, 

provided, however, that the provisions of paragraphs 3, 4 and 5 hereof and the indemnifications 

afforded by the Supplier to National IPA herein and in the Master Agreement shall survive the term 

of this Agreement. 

 

NATIONAL PROMOTION 

 

 7. National IPA and Supplier shall publicize and promote the availability of the Master 

Agreement’s products and services to Public Agencies and such agencies’ employees. Supplier’s 

failure to maintain its covenants and commitments contained in this Agreement or any action of the 

Supplier which gives rise to a right by Principal Procurement Agency to terminate the Master 

Agreement shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement and if not cured within thirty (30) 

days of written notice to Supplier shall be deemed a cause for termination of the Master Agreement 



NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT B- NATIONAL IPA ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT 

at Principal Procurement Agency’s sole discretion or this Agreement at National IPA’s sole 

discretion. 

 

 8. A copy of the Principal Procurement Agency Certificate executed by Principal 

Procurement Agency and an example of the Master Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement that is agreed to by each Participating Public Agency, which set forth the terms for their 

respective participation with National IPA, are attached hereto as Exhibit B and C, respectively. 

Supplier shall require each Participating Public Agency to register its participation in the National 

IPA program using the electronic registration feature at www.nationalipa.org prior to processing the 

Participating Public Agency’s first sales order.   

 

 9. Upon request, Supplier shall make available to interested Public Agencies a copy of 

the Master Agreement and such price lists or quotes as may be necessary for such Public Agencies 

to evaluate potential purchases. In addition, Supplier shall provide the marketing and administrative 

support set forth in the solicitation resulting in the Master Agreement, including assisting in 

development of marketing materials as reasonably requested by Principal Procurement Agency and 

National IPA. Supplier and National IPA shall provide each respective party with its logo and the 

standard terms of use for their general use in marketing the Master Agreement.  Both parties shall 

obtain approval from the other party prior to use of such logo. 

 

QUARTERLY FEES & MONTHLY REPORTING 

 

 10. Supplier shall pay National IPA an administrative fee in the amount of __% of the 

total purchase price paid to Supplier, less refunds, credits on returns, rebates and discounts, for the 

sale of products and/or services pursuant to the Master Agreement (as amended from time to time 

and including any renewal thereof) ("Contract Sales").  Supplier shall provide National IPA with an 

electronic accounting report, in Microsoft Excel, in the format prescribed by National IPA, on a 

monthly basis summarizing all Contract Sales for such month.  A sample of the Contract Sales 

reporting format is provided as Exhibit D, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  

 

 To the extent Supplier has guaranteed minimum Contract Sales pursuant to the terms of the 

Master Agreement in accordance with the terms of its proposal, the administrative fee shall be 

calculated based on the greater of the Contract Sales and the guaranteed Contract Sales set forth in 

Supplier's proposal. 

 

 11. Supplier shall maintain an accounting of all purchases made by Participating Public 

Agencies under the Master Agreement.  National IPA and Principal Procurement Agency reserve 

the right to audit the accounting for a period of four (4) years from the date National IPA receives 

the accounting. In the event of such an audit, Supplier shall provide all materials reasonably 

requested relating to such audit by Principal Procurement Agency or National IPA at the location 

designated by Principal Procurement Agency or National IPA.  In the event such audit reveals an 

underreporting of Contract Sales and a resulting underpayment of administrative fees, Supplier shall 

promptly pay National IPA the amount of such underpayment, together with interest on such amount 

in accordance with paragraph 12, and shall be obligated to reimburse National IPA's costs and 

expenses for such audit. 

 

 12. Reports of Contract Sales for Principal Procurement Agency and Participating Public 

Agencies in each calendar month shall be provided by Supplier to National IPA by the 10
th

 day of 

the following month.  Administrative fee payments are due within thirty (30) days after the end of 

each calendar quarter for Contract Sales during such quarter.  Administrative fee payments shall be 

http://www.nationalipa.org/


NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT B- NATIONAL IPA ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT 

accompanied by a report of Contract Sales for the quarter. Failure to provide a monthly report or 

payment of the administrative fees within the time and manner specified shall be regarded as a 

material breach under this Agreement and if not cured within thirty (30) days of written notice to 

Supplier shall be deemed a cause for termination of the Master Agreement at Principal Procurement 

Agency’s sole discretion or this Agreement at National IPA’s sole discretion. All administrative fees 

not paid when due shall bear interest at a rate equal to the lesser of 1 1/2% per month or the 

maximum rate permitted by law until paid in full. 

 

 13. National IPA or its designee may, in National IPA’s sole discretion, compare 

Participating Public Agency records with monthly reports submitted by Supplier. If there is a 

discrepancy, National IPA will notify the Supplier in writing. Supplier will have thirty (30) days 

from the date of such notice to resolve the discrepancy to National IPA’s reasonable satisfaction, 

including paying any administrative fee due and owing. If the Supplier does not so resolve the 

discrepancy, National IPA shall have the right to engage a third party to conduct an independent 

audit of Supplier’s monthly reports and Supplier shall be obligated to reimburse National IPA’s 

costs and expenses for such audit.  Should any audit reveal an underreporting of Contract Sales and 

a resulting underpayment of administrative fees, Supplier shall promptly pay National IPA the 

amount of such underpayment together with interest on such amount in accordance with 

paragraph 12. 

 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 14. This Agreement, the Master Agreement and the exhibits referenced herein supersede 

any and all other agreements, either oral or in writing, between the parties hereto with respect to the 

subject matter hereto and no other agreement, statement, or promise relating to the subject matter of 

this Agreement which is not contained or incorporated herein shall be valid or binding. 

 

 15. If any action at law or in equity is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of 

this Agreement or to recover any administrative fee and accrued interest, the prevailing party shall 

be entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees and costs in addition to any other relief to which it may be 

entitled. 

 

 16. This Agreement and National IPA’s rights and obligations hereunder may be 

assigned at National IPA’s sole discretion, to an existing or newly established legal entity that has 

the authority and capacity to perform National IPA’s obligations hereunder.  Supplier may not 

assign its obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of National IPA. 

 

 17. All written communications given hereunder shall be delivered by first-class mail, 

postage prepaid, or overnight delivery on receipt to the addresses as set forth below.  

 

A.  National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance Company 

 National IPA 

Attn: President 

1600 Westgate Circle 

Suite 275 

Brentwood, TN 37027 

 

B.  Principal Procurement Agency 

 

 



NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT B- NATIONAL IPA ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT 

 

C.  Supplier 

 

 

 18. If any provision of this Agreement shall be deemed to be, or shall in fact be, illegal, 

inoperative or unenforceable, the same shall not affect any other provision or provisions herein 

contained or render the same invalid, inoperative or unenforceable to any extent whatever. 

 

 19. This Agreement may not be effectively amended, changed, modified, or altered 

without the prior written consent of the parties hereto. 

 

 20. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon National IPA, 

the Supplier and any successor and assign thereto; subject, however, to the limitations contained 

herein. 

 

 

 

Authorized Signature, Supplier NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL 

PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY            

 

 

    

Signature   Signature  

 

    

Name  Name  

 

    

Title  Title 

 

    

Date  Date 
 

 



Requirements for National Cooperative Contract 

Page 34 of 44 

NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT C- NATIONAL IPA MASTER INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE PURCHASING 

AGREEMENT 

 

MASTER INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT 

 

This Agreement is made between certain government agencies that execute a Principal Procurement Agency 

Certificate (“Principal Procurement Agencies”) to be appended and made a part hereof and other public agencies 

(“Participating Public Agencies”) that register electronically with National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance 

Company (“National IPA”) or otherwise execute a Participating Public Agency Certificate to be appended and made a 

part hereof. 

 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, after a competitive solicitation and selection process by Principal Procurement Agencies, a 

number of Suppliers have entered into Master Agreements to provide a variety of goods, products and services based on 

national volumes (herein “Products”); 

 

WHEREAS, Master Agreements are made available by Principal Procurement Agencies through National IPA 

and provide that Participating Public Agencies may purchase Products on the same terms, conditions and pricing as the 

Principal Procurement Agency, subject to any applicable local purchasing ordinances and the laws of the State of 

purchase; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this agreement, and of the mutual 

benefits to result, the parties agree as follows: 

 

1. That each party will facilitate the cooperative procurement of Products. 

 

2. That the procurement of Products subject to this agreement shall be conducted in accordance with and 

subject to the relevant statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations that govern each party’s procurement 

practices. 

 

3. That the cooperative use of solicitations obtained by a party to this agreement shall be in accordance 

with the terms and conditions of the solicitation, except as modification of those terms and conditions 

is otherwise allowed or required by applicable law. 

 

4. That the Principal Procurement Agencies will make available, upon reasonable request and subject to 

convenience, information which may assist in improving the procurement of products by the 

Participating Public Agencies. 

 

5. That a procuring party will make timely payments to the Supplier for Products 

received in accordance with the terms and conditions of the procurement. Payment 

for Products and inspections and acceptance of Products ordered by the procuring 

party shall be the exclusive obligation of such procuring party. Disputes between 

procuring party and Supplier are to be resolved in accord with the law and venue 

rules of the State of purchase. 
 

6. The procuring party shall not use this agreement as a method for obtaining additional 

concessions or reduced prices for similar products or services. 

 

7. The procuring party shall be responsible for the ordering of Products under this 

agreement. A non-procuring party shall not be liable in any fashion for any violation 

by a procuring party, and the procuring party shall hold non-procuring party harmless 

from any liability that may arise from action or inaction of the procuring party. 
 

 



NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT C- NATIONAL IPA MASTER INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE PURCHASING 

AGREEMENT 

 

8. This agreement shall remain in effect until termination by a party giving 30 days written notice to the 

other party.  The provisions of paragraphs 5, 6 and 7 hereof shall survive any such termination. 

 

9. This agreement shall take effect after execution of the Principal Procurement Agency 

Certificate or Participating Public Agency Registration, as applicable. 
 



 

NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT D – PRINCIPAL PROCUREMENT AGENCY CERTIFICATE 

 

PRINCIPAL PROCUREMENT AGENCY CERTIFICATE 

 

I hereby acknowledge, on behalf of NAME OF PPA (“Principal Procurement Agency”), that I have 

read and agree to the general terms and conditions set forth in the enclosed Master 

Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement regulating the use of the Master Agreements 

and purchase of Products that from time to time are made available by Principal Procurement 

Agencies to Participating Public Agencies nationwide through National Intergovernmental 

Purchasing Alliance Company (“National IPA”).  

 

I understand that the purchase of one or more Products under the provisions of the Master 

Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement is at the sole and complete discretion of the 

Participating Public Agency. 

 

In its capacity as Principal Procurement Agency for National IPA, NAME OF PPA agrees to pursue 

Master Agreements for Products as specified in the attached exhibits to this agreement. 

 

 

 

Authorized Signature, Principal Procurement Agency     

 

 

   

Signature    

 

   

Name   

 

   

Title   

 

   

Date  
 

 

 



Requirements for National Cooperative Contract 

Page 37 of 44 

NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT E- NATIONAL IPA CONTRACT SALES REPORTING TEMPLATE 

(to be submitted electronically in Microsoft Excel format) 

National IPA Contract Sales Monthly/Quarterly Report 

Supplier Name:        

Contract Sales Report Month/Quarter:        

 

 

Participating Agency Name City State 
Zip 

Code 

Participating Agency #                        
{Assigned by National IPA and 

provided to Supplier} 

Contract 
Sales for 
Month ($) 

Admin Fee 
% Admin Fee $ 

                

                

                

                

                

                

                

                

                

                

                

                

                

                

                

                

                

    Report Totals      

    Cumulative Contract Sales     

 



Requirements for National Cooperative Contract 

Page 1 of 44 

NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT F- NATIONAL IPA ADVERTISING COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENT 

 

Pursuant to certain state notice provisions, including but not limited to Oregon Revised Statutes Chapter 279A.220, the 

following public agencies and political subdivisions of the referenced public agencies are eligible to register with 

National IPA and access the Master Agreement contract award made pursuant to this solicitation, and are hereby given 

notice of the foregoing request for proposals for purposes of complying with the procedural requirements of said statutes: 

 

Nationwide: 

 
State of Alabama* State of Hawaii State of Massachusetts State of New Mexico State of South 

Dakota 

State of Alaska State of Idaho State of Michigan State of New York State of Tennessee 

State of Arizona State of Illinois State of Minnesota State of North Carolina State of Texas 

State of Arkansas State of Indiana State of Mississippi State of North Dakota State of Utah 

State of California State of Iowa State of Missouri State of Ohio State of Vermont 

State of Colorado State of Kansas State of Montana State of Oklahoma* State of Virginia 

State of Connecticut State of Kentucky State of Nebraska State of Oregon State of 

Washington 

State of Delaware State of Louisiana State of Nevada State of Pennsylvania State of West 

Virginia 

State of Florida State of Maine State of New 

Hampshire 

State of Rhode Island State of Wisconsin 

State of Georgia State of Maryland State of New Jersey State of South Carolina State of Wyoming 

District of Columbia     

 

Lists of political subdivisions and local governments in the above referenced states / districts may be found at 

http://www.usa.gov/Agencies/State_and_Territories.shtml and http://www.usa.gov/Agencies/Local.shtml 

 

*Some public agencies and political subdivisions of these states may be restricted by state statutes that limit competition 

among cooperative purchasing organizations by only allowing use of purchasing cooperatives sponsored by certain 

National Associations.   

 

Certain Public Agencies and Political Subdivisions: 

 

Cities, Towns, Villages and Boroughs including but not limited to: 
BAKER CITY GOLF COURSE, OR 

CITY OF ADAIR VILLAGE, OR 

CITY OF ASHLAND, OR 

CITY OF AUMSVILLE, OR 

CITY OF AURORA, OR 

CITY OF BAKER, OR 

CITY OF BATON ROUGE, LA 

CITY OF BEAVERTON, OR 

CITY OF BEND, OR 

CITY OF BOARDMAN, OR 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LA 

CITY OF BURNS, OR 

CITY OF CANBY, OR 

CITY OF CANYONVILLE, OR 

CITY OF CLATSKANIE, OR 

CITY OF COBURG, OR 

CITY OF CONDON, OR 

CITY OF COQUILLE, OR 

CITY OF CORVALLI, OR 

CITY OF CORVALLIS PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT, OR 

http://www.usa.gov/Agencies/State_and_Territories.shtml
http://www.usa.gov/Agencies/Local.shtml


 

CITY OF COTTAGE GROVE, OR 

CITY OF EUGENE, OR 

CITY OF FOREST GROVE, OR 

CITY OF GRANTS PASS, OR 

CITY OF GRESHAM, OR 

CITY OF HILLSBORO, OR 

CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, OR 

CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU, HI 

CITY OF KENNER, LA 

CITY OF LA GRANDE, OR 

CITY OF LAFAYETTE, LA 

CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, OR 

CITY OF LEBANON, OR 

CITY OF MCMINNVILLE, OR 

CITY OF MEDFORD, OR 

CITY OF METAIRIE, LA 

CITY OF MILL CITY, OR 

CITY OF MILWAUKIE, OR 

CITY OF MONROE, LA 

CITY OF MOSIER, OR 

CITY OF NEW ORLEANS, LA 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OR 

CITY OF OREGON CITY, OR 

CITY OF PILOT ROCK, OR 

CITY OF PORTLAND, OR 

CITY OF POWERS, OR 

CITY OF PRINEVILLE, OR 

CITY OF RIDDLE, OR 

CITY OF ROSEBURG, OR 

CITY OF REDMOND, OR 

CITY OF SALEM, OR 

CITY OF SANDY, OR 

CITY OF SCAPPOOSE, OR 

CITY OF SHADY COVE, OR 

CITY OF SHERWOOD, OR 

CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LA 

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OR 

CITY OF ST. HELENS, OR 

CITY OF ST. PAUL, OR 

CITY OF TIGARD, OR 

CITY OF TROUTDALE, OR 

CITY OF TUALATIN, OR 

CITY OF WARRENTON, OR 

CITY OF WILSONVILLE, OR 

CITY OF WINSTON, OR 

LEAGUE OF OREGON CITES 

THE CITY OF HAPPY VALLEY OREGON 

 

Counties and Parishes including but not limited to: 
ASCENSION PARISH, LA 

ASSOCIATION OF OREGON COUNTIES 

BAKER COUNTY, OR 

BENTON COUNTY, OR 

BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY, OR 

CADDO PARISH, LA 

CALCASIEU PARISH, LA 

CALCASIEU PARISH SHERIFF’S OFFICE, LA 

CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU, HI 

CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OR 

CLACKAMAS COUNTY DEPT OF TRANSPORTATION, OR 

CLATSOP COUNTY, OR 



 

COLUMBIA COUNTY, OR 

COOS COUNTY, OR 

COOS COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT, OR 

COUNTY OF HAWAII, OR 

CROOK COUNTY, OR 

CROOK COUNTY ROAD DEPARTMENT, OR 

CURRY COUNTY, OR 

DESCHUTES COUNTY, OR 

DOUGLAS COUNTY, OR 

EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH, LA 

GILLIAM COUNTY, OR 

GRANT COUNTY, OR 

HARNEY COUNTY, OR 

HARNEY COUNTY SHERIFFS OFFICE, OR 

HAWAII COUNTY, HI 

HOOD RIVER COUNTY, OR 

JACKSON COUNTY, OR 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, OR 

JEFFERSON PARISH, LA 

JOSEPHINE COUNTY GOVERNMENT, OR 

LAFAYETTE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT, LA 

LAFAYETTE PARISH, LA 

KAUAI COUNTY, HI 

KLAMATH COUNTY, OR 

LAKE COUNTY, OR 

LANE COUNTY, OR 

LINCOLN COUNTY, OR 

LINN COUNTY, OR 

LIVINGSTON PARISH, LA 

MALHEUR COUNTY, OR 

MAUI COUNTY, HI 

MARION COUNTY, SALEM, OR 

MORROW COUNTY, OR 

MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OR 

MULTNOMAH COUNTY BUSINESS AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, OR 

MULTNOMAH COUNTY SHERIFFS OFFICE, OR 

MULTNOMAH LAW LIBRARY, OR 

ORLEANS PARISH, LA 

PLAQUEMINES PARISH, LA 

POLK COUNTY, OR 

RAPIDES PARISH, LA 

SAINT CHARLES PARISH, LA 

SAINT LANDRY PARISH, LA 

SAINT TAMMANY PARISH, LA 

SHERMAN COUNTY, OR 

TERREBONNE PARISH, LA 

TILLAMOOK COUNTY, OR 

TILLAMOOK COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE, OR 

UMATILLA COUNTY, OR 

UNION COUNTY, OR 

WALLOWA COUNTY, OR 

WASCO COUNTY, OR 

WASHINGTON COUNTY, OR 

WEST BATON ROUGE PARISH, LA 

WHEELER COUNTY, OR 

YAMHILL COUNTY, OR 

 

Other Agencies including Associations, Boards, Districts, Commissions, Councils, Public Corporations, Public 

Development Authorities, Reservations and Utilities including but not limited to: 
BEND METRO PARK AND RECREATION DISTRICT 

BOARDMAN PARK AND RECREATION DISTRICT 



 

CENTRAL OREGON INTERGOVERNMENTAL COUNCIL 

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER 

CLATSKANIE PEOPLE'S UTILITY DISTRICT 

CLEAN WATER SERVICES 

CONFEDERATED TRIBES OF THE UMATILLA INDIAN RESERVATION 

COOS FOREST PROTECTIVE ASSOCIATION 

CHEHALEM PARK AND RECREATION DISTRICT 

EUGENE WATER AND ELECTRIC BOARD 

HOODLAND FIRE DISTRICT #74 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF PORTLAND 

ILLINOIS VALLEY FIRE DISTRICT 

LAFAYETTE AIRPORT COMMISSION, LA 

LOUISIANA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION, LA 

MEDFORD WATER COMMISSION 

METRO REGIONAL GOVERNMENT 

METRO REGIONAL PARKS 

METROPOLITAN EXPOSITION RECREATION COMMISSION 

METROPOLITAN SERVICE DISTRICT (METRO) 

PORTLAND DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION, OR 

OREGON COAST COMMUNITY ACTION 

OREGON HOUSING AND COMMUNITY SERVICES 

OREGON LEGISLATIVE ADMINISTRATION 

SOUTHEASTERN LOUISIANAN UNIVERSITY 

TRI-COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT OF OREGON 

TUALATIN HILLS PARK & RECREATION DISTRICT 

TUALATIN VALLEY FIRE & RESCUE 

WILLAMALANE PARK AND RECREATION DISTRICT 

WILLAMETTE HUMANE SOCIETY 

 

 

K-12 including but not limited to: 
BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BEND-LA PINE SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BROOKING HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.17-C 

CADDO PARISH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

CALCASIEU PARISH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

CANBY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

CANYONVILLE CHRISTIAN ACADEMY 

CASCADES ACADEMY OF CENTRAL OREGON 

CENTENNIAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

CENTRAL CATHOLIC HIGH SCHOOL 

CENTRAL POINT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.6 

CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 13J 

COOS BAY SC'HOOL DISTRICT NO.9 

COUNTY OF YAMHILL SCHOOL DISTRICT 29 

CULVER SCHOOL DISTRICT  

DALLAS SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.2 

DAVID DOUGLAS SCHOOL DISTRICT 

DAYTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.8 

DE LA SALLE N CATHOLIC HS 

DESCHUTES COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.6 

DUFUR SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.29 

EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

ESTACADA SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.10B 

FOREST GROVE SCHOOL DISTRICT 

GEORGE MIDDLE SCHOOL 

GLADSTONE SCHOOL DISTRICT 

GRANTS PASS SCHOOL DISTRICT 7 

GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT 

HEAD START OF LANE COUNTY 

HIGH DESERT EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 



 

HILLSBORO SCHOOL DISTRICT 

HOOD RIVER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

JACKSON CO SCHOOL DIST NO.9 

JEFFERSON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 509-J 

JEFFERSON PARISH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

JEFFERSON SCHOOL DISTRICT 

KLAMATH FALLS CITY SCHOOLS 

LAFAYETTE PARISH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

LAKE OSWEGO SCHOOL DISTRICT 7J 

LANE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 4J 

LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

LINN CO. SCHOOL DlST. 95C 

LIVINGSTON PARISH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

LOST RIVER JR/SR HIGH SCHOOL 

LOWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.71 

MARION COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MARION COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 103 

MCMINNVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT NOAO 

MEDFORD SCHOOL DISTRICT 549C 

MITCH CHARTER SCHOOL 

MONROE SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1J 

MUL TNOMAH EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 

MULTISENSORY LEARNING ACADEMY 

NEAH-KAH-NIE DISTRICT NO.56 

NESTUCCA VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.101 

NOBEL LEARNING COMMUNITIES 

NORTH BEND SCHOOL DISTRICT 13 

NORTH CLACKAMAS SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NORTH WASCO CTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 21 

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 

ONTARIO MIDDLE SCHOOL 

OREGON TRAIL SCHOOL DISTRICT NOA6 

ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

PHOENIX-TALENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NOA 

PORTLAND JEWISH ACADEMY 

PORTLAND PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

RAPIDES PARISH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

REDMOND SCHOOL DISTRICT 

REYNOLDS SCHOOL DISTRICT 

ROGUE RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.35 

ROSEBURG PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

SCAPPOOSE SCHOOL DISTRICT 1J 

SEASIDE SCHOOL DISTRICT 10 

SHERWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT 88J 

SILVER FALLS SCHOOL DISTRICT 4J 

SOUTH LANE SCHOOL DISTRICT 45J3 

SOUTHERN OREGON EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 

SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.19 

SWEET HOME SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.55 

TERREBONNE PARISH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

THE CATLIN GABEL SCHOOL 

TIGARD-TUALATIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

UMATILLA MORROW ESD 

WEST LINN WILSONVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT 

WILLAMETTE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 

WOODBURN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

YONCALLA SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.32 

 

  

Higher Education 
ARGOSY UNIVERSITY 



 

BATON ROUGE COMMUNITY COLLEGE, LA 

BIRTHINGWAY COLLEGE OF MIDWIFERY 

BLUE MOUNTAIN COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

BRIGHAM YOUNG UNIVERSITY - HAWAII 

CENTRAL OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

CHEMEKETA COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

CLACKAMAS COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

COLLEGE OF THE MARSHALL ISLANDS 

COLUMBIA GORGE COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - PORTLAND 

GEORGE FOX UNIVERSITY 

KLAMATH COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

LANE COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

LEWIS AND CLARK COLLEGE 

LINFIELD COLLEGE 

LINN-BENTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

LOUISIANA COLLEGE, LA 

MARYLHURST UNIVERSITY 

MT. HOOD COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

MULTNOMAH BIBLE COLLEGE 

NATIONAL COLLEGE OF NATURAL MEDICINE 

NORTHWEST CHRISTIAN COLLEGE 

OREGON HEALTH AND SCIENCE UNIVERSITY 

OREGON UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 

PACIFIC UNIVERSITY 

PIONEER PACIFIC COLLEGE 

PORTLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

PORTLAND STATE UNIVERSITY 

REED COLLEGE 

RESEARCH CORPORATION OF THE UNIVERSITY OF HAWAII 

ROGUE COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

SOUTHERN OREGON UNIVERSITY (OREGON UNIVERSITY SYSTEM) 

SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

TULANE UNIVERSITY 

TILLAMOOK BAY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

UMPQUA COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

UNIVERSITY OF HAWAII BOARD OF REGENTS 

UNIVERSITY OF OREGON-GRADUATE SCHOOL 

UNIVERSITY OF PORTLAND 

UNIVERSITY OF NEW ORLEANS 

WESTERN OREGON UNIVERSITY 

WESTERN STATES CHIROPRACTIC COLLEGE 

WILLAMETTE UNIVERSITY 

XAVIER UNIVERISTY 

 

State Agencies 
ADMIN. SERVICES OFFICE 

BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS 

HAWAII CHILD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT AGENCY 

HAWAII DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

HAWAII HEALTH SYSTEMS CORPORATION 

OFFICE OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS 

OFFICE OF THE STATE TREASURER 

OREGON BOARD OF ARCHITECTS 

OREGON CHILD DEVELOPMENT COALITION 

OREGON DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 

OREGON DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY 

OREGON DEPT OF TRANSPORTATION 

OREGON DEPT. OF EDUCATION 

OREGON LOTTERY 

OREGON OFFICE OF ENERGY 



 

OREGON STATE BOARD OF NURSING 

OREGON STATE DEPT OF CORRECTIONS 

OREGON STATE POLICE 

OREGON TOURISM COMMISSION 

OREGON TRAVEL INFORMATION COUNCIL 

SANTIAM CANYON COMMUNICATION CENTER 

SEIU LOCAL 503, OPEU 

SOH- JUDICIARY CONTRACTS AND PURCH 

STATE DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE 

STATE OF HAWAII 

STATE OF HAWAII 

STATE OF HAWAII, DEPT. OF EDUCATION 

STATE OF LOUISIANA 

STATE OF LOUISIANA DEPT. OF EDUCATION 

 

 











































































































































































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   

ARF-2025     Regular Agenda Item      3. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/03/2013  

Submitted For: Jeffrey
Hessenius

Submitted By: Dana Sgroi, Contracts Support
Specialist, Finance Department

Department: County Manager
Fiscal Year: 2013-2014 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

08-31-13 to
08-31-2028

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Contract ADES14-051775 for Vending Services Grantor Agreement.

Background Information
Gila County provides a beverage vending machine for the public's use and employee
use on the first floor of the Globe Courthouse. Gila County desires to provide a
vending snack machine on the first floor of the Globe Courthouse, next to the existing
beverage vending machine, that will provide snacks to the public and the employees of
Gila County.

Evaluation
Due to long hours for court hearings, people cannot leave the building to get
something to eat, in fear of missing their court date. Numerous people have inquired
of the receptionist if there are any vending snack machines located in the Courthouse.
As a convenience to the public awaiting trials and to the employees of Gila County, a
vending snack machine will be placed on the first floor of the Courthouse. 

The Randolph-Sheppard Act (Public Law 93-516) was enacted in 1936 to enhance
employment opportunities for trained, licensed blind persons to operate facilities. The
law was subsequently amended in 1954 and again in 1974 to ultimately ensure
individuals who are blind, a priority in the operation of vending facilities, which
include automatic vending machines. Under the Randolph-Sheppard program, state
licensing agencies recruit, train, license and place individuals who are blind, as
operators of vending facilities. 

Rehabilitation Services Administration (RSA) is the administration within the
Department of Economic Security, that provides Vocational Rehabilitation (VR)
services and Independent Living (IL) services to individuals with various disabilities.
Business Enterprise Program (BEP), as part of RSA, licenses individuals who are
legally blind to operate food service businesses throughout the State of Arizona. Per
the Arizona Revised Statute A.R.S. §23-504, BEP Operators have priority for
merchandising business on State, County, or other local government property. 



In accordance with the Randolph-Sheppard Act (Public Law 93-516), and A.R.S.
§23-504, the County will enter into an agreement with the Arizona Department of
Economic Security/Rehabilitation Services Administration/Business Enterprise
Program to utilize the services provided by the Business Enterprise Program to
arrange an automated snack vending machine to be installed and serviced by a BEP
Operator. 

Conclusion
The County desires to enter into an agreement with the Arizona Department of
Economic Security/Rehabilitation Services Administration/Business Enterprise
Program to utilize the services provided by the Business Enterprise Program to
arrange an automated snack vending machine to be installed and serviced by a BEP
Operator. 

By entering into this agreement, it will not only accommodate the public and Gila
County employees, but will provide aide to a noteworthy program, which helps with
the advancement of vocational rehabilitation and supports independent living for
disabled individuals, through hiring licensed individuals who are legally blind, to
operate the vending machine.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors enter into an agreement with the
Arizona Department of Economic Security/Rehabilitation Services
Administration/Business Enterprise Program to utilize the services provided by the
Business Enterprise Program to arrange an automated snack vending machine to be
installed and serviced by a BEP Operator.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Vending Services Grantor Agreement
(Contract No. ADES14-051775) with the Arizona Department of Economic
Security/Rehabilitation Services Administration/Business Enterprise Program (BEP)
to utilize the services provided by BEP, to arrange for an automated snack vending
machine on the 2nd floor, main lobby of the Gila County Courthouse that will be
installed and serviced by a BEP Operator.  Said Agreement will expire on August 31,
2028.  (Jeff Hessenius)

Attachments
Grantor Agreement - Governmental Entities
Attachment 1-Facility Location
The Randolph-Sheppard Act
A.R.S. 23-504
Legal Explanation



















The Randolph-Sheppard Act 

AS AMENDED AND AS CODIFIED AT CHAPTER 6A OF TITLE 20 OF 
THE U.S. CODE 

CHAPTER 6A-VENDING FACILITIES FOR BLIND IN FEDERAL 
BUILDINGS 

   

 
 

CHAPTER 6A - Vending facilities for blind in federal buildings  

SEC 107. Operation of vending facilities authorized; preferences 
regulations; justification for limitation on such operation. 

107a. Federal and State responsibilities.  

107b. Application for designation as State licensing agency; cooperation 
with Secretary; furnishing initial stock.  

107b-1. Access to information with State licensing agencies; election and 
responsibilities of Committee of Blind Vendors. 

107b-3. Audit of nonappropriated fund activities.  

107d. Expenditures for personal services, rent, printing, etc.; preference to 
blind persons.  

107d-1. Grievances of blind licensees; hearing and arbitration; 
noncompliance by federal departments and agencies; complaints by state 
licensing agencies; arbitration. 

107d-2. Arbitration. 107d-3. Vending machine income. 

107d-4. Training programs for maximum vocational potential for blind. 

107e. Definitions. 



107f. Appropriations. 

   

 
 

107. Operation of vending facilities authorized; preferences regulations; 
justification for limitation on such operation.  

a.     For the purposes of providing blind persons with remunerative 
employment, enlarging the economic opportunities of the blind, and 
stimulating the blind to greater efforts in striving to make themselves self-
supporting, blind persons licensed under the provisions of this chapter 
shall be authorized to operate vending facilities on any Federal property.  

b.    In authorizing the operation of vending facilities on Federal property, 
priority shall be given to blind persons licensed by a State agency as 
provided in this chapter; and the Secretary, through the Commissioner, 
shall, after consultation with the Administrator of General Services and 
other heads of departments, agencies, or instrumentalities of the United 
States in control of the maintenance, operation, and protection of Federal 
property, prescribe regulations designed to assure that--  

(1) the priority under this subsection is given to such licensed blind 
persons (including assignment of vending machine income pursuant to 
section 107d-3 of this title to achieve and protect such priority), and  

(2) wherever feasible, one or more vending facilities are established on all 
Federal property to the extent that any such facility or facilities would not 
adversely affect the interests of the United States. Any limitation on the 
placement or operation of a vending facility based on a finding that such 
placement or operation would adversely affect the interests of the United 
States shall be fully justified in writing to the Secretary, who shall 
determine whether such limitation is justified. A determination made by 
the Secretary pursuant to this provision shall be binding on any 
department, agency, or instrumentality of the United States affected by 
such determination. The Secretary shall publish such determination, along 
with supporting documentation, in the Federal Register.  

107a. Federal and State responsibilities  



a.     Functions of Secretary; surveys; designation of State licensing 
agencies; qualifications for license; evaluation of program. The Secretary 
of Education shall--  

(1) Insure that the Rehabilitation Services Administration is the principal 
agency for carrying out this chapter; and the Commissioner shall, within 
one hundred and eighty days after December 7, 1974, establish require- 
ments for the uniform application of this chapter by each State agency 
designated under paragraph (5) of this subsection, including appropriate 
accounting procedures, policies on the selection and establishment of 
new vending facilities, distribution of income to blind vendors, and the use 
and control of set-aside funds under section 107b(3) of this title;  

(2) Through the Commissioner, make annual surveys of con- cession 
vending opportunities for blind persons on Federal and other property in 
the United States, particularly with respect to Federal property under the 
control of the General Services Administration, the Department of 
Defense, and the United States Postal Service;  

(3) Make surveys throughout the United States of industries with a view to 
obtaining information that will assist blind persons to obtain employment;  

(4) Make available to the public, and especially to persons with 
organizations engaged in work for the blind, information obtained as a 
result of such surveys;  

(5) Designate as provided in Section 107b of this title the State agency for 
the blind in each State, or, in any State in which there is no such agency, 
some other public agency to issue licenses to blind persons who are 
citizens of the United States for the operating of vending facilities on 
Federal and other property in such State for the vending of newspapers, 
periodicals, confections, tobacco products, foods, beverages, and other 
articles or services dispensed automatically or manually and prepared on 
or off the premises in accordance with all applicable health laws, as 
determined by the State licensing agency, and including the vending or 
exchange of chances for any lottery authorized by State law and 
conducted by an agency of a state; and  

(6) Through the Commission, (A) conduct periodic evaluations of the 
program authorized by this chapter, including upward mobility and other 
training required by section 107d-4 of this title, and annually submit to the 



appropriate committees of Congress a report based on such evaluations, 
and (B) take such other steps, including the issuance of such rules and 
regulations, as may be necessary or desirable in carrying out the 
provisions of this chapter.  

b.    Duty of State licensing agencies to prefer blind The State licensing 
agency shall, in issuing each such license for the operation of a vending 
facility, give preference to blind persons who are in need of employment. 
Each such license shall be issued for an indefinite period but may be 
terminated by the State licensing agency if it is satisfied that the facility is 
not being operated in accordance with the rules and regulations 
prescribed by such licensing agency. Such licenses shall be issued only 
to applicants who are blind within the meaning of section 107e of this title.  

c.     Selection of location and type of facility The State licensing agency 
designated by the Secretary is authorized, with the approval of the head 
of the department or agency in control of the maintenance, operation, and 
protection of the Federal property on which the facility is to be located but 
subject to regulations pre- scribed pursuant to section 107 of this title, to 
select a location for such facility and the type of facility to be provided.  

d.    Buildings occupied by United States departments, agencies, and 
instrumentalities required to provide sites for facilities; exceptions  

(1) After January 1, 1975, no department, agency, or instrumentality of the 
United States shall undertake to acquire by ownership, rent, lease, or to 
otherwise occupy, in whole or in part, any building unless, after 
consultation with the head of such department, agency, or instrumentality 
and the state licensing agency, it is determined by the Secretary that (A) 
such building includes a satisfactory site or sites for the location and 
operation of a vending facility by a blind person, or (B) if a building is to be 
constructed, substantially altered, or renovated, or in the case of a 
building that is already occupied on such date by such department, 
agency, or instrumentality, is to be substantially altered or renovated for 
use by such department, agency, or instrumentality, the design for such 
construction, substantial alteration, or renovation includes a satisfactory 
site or sites for the location and operation of a vending facility by a blind 
person. Each such department, agency, or instrumentality shall provide 
notice to the appropriate State licensing agency of its plans for 
occupation, acquisition, renovation, or relocation of a building adequate to 



permit such State agency to determine whether such building includes a 
satisfactory site or sites for a vending facility.  

(2) The provisions of paragraph (1) shall not apply (A) when the Secretary 
and the State licensing agency determine that the number of people using 
the property is or will be insufficient to support a vending facility, or (B) to 
any privately owned building, any part of which is leased by any 
department, agency, or instrumentality of the United States and in which, 
(i) prior to the execution of such lease, the lessor or any of his tenants had 
in operation a restaurant or other food facility in a part of the building not 
included in such lease, and (ii) the operation of such a vending facility by 
a blind person would be in proximate and substantial direct competition 
with such restaurant or other food facility except that each such 
department, agency, and instrumentality shall make every effort to lease 
property in privately owned buildings capable of accommodating a 
vending facility.  

(3) For the purposes of this subsection, the term "satisfactory site" means 
an area determined by the Secretary to have sufficient space, electrical 
and plumbing outlets, and such other facilities as the Secretary may by 
regulation prescribe, for the location and operation of a vending facility by 
a blind person. (e) State licensing agency in states having vocational 
rehabilitation plans In any State having an approved plan for vocational 
rehabilitation pursuant to the Vocational Rehabilitation Act or the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the State licensing agency designated under 
paragraph (5) of subsection (a) of this section shall be the State agency 
designated under section 721(a)(1)(A) of Title 29.  

107b. Application for designation as State licensing agency; cooperation 
with Secretary; furnishing initial stock A State agency for the blind or other 
State agency desiring to be designated as the licensing agency shall, with 
the approval of the chief executive of the State, make application to the 
Secretary and agree--  

1.    To cooperate with the Secretary in carrying out the purpose of this 
chapter;  

2.    To provide for each licensed blind person such vending facility 
equipment, and adequate initial stock of suitable articles to be vended 
there from, as may be necessary: Provided, however, that such 



equipment and stock may be owned by the licensing agency for use of the 
blind, or by the blind individual to whom the license is issued; And 
provided further, that if ownership of such equipment is vested in the blind 
licensee, (A) the State licensing agency shall retain a first option to 
repurchase such equipment and (B) in the event such individual dies or 
for any other reason ceases to be a licensee or transfers to another 
vending facility, ownership of such equipment shall become vested in the 
State licensing agency (for transfer to a successor licensee) subject to an 
obligation on the part of the State licensing agency to pay to such 
individual (or to his estate) the fair value of his interest therein as later 
determined in accordance with regulations of the State licensing agency 
and after opportunity for a fair hearing;  

3.    that if any funds are set aside, or caused to be set aside, from the net 
proceeds of the operation of the vending facilities such funds shall be set 
aside, or caused to be set aside, only to the extent necessary for and may 
be used only for the purposes of (A) maintenance and replacement of 
equipment; (B) the purchase of new equipment; (C) management 
services; (D) assuring a fair minimum return to operators of vending 
facilities; and (E) retirement or pension funds, health insurance 
contributions, and provision for paid sick leave and vacation time, if it is 
determined by a majority vote of blind licensees licensed by such State 
agency, after such agency provides to each such licensee full information 
on all matters relevant to such proposed program, that funds under this 
paragraph shall be set aside for such purposes: Provided, however, that 
in no event shall the amount of such funds to be set aside from the net 
proceeds of any vending facility exceed a reasonable amount which shall 
be determined by the Secretary;  

4.    to make sure reports in such form and containing such information as 
the Secretary may from time to time require and to comply with such 
provisions as he may from time to time find necessary to assure the 
correctness and verification of such reports;  

5.    to issue such regulations, consistent with the provisions of this chapter, 
as may be necessary for the operation of this program;  

6.    to provide to any blind licensee dissatisfied with any action arising from 
the operation or administration of the vending facility program an 
opportunity for a fair hearing, and to agree to submit the grievances of any 



blind licensee not otherwise resolved by such hearing to arbitration as 
provided in section 107d-1 of this title.  

107b-1. Access to information with State licensing agencies; election and 
responsibilities of Committee of Blind Vendors In addition to other 
requirements imposed in this title and in this chapter upon State licensing 
agencies, such agencies shall 

1.    provide to each blind licensee access to all relevant financial data, 
including quarterly and annual financial reports, on the operation of the 
State vending facility program;  

2.    conduct the biennial election of a Committee of Blind Vendors who 
shall be fully representative of all blind licensees in the State program, 
and  

3.    insure that such committee's responsibilities include (A) participation, 
with the State agency, in major administrative decisions and policy and 
program development, (B) receiving grievances of blind licensees and 
serving as advocates for such licensees, (C) participation, with the State 
agency, in the development and administration of a transfer and 
promotion system for blind licensees, (D) participation, with the State 
agency, in developing training and retraining programs, and (E) 
sponsorship, with the assistance of the State agency, of meetings and 
instructional conferences for blind licensees.  

107b-2. Omitted.  

107b-3. Audit of nonappropriated fund activities The Comptroller General 
is authorized to conduct regular and periodic audits of all nonappropriated 
fund activities which receive income from vending machines on Federal 
property, under such rules and regulations as he may prescribe. In the 
conduct of such audits he and his duly authorized representatives shall 
have access to any relevant books, documents, papers, accounts, and 
records of such activities as he deems necessary.  

107c. Repealed, Pub.L. 93-516, Title II, 205, Dec. 7, 1974, 88 Stat. 1626  

107d. Expenditures for personal services, rent, printing, etc.; preference to 
blind persons (a) The Secretary is authorized to make such expenditures 
out of any money appropriated therefore (including expenditures for 



personal services and rent at the seat of government and elsewhere, 
books of reference and periodicals, for printing and binding, and for 
traveling expenses) as he may deem necessary to carry out the 
provisions of this chapter. (b) The Secretary shall, in employing such 
additional personnel as may be necessary, give preference to blind 
persons who are capable of discharging the required duties.  

107d-1. Grievances of blind licensees; hearing and arbitration; non- 
compliance by federal departments and agencies; complaints by state 
licensing agencies; arbitration  

a.     Any blind licensee who is dissatisfied with any action arising from the 
operation or administration of the vending facility program may submit to a 
State licensing agency a request for a full evidentiary hearing, which shall 
be provided by such agency in accordance with section 107b(6) of this 
title. If such blind licensee is dissatisfied with any action taken or decision 
rendered as a result of such hearing, he may file a complaint with the 
Secretary who shall convene a panel to arbitrate the dispute pursuant to 
section 107d-2 of this title, and the decision of such panel shall be final 
and binding on the parties except as otherwise provided in this chapter.  

(b) Whenever any State licensing agency determines that any 
department, agency, or instrumentality of the United States that has 
control of the maintenance, operation, and protection of Federal property 
is failing to comply with the provisions of this chapter or any regulations 
issued thereunder (including a limitation on the place- ment or operation 
of a vending facility as described in section 107(b) of this title and the 
Secretary's determination thereon) such licensing agency may file a 
complaint with the Secretary who shall convene a panel to arbitrate the 
dispute pursuant to section 107d-2 of this title, and the decision of such 
panel shall be final and binding on the partied except as otherwise 
provided in this chapter.  

107d-2 Arbitration 

a.     Notice and hearing Upon receipt of a complaint filed under section 
107d-1 of this title, the Secretary shall convene an ad hoc arbitration 
panel as provided in subsection (b) of this section. Such panel shall, in 
accordance with the provisions of subchapter II of chapter 5 of Title 5, 
give notice, conduct a hearing, and render its decision which shall be 



subject to appeal and review as a final agency action for purposes of 
chapter 7 of such Title 5.  

b.    Composition of panel; designation of chairman; termination of 
violations  

1.    The arbitration panel convened by the Secretary to hear grievances of 
blind licensees shall be com- posed of three members appointed as 
follows: (A) one individual designated by the State licensing agency; (B) 
one individual designated by the blind licensee; and (C) one individual, not 
employed by the State licensing agency or, where appropriate, its parent 
agency, who shall serve as chairman, jointly designated by the members 
appointed under subparagraphs (A) and (B). If any party fails to designate 
a member under subparagraph (1) (A), (B), or (C), the Secretary shall 
designate such member on behalf of such party.  

2.    The arbitration panel convened by the Secretary to hear complaints 
filed by a State licensing agency shall be composed of three members 
appointed as follows: (A) one individual, designated by the State licensing 
agency; (B) one individual, designated by the head of the Federal 
department, agency, or instrumentality controlling the Federal property 
over which the dispute arose; and (C) one individual, not employed by the 
Federal department, agency, or instrumentality controlling the Federal 
property over which the dispute arose, who shall serve as chairman, 
jointly designated by the members appointed under subparagraphs (A) 
and (B). If any party fails to designate a member under sub- paragraph (2) 
(A), (B), or (C), the Secretary shall designate such member on behalf of 
such party. If the panel appointed pursuant to paragraph (2) finds that the 
acts or practices of any such department, agency, or instrumentality are in 
violation of this chapter, or any regulation issued thereunder, the head of 
any such department, agency, or instrumentality shall cause such acts or 
practices to be terminated promptly and shall take such other action as 
may be necessary to carry out the decision of the panel.  

a.     Publication of decision in Federal Register: The decisions of a panel 
convened by the Secretary pursuant to this section shall be matters of 
public record and shall be published in the Federal Register.  



b.    Payment of costs by the Secretary: The Secretary shall pay all 
reasonable costs of arbitration under this section in accordance with a 
schedule of fees and expenses he shall publish in the Federal Register.  

107d-3. Vending machine income  

(a) Accrual to blind licensee and alternatively to state agency; ceiling on 
amount for individual licensee In accordance with the provisions of 
subsection (b) of this section, vending machine income obtained from the 
operation of vending machines on Federal property shall accrue (1) to the 
blind licensee operating a vending facility on such property, or (2) in the 
event there is no blind licensee operating such facility on such property, to 
the State agency in whose State the Federal property is located, for the 
uses designated in subsection (c) of this section, except that with respect 
to income which accrues under clause (1) of this subsection, the 
Commissioner may prescribe regulations imposing a ceiling on income 
from such vending machines for an individual blind licensee. In the event 
such a ceiling is imposed, no blind licensee shall receive less vending 
machine income under such ceiling than he was receiving on January 1, 
1974. No limitation shall be imposed on income from vending machines, 
combined to create a vending facility, which are maintained, serviced, or 
operated by a blind licensee. Any amounts received by a blind licensee 
that are in excess of the amount permitted to accrue to him under any 
ceiling imposed by the Commissioner shall be disbursed to the 
appropriate State Agency under clause (2) of this subsection and shall be 
used by such agency in accordance with subsection (c) of this section.  

(b) Direct competition between vending machine and vending facility, 
proportion of accrued income from such vending machines for individual 
licensee. (1) After January 1, 1975, 100 per centum of all vending 
machine income from vending machines on Federal property which are in 
direct competition with a blind vending facility shall accrue as specified in 
subsection (a) of this section. "Direct competition" as used in this section 
means the existence of any vending machines or facilities operated on the 
same premises as a blind vending facility except that vending machines or 
facilities operated in areas serving employees the majority of whom 
normally do not have access to the blind vending facility shall not be 
considered in direct competition with the blind vending facility. After 
January 1, 1975, 50 per centum of all vending machine income from 
vending machines on Federal property which are not in direct competition 



with a blind vending facility shall accrue as specified in subsection (a) of 
this section, except that with respect to Federal property at which at least 
50 per centum of the total hours worked on the premises occurs during 
periods other than normal working hours, 30 per centum of such income 
shall so accrue. (2) The head of each department, agency, and 
instrumentality of the United States shall insure compliance with this 
section with respect to buildings, installations, and facilities under his 
control, and shall be responsible for collection of, and accounting for, such 
vending machine income.  

(c) Disposal of accrued vending machine income by state licensing 
agency All vending machine income which accrues to a State licensing 
agency pursuant to subsection (a) of this section shall be used to 
establish retirement or pension plans, for health insurance contributions, 
and for provision of paid sick leave and vacation time for blind licensees in 
such State, subject to a vote of blind licensees as provided under section 
107b(3)(E) of this title. Any vending machine income remaining after 
application of the first sentence of this subsection shall be used for the 
purposes specified in sections 107b(3)(A),(B),(C), and (D) of this title, and 
any assessment charged to blind licensees by a State licensing agency 
shall be reduced pro rata in an amount equal to the total of such 
remaining vending machine income.  

(d) Income from vending machines in certain locations excepted 
Subsections (a) and (b)(1) of this section shall not apply to income from 
vending machines within retail outlets under the control of exchange or 
ships' stores systems authorized by Title 10, or to income from vending 
machines operated by the Veterans Canteen Service, or to income from 
vending machines not in direct competition with a blind vending facility at 
individual locations, installations, or facilities on Federal property the total 
of which at such individual locations, installations, or facilities does not 
exceed $3,000 annually.  

(e) Regulations establishing priority for operation of cafeterias The 
Secretary, through the Commissioner, shall prescribe regulations to 
establish a priority for the operation of cafeterias on Federal property by 
blind licensees when he determines, on an individual basis and after 
consultation with the head of the appropriate installation, that such 
operation can be provided at a reasonable cost with food of a high quality 



comparable to that currently provided to employees, whether by contract 
or otherwise.  

(f) Existing arrangements more favorable to blind licensees unaffected 
This section shall not operate to preclude preexisting or future 
arrangements, or regulations of departments, agencies, or 
instrumentalities of the United States, under which blind licensees (1) 
receive a greater percentage or amount of vending machine income than 
that specified in subsection (b)(1) of this section, or (2) receive vending 
machine income from individual locations, installations, or facilities on 
Federal property the total of which at such individual locations, 
installations, or facilities does not exceed $3,000 annually.  

(g) Regulations for compliance The Secretary shall take such action and 
promulgate such regulations as he deems necessary to assure 
compliance with this section.  

107d-4 Training programs for maximum vocational potential for blind The 
Commissioner shall insure, through promulgation of appropriate 
regulations, that uniform and effective training programs, including on-the-
job training, are provided for blind individuals, through services under the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973. He shall further insure that State agencies 
provide programs for upward mobility (including further education and 
additional training or retraining for improved work opportunities) for all 
trainees under this chapter, and that follow-along services are provided to 
such trainees to assure that their maximum vocational potential is 
achieved.  

107e. Definitions As used in this chapter--  

(1) "blind person" means a person whose central visual acuity does not 
exceed 20/200 in the better eye with correcting lenses or whose visual 
acuity, if better than 20/200, is accompanied by a limit to the field of vision 
in the better eye to such a degree that its widest diameter subtends an 
angle of no greater than twenty degrees. In determining whether an 
individual is blind, there shall be an examination by a physician skilled in 
diseases of the eye, or by an optometrist, whichever the individual shall 
select;  

(2) "Commissioner" means the Commissioner of the Rehabilitation 
Services Administration;  



(3) "Federal property" means any building, land, or other read property 
owned, leased, or occupied by any department, agency, or instrumentality 
of the United States (including the Department of Defense and the United 
States Postal Service), or any other instrumentality wholly owned by the 
United States, or by any department or agency of the District of Columbia 
or any territory or possession of the United States; 

(4) "Secretary" means the Secretary of Education;  

(5) "State" means a State, territory, possession, Puerto Rico, or the 
District of Columbia;  

(6) "United States" includes the several States, territories, and 
possessions of the United States, Puerto Rico, and the District of 
Columbia; 

(7) "vending facility" means automatic vending machines, cafeterias, 
snack bars, cart services, shelters, counters, and such other appropriate 
auxiliary equipment as the Secretary may by regulation prescribe as being 
necessary for the sale of the articles or services described in section 
107a(a)(5) of this title and which may be operated by blind licensees; and  

(8) "vending machine income" means receipts (other than those of a blind 
licensee) from vending machine operations on Federal property, after cost 
of goods sold (including reasonable service and maintenance costs), 
where the machines are operated, services, or maintained by, or with the 
approval of, a department, agency, or instrumentality of the United States, 
or commissions paid (other than to a blind licensee) by a commercial 
vending concern which operates, services, and maintains vending 
machines on Federal property for, or with the approval of, a department, 
agency, or instrumentality of the United States.  

107e-1. Repealed. Pub. L. 93-516, Title II, 205, Dec. 7, 1974, 88 Stat. 
1626  

107f. Appropriations There is authorized to be appropriated such sums as 
may be necessary for carrying out the provisions of this chapter.  

 



 

 

23-504.  Merchandising businesses for the blind 
A.  The department of economic security shall make surveys of merchandising business opportunities for 

and license persons who have no vision or acuity, or have a central visual acuity of 20/200 or less in the better eye, 
with the best correction by single magnification, or who have a field defect in which the peripheral field has been 
contracted to such an extent that the widest diameter of visual field subtends an angular distance no greater than 
20 degrees, to operate such businesses on state, county or municipal property where such businesses may be 
properly and satisfactorily operated by blind persons all in accordance with the provisions of the 
Randolph-Sheppard act, as amended by Public Law 93-516, title 20, United States Code, sections 107 through 
107f.  For the purposes of this section "merchandising business" shall include but not be limited to food service 
operations, including cafeterias, snack bars and vending machines for food and beverages and souvenir and gift 
shops. 

B.  The head or governing body of each department or agency and of each county or municipality or 
other local government entity having control of state, county or other local government property shall cooperate 
with the department of economic security in surveys of property under their control to find suitable locations for 
the operation of merchandising businesses by blind persons, and after it has been determined that there is need 
for a merchandising business and after the department of economic security has determined that such a business 
may be properly and satisfactorily operated by a blind person grant space to the department of economic security 
for the operation of a merchandising business by a licensed blind person and cooperate with the department of 
economic security in the installation of such merchandising business. 

C.  Notwithstanding the provisions of section 41-792.01, the head or governing body of each department 
or agency of the state and of each county or city having control of public property shall not charge any rent or 
other assessment for the use or occupancy of the space granted for the operation of merchandising businesses by 
licensed blind persons. 

D.  Any person licensed under this section to operate a merchandising business has the right of appeal 
under section 23-507. 

E.  Preference to the blind is not mandatory for those merchandising businesses operated by public 
educational institutions where merchandising facilities are provided as an integral part of service to students or as 
a training program to students, nor for major food services provided by hospitals or residential institutions of the 
state as a direct service to patients, inmates, trainees or otherwise institutionalized persons.  



 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-2045     Regular Agenda Item      3. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/03/2013  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Public
Works Division Deputy
Director

Submitted By: Steve Sanders, Public Works Division
Deputy Director, Public Works Division

Department: Public Works Division Division: Engineering

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 13-09-01 for a Roadway Exchange Regarding Deer Farm Road

Background Information
A recent survey by a landowner adjacent to Deer Farm Road revealed that the existing Deer
Farm Road was not within the dedicated easement. A review of the survey by Public Works
Staff supported the findings of the survey.

Evaluation
After looking at options it was decided the most practical option was to leave the road in its
current location and do a roadway exchange pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §28-7203
between the current landowner and Gila County.

Conclusion
The landowner was contacted and he agreed to deed right-of-way to Gila County for Deer
Farm Road where the road currently exists. In return he has asked that the County deed him
the area previously recorded for the road across his property. Public Works supports this
option.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Deputy Director to do a roadway exchange for
Deer Farm Road as noted in Resolution No. 13-09-01.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 13-09-01 for the roadway exchange of
that property referenced in said resolution regarding Deer Farm Road, and to authorize the
Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed with Gary C. Landers.  (Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Resolution No. 13-09-01
Quit-Claim Deed Gila County to Landers
Warranty Deed Landers to Gila County Fee No. 2013-008667



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 13-09-01 
 

       
A RESOLUTION OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
FOR THE ROADWAY EXCHANGE OF THAT PROPERTY DESCRIBED 
IN FEE NO. 2013-008667, GILA COUNTY RECORDS FOR THAT 
PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT “A” ATTACHED HERETO AND 
BY THIS REFERENCE MADE A PART HEREOF PURSUANT TO A.R.S. 
SECTION §28-7203 

 
WHEREAS, A.R.S. §28-7203 authorizes the Gila County Board of Supervisors to 

exchange roadways with an abutting land owner; and, 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of Gila County to exchange that roadway described 

in the legal description attached hereto; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the abutting land owner has granted Gila County a new roadway in 

exchange for the roadway described in the attached legal description.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Gila County Board of 

Supervisors that the property described in Fee No. 2013-008667 and Exhibit “A” attached hereto 
and by this reference made a part hereof be exchanged according to the legal descriptions. 

 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 3rd day of September 2013. 

 
Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
____________________________  ________________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk   Michael A. Pastor, Chairman of the Board 
     
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Bryan Chambers  
Deputy Attorney Principal 

















   

ARF-2035     Regular Agenda Item      3. G.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/03/2013  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Public
Works Division Deputy
Director

Submitted By: Steve Sanders, Public Works Division
Deputy Director, Public Works Division

Department: Public Works Division Division: Engineering

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 13-09-02 Accepting Russell Road into the Gila County Maintained Roadway
System

Background Information
Russell Road is located south of Globe in the Little Acres area and provides access to the Pinal
Mountains and connects with Kellner Canyon Road.  Approximately 4 miles of Russell Road is
on the Tonto National Forest (TNF).  The Road is known as Forest Road 55 in the TNF road
system; Russell Road is currently listed as a maintained road in the Gila County Maintained
Roadway System and is also listed in the maintenance agreement with the Tonto National
Forest.  A recent survey of the road found approximately 2200 feet of the road to cross private
land.  No formal dedication for that portion of the road can be found.  Conversations with the
owner of the property failed to turn up any evidence that prior dedications existed.  The owner
asked if they could dedicate an easement for the roadway to the County and it was agreed
that was the best scenario for everyone involved.

Evaluation
Russell Road is important in the County roadway system. The road provides an alternate
access route to residents living in the canyons south of Globe. If either Ice House Canyon
Road or Six Shooter Canyon Road becomes impassable, Russell Road could be used and has
been used as an alternate route to Highway 60. Russell Road is also a main route into the
Pinal Mountain Recreation area.

Conclusion
It’s in the best interests of the public that the County accept the dedication of this portion of
Russell Road and continues to provide maintenance on the road.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Deputy Director of Public Works that the Board of Supervisors
adopt Resolution No. 13-09-02

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 13-09-02 accepting Russell Road as
described in Fee No. 2013-007562, Gila County Records, as a public road and to be
maintained as a public roadway in the Gila County Maintained Roadway System. (Steve
Sanders)

Attachments
Resolution No. 13-09-02
Fee No. 2013-007562





 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 13-09-02 
 

       
A RESOLUTION OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OFFICIALLY ACCEPTING A ROADWAY EASEMENT FOR RUSSELL ROAD 
AS DESCRIBED IN FEE NO. 2013-007562 GILA COUNTY RECORDS, AS A 
PUBLIC ROAD AND TO BE MAINTAINED AS A PUBLIC ROADWAY IN 
THE GILA COUNTY MAINTAINED ROADWAY SYSTEM 

 
 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of A.R.S. §28-6705 the Gila County 
Board of Supervisors may spend public monies for maintenance of public roads other than 
highways; and, 

 
WHEREAS, said Board of Supervisors acknowledges that this road was laid out, opened 

and constructed without cost to the County.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Gila County Board of Supervisors 

that Russell Road as described in Fee No. 2013-007562 be maintained as a public roadway. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 3rd day of September 2013. 

 
Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
____________________________  ________________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk   Michael A. Pastor, Chairman of the Board 
     
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Bryan Chambers  
Deputy Attorney Principal 













   

ARF-2072     Regular Agenda Item      3. H.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/03/2013  

Submitted For: Don McDaniel
Jr.

Submitted By: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County
Manager/Librarian, Asst County
Manager/Library District

Department: Asst County Manager/Library District

Information
Request/Subject
Submit two letters to Director of U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service regarding Mexican wolf
proposed actions

Background Information
On June 13, 2013, the United States Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) opened the
comment period regarding  delisting the gray wolf as endangered and relisting the
Mexican wolf. Comment Period closes September 11, 2013. In addition, on June 13,
2013, a proposal was announced to revise the nonessential experimental population
designation of the Mexican wolf, with the comment period also closing on September
11, 2013. A Notice of Intent to prepare an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) for
the proposed revision to the nonessential experimental population of the Mexican wolf
was published, with a comment period opening on August 5, 2013 and closing on
September 19, 2013.
  
USFWS personnel have stated in several public meetings that the first two comment
periods which end on September 11, 2013, will be extended; however, to date no
extension has been published. The most recent comment from a USFWS employee is
that it is expected that the comment period will be re-opened. The comment period on
the EIS process (which closes September 19, 2013) is not currently being considered
for extension.

Evaluation
There are also several serious concerns regarding the processes used by the USFWS
regarding the ongoing Mexican Wolf Recovery Initiative.   With the confusion
regarding separate but connected proposed actions, the differing dates for comment
periods, the promise but no guarantee of extending of the deadlines, and the general
public being largely unaware that this is happening or what the potential impacts
may be, the County needs to take several steps to ensure that the public and the
County have ample time to be involved in these processes.

Conclusion
The County needs to approve official comments regarding (1) a request to the USFWS
for the deadlines to be sufficiently extended to allow all stakeholders, interested
parties and the general public to fully understand the possible implications and
impacts and make meaningful comments regarding the USFWS various proposed
actions, and (2) our grave concerns with the entire process to date.



Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board approve and send two letters to the Director of the
USFWS -one that requests combining and extending the comment periods to ensure
there is adequate time for the general public as well as stakeholders to understand
and make meaningful comments, and a second that points out the serious concerns
with regard to the processes that have been followed to this point. 

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve two letters addressed to the Director of the
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS):  (1) requesting immediate action to grant an
extension to the various comment periods involved in the gray wolf delisting, the
relisting of the Mexican wolf, the revision of the nonessential, experimental revised
rules, and the proposed draft Environmental Impact Statement on the revision to the
Mexican wolf nonessential experimental population rule; and (2) expressing grave
concerns with regard to the processes that have been followed by the USFWS related
to the entire Mexican Wolf Initiative. (Jacque Griffin)

Attachments
Wolves Concerns
Wolves Extension letter



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

September 3, 2013 
 
 
Honorable Daniel Ashe, Director 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 
1849 C Street, NW 
Washington, DC 20240-0001 
 
Subject: Stakeholder concerns about pending Service proposals to delist gray wolves, relist the 

Mexican wolf, revise the rule establishing the Mexican wolf in Arizona-New Mexico as a 
nonessential experimental population and to draft an Environmental Impact Statement 
on the proposed revision to the Mexican wolf nonessential experimental population rule 

 
Dear Director Ashe: 
 
Our organization is a stakeholder in Mexican wolf recovery efforts and we write to you today with great 
concern about U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (Service) proposals regarding gray wolves. These Service 
proposals include delisting gray wolves and redefining Service efforts to: (a) recover the Mexican wolf 
through relisting; (b) modify its current legal status and approach to Mexican wolf reintroduction in the 
Southwest; and (c) comply with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) and with the Endangered 
Species Act (ESA). These actions are addressed by the following: 
 

1. Proposal to delist the gray wolf and relist the Mexican wolf. Comment period opened June 13, 
closes September 11. 

2. Proposal to revise the nonessential experimental population designation of the Mexican wolf. 
Comment period opened June 13, closes September 11. 

3. Notice of Intent to prepare an EIS for the proposed revision to the nonessential experimental 
population of the Mexican wolf. Comment period opened August 5, closes September 19.  

4. Development of a new Recovery Plan for the Mexican wolf. Initiated in 2008. In proposing 
delisting, relisting and development of an EIS, the Service makes frequent mention of the 
Recovery Team’s work guiding the Service. Yet, the full Recovery Team has not met to discuss its 
work since November 2011; the Science Subgroup of the Team never reached consensus on its 
draft guidance to the Service and has not met since December 2012; and a draft Recovery Plan 
has yet to be released to the public. 

5. Development of a management plan for Mexican wolves outside the nonessential experimental 
population area. Initiated in 2010. No action since February 2013, when the Service withdrew its 
draft extra-limital plan. However, the plan is referenced in various Service documents pertaining 
to Issues 1-4 above, as information the Service will consider as it moves forward on those issues. 

Tommie C. Martin, District I 
610 E. Hwy 260, Payson, 85547 
(928) 474-2029 
tmartin@gilacountyaz.gov 
 
Michael A. Pastor, District II 
(928) 402-8753 
mpastor@gilacountyaz.gov  
 
John D. Marcanti, District III 
(928) 402-8726 
jmarcanti@gilacountyaz.gov  
 
 
 

 

Don E. McDaniel, Jr. 
County Manager 

(928) 402-4344 
dmcdaniel@gilacountyaz.gov 

 
 

Marian Sheppard 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

(928) 402-8757 
msheppard@gilacountyaz.gov 

  
 
 

 

GILA COUNTY 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

1400 E. Ash Street 
Globe, Arizona 85501 

 

mailto:tmartin
mailto:mpastor@gilacountyaz.gov
mailto:jmarcanti@gilacountyaz.gov


Dir. Ashe, USFWS 
DATE 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
Our organization will submit detailed comment on these proposed actions during the appropriate 
written comment period, but we wish to state our collective major concerns so that you might consider 
them as the Service moves forward. Our concerns are as follows: 
 

1. The Service must restructure and extend for a minimum of 90 days the public comment periods 
on these five issues to provide the public with adequate time, opportunity and information to 
appropriately evaluate each of these issues in the context of the other four. Service Policy on 
compliance with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), set forth in Chapter 1 of 550 FW 
1, affirms on page 1 that scoping be conducted with announcement of a proposed EIS. At pages 
17-18 (D.2.3.B-C), the Service policy speaks to the intended breadth of public scoping and the 
mandate to carefully consider the affected public and to provide reasonable notice of public 
comments and due dates. Further, the policy states at page 33 (H) that “public participation is to 
be an integral and required part of the NEPA process. 
 

2. The Service, per policy, must provide appropriate public meetings (throughout the affected 
areas of Arizona and New Mexico) through which the public can engage directly with the Service 
in discussing the relevant issues and their concerns. 
 

3. The Service must develop and consider, and allow the public to review and consider, current 
information on the full range of possible economic impacts throughout the States of Arizona and 
New Mexico, not just within a narrower portion of both states. 
 

4. The Service must describe the potential effects, both positive and negative (regarding wolf 
protection, management and on human activities on the landscape), of changing the current 
boundaries of the Mexican Wolf Experimental Population Area and of changing any formal or 
informal management zones within or immediately outside that area within the States of 
Arizona and New Mexico. 
 

5. The Service must describe how wolf management on Tribal and non-Tribal lands in both Arizona 
and New Mexico will be coordinated to ensure that neither positive nor negative impacts of wolf 
reintroduction will fall disproportionately on Tribes or on non-Tribal interests. 
 

6. The Service must describe how, moving forward, Mexican wolf reintroduction will contribute to 
achieving Mexican wolf recovery and delisting, including quantitative statement of 
reintroduction, downlisting and recovery/delisting population objectives and estimated 
timeframes. 
 

7. The Service must describe how Mexican wolf recovery efforts in the United States will mesh 
with parallel efforts on Mexico with regard to achieving reintroduction, downlisting and 
recovery/delisting objectives and estimated timeframes. 
 

8. The Service must clarify whether Mexican wolves within or originating from the current and 
proposed Nonessential Experimental Population Area have a legal status of endangered or of 
threatened. 
 



Dir. Ashe, USFWS 
DATE 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

9. The Service must describe how State wildlife management authorities pursuant to State Law 
and to Section 6 of the ESA will be respected through relisting the Mexican wolf and revising the 
Nonessential Experimental Population Rule through which reintroduction occurs. 
 

10. The Service must describe how State and Tribal wildlife agencies, and cooperating Federal 
agencies will be permitted under Section 10 of the ESA to conduct management of Mexican 
wolves within their respective jurisdictions. 
 

11. The Service must clarify its legal position with regard to ordinances and resolutions put forth by 
local or state governments that conflict with Federal laws, rules, regulations and policies 
pertaining to the Mexican wolf. 
 

12. The Service must describe how Mexican wolves in the United States will be managed to ensure 
that the population (collectively and locally) does not expand to the point at which unacceptable 
impacts on hunter opportunities for big game species are not inappropriately constrained. The 
Service must also identify what financial resources it will contribute to enable State and Tribal 
wildlife agencies to maintain population surveys adequate to reliably estimate wolf and primary 
prey populations and to establish reliable measures of wolf impacts on such prey populations 
that might trigger permitted take of wolves. 
 

13. The Service must describe the methods by which it will enable (and fund) measures to measure, 
prevent and mitigate losses of livestock or other property to Mexican wolf depredation. 
 

14. The Service must commit resources of time, money and staff to work with State and Tribal 
wildlife agencies and other stakeholders as they develop alternatives to the wolf reintroduction 
and management proposals put forth by the Service. 

 
We believe that the Service, at the Washington as well as the Region 2 level, must address each of these 
concerns to afford the public and cooperating agencies a meaningful opportunity to comment on the 
Service-proposed and pending actions. 
 
We appreciate your consideration of this letter and anticipate receiving a timely, substantive response. 
Given the pending deadlines, we respectfully request a response by September 9, 2013. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
 
_________________________ ________________________  _________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman John D. Marcanti 
District II Supervisor  District I Supervisor   District III Supervisor 
 
     



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
September 3, 2013 

 
 
Honorable Daniel Ashe, Director 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 
1849 C Street, NW 
Washington, DC 20240-0001 
 
Subject: Request for immediate action on pending Service proposals to delist gray wolves, relist 

the Mexican wolf, revise the rule establishing the Mexican wolf in Arizona-New Mexico 
as a nonessential experimental population and to draft an Environmental Impact 
Statement on the proposed revision to the Mexican wolf nonessential experimental 
population rule 

 
Dear Director Ashe: 
 
We write to you with great concern regarding U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (the Service) efforts to delist 
gray wolves and to redefine its efforts to: (a) recover the Mexican wolf through relisting; (b) modify the 
current legal status and approach to Mexican wolf reintroduction in the Southwest; and (c) complete 
compliance with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) and with the Endangered Species Act 
(ESA). 
 
On July 24, Service Region 2 Director Benjamin Tuggle responded on your behalf to a June 28 letter that 
Representative Paul Gosar et al. sent to you, expressing concerns regarding the Service’s approach to 
the issues referenced above. The Congressmen requested public meetings in the potentially affected 
area to afford residents an opportunity to engage in person with Service representatives in discussing 
the relevant issues and their concerns. Such meetings are crucial, in part because (a) the Service has 
held no procedural public meetings on these issues in the Southwest since 2007; and (b) demographic 
patterns of human occupancy in the Southwest are such that a significant percentage of the people now 
resident in this area were not here in 2007 and conversely a significant percentage of the people 
resident here in 2007 no longer reside in the area. In short, scoping information the Service is using from 
2007 meetings in no longer “fresh,” in the sense intended by NEPA. The Service’s plan for relying heavily 
on outdated scoping information is also inconsistent with Service Policy on compliance with NEPA, as 
described in its own policy manual in Chapter 1 of 550 FW 1. 
 
The July 24 letter from Director Tuggle was non-responsive to the intent of the Gosar et al. request. 
Director Tuggle made no commitments to hold public meetings but only to consider them as the Service 
moved forward. However, the Service has now moved forward procedurally on these issues and it is 

Tommie C. Martin, District I 
610 E. Hwy 260, Payson, 85547 
(928) 474-2029 
tmartin@gilacountyaz.gov 
 
Michael A. Pastor, District II 
(928) 402-8753 
mpastor@gilacountyaz.gov  
 
John D. Marcanti, District III 
(928) 402-8726 
jmarcanti@gilacountyaz.gov  
 
 
 

 

Don E. McDaniel, Jr. 
County Manager 

(928) 402-4344 
dmcdaniel@gilacountyaz.gov 

 
 

Marian Sheppard 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

(928) 402-8757 
msheppard@gilacountyaz.gov 

  
 
 

 

GILA COUNTY 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

1400 E. Ash Street 
Globe, Arizona 85501 

 

mailto:tmartin
mailto:mpastor@gilacountyaz.gov
mailto:jmarcanti@gilacountyaz.gov


Dir. Ashe, USFWS 
DATE 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

evident that no direct public engagement is intended until well after the Service’s plans have gelled and 
its course of action is effectively decided. This is not how the public’s business should be done and it is 
not consistent with NEPA intent to afford agencies and the public a full opportunity for meaningful 
engagement before significant and controversial decisions are made. 
 
Moreover, the Service’s actions over the past eight weeks have exacerbated public confusion about 
these issues and whether and how each relates to the others. To clarify, the Service has underway the 
following processes: 
 

1. Proposal to delist the gray wolf and relist the Mexican wolf. Comment period opened June 13, closes 
September 11. This process is now confounded by the Service’s handling of the peer review component; 
i.e. excluding reputed wolf experts because of apparent biases regarding the proposed action, with 
action this week to restructure the process. It is of considerable concern that the results of peer review 
will apparently not be available to the public to help inform their own comment on these and related 
issues. 
 

2. Proposal to revise the nonessential experimental population designation of the Mexican wolf. Comment 
period opened June 13, closes September 11. Supposedly (according to an email from Service Region 2 
staff), the Service is responding to an Arizona Game and Fish Department request for a 90 day extension 
on this comment period by committing to only a 30 day extension. However, neither AGFD nor the 
public have been formally advised of any extension and 30 days does not provide ample time for State 
Wildlife Agencies to comply with their own mandates for review and public engagement. 
 

3. Notice of Intent to prepare an EIS for the proposed revision to the nonessential experimental population 
of the Mexican wolf. Comment period opened August 5, closes September 19. USFWS Region 2 staff has 
verbally advised agency cooperators that they have until September 30 to provide comment in the form 
of a consensus alternative for the Service to consider. It is unreasonable to expect cooperating agencies 
to develop a consensus alternative in 60 days when the Service has been working on its alternatives 
since 2007 and has not yet fully developed them. Requiring cooperators to reach consensus on a new 
alternative in order for the Service to consider it is also a significant problem and raises questions about 
compliance with NEPA Process. Region 2 staff also informed the cooperating agencies in August 2013 
that the Service will not develop any new economic impact information for this EIS, but the Service 
encourages other entities to provide such information. The Service is the action agency in this NEPA 
process, and deflecting its obligations to other entities is not appropriate under NEPA. 
 

4. Development of a new recovery plan for the Mexican wolf. Initiated in 2008. No action since July 2012. 
In proposing delisting, relisting and development of an EIS, the Service makes frequent mention of the 
Recovery Team’s work guiding the Service. Yet, a draft Recovery Plan has yet to be released to the 
public, the full Recovery Team has not met to discuss its work since November 2011 and the Science 
Subgroup of the Team never reached consensus on its draft guidance to the Service and has not met 
since December 2012. 
 

5. Development of a management plan for Mexican wolves outside the nonessential experimental 
population area. Initiated in 2010. No action since February 2013, when the Service withdrew its draft 
extra-limital plan. However, the plan is referenced in various Service documents pertaining to Issues 1-4 
above, as information the Service will consider as it moves forward on those issues. 
 



Dir. Ashe, USFWS 
DATE 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

It is alarming that the Service has had essentially no direct engagement with the general public in the 
Southwest on any of these five highly-related issues, and even more so that the Service has at this point 
not committed to any direct public engagement through open meetings until these actions have been 
completed, or in the case of the EIS, until a draft document is fully developed. 
 
Having considered the above, and the underlying issues and relevant information, we request your 
timely response to the following: 
 

1. Restructure and extend the public comment periods on these five issues to provide the public with 
adequate time, opportunity and information to appropriately evaluate each of these issues in the 
context of the other four. 
 

2. Provide guidance to Service Region 2 that it must ensure that cooperating agencies and the public have 
ample opportunity to engage with the Service on each of these issues, through public meetings 
(throughout the potentially affected area) and through formal written comment processes. 
 

3. Provide guidance to Service Region 2 that economic impact analysis of the proposed EIS alternatives 
must be robust (in terms of new data developed and in terms of the area and the activities covered), 
and updated to ensure that the economic conditions prevailing in 2012 and projected for the near-term 
future are reflected in the EIS and to ensure that the public has ample opportunity to consider and 
comment on the Service’s perspective. 
 

4. Instruct Service Region 2 on its obligations pursuant to the Service’s policy on NEPA compliance, 
specifically the ability to provide Service funds for cooperating agency participation in EIS preparation, 
particularly during the scoping phase. Providing neither funding nor staff support to such agencies, as 
Region 2 apparently intends to do, is at best not conducive to ensuring active engagement by 
cooperating agencies. 
 
In closing, we believe that placing all deadlines for Service closure of public comment on these five 
proposed actions and consideration of any related issues should be on the same day, perhaps in mid-
December. Doing that would be more than merely appropriate. It is, in fact, essential to the Service 
fulfilling both the spirit and the letter of the ESA and NEPA, and consistent with Congressional intent in 
implementing both laws in cooperation with an informed public. 
 
We appreciate your consideration of this letter and anticipate a timely, substantive response. Given the 
timelines currently in place, we respectfully request a response by September 9, 2013. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
 
_________________________ ________________________  _________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman John D. Marcanti 
District II Supervisor  District I Supervisor   District III Supervisor 
 
     



   

ARF-2082     Regular Agenda Item      3. I.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting
Date: 09/03/2013  

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk, BOS,
Clerk of the Board of
Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of Policy No. BOS-COB-004 - Call to the Public.

Background Information
On February 17, 2009, the Board of Supervisors adopted policy number BOS-1-2009
regarding a call to the public during Board of Supervisors' meetings.

On February 26, 2013, a revised Call to the Public policy with a new policy number
was presented to the Board of Supervisors during a Work Session.  The proposed
changes included assigning a new policy number and re-formatting the policy
separate from the procedures to be in line with the format and numbering system of
Countywide policies, and to update the Board on a change in the statute.  An open
call to the public during a public meeting was previously addressed in A.R.S. §
38-431.01(G), and it changed to A.R.S. § 38-431.01(H).

Evaluation
The policy has been changed to adhere to the format and numberering for all
Countywide policies and to reflect a change in the state statute number.

Conclusion
N/A

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors adopt Policy No. BOS-COB-004-Call
to the Public, which replaces Policy No. BOS-1-2009-Call to the Public.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Policy No. BOS-COB-004-Call to the Public,
which replaces Policy No. BOS-1-2009-Call to the Public to reflect a change in the
format and number of the policy and a statutory reference.  (Don McDaniel)

Attachments
Policy No. BOS-COB-004 - Call to the Public
ARS 38-431.01











   

ARF-2066     Consent Agenda Item      4. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/03/2013  

Submitted For: Stacie Allison,
Accountant

Submitted By: Stacie Allison, Accountant, Finance
Department

Department: Finance Department
Fiscal Year: 2013-2014 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1,
2013-June 30,
2014

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of revision to Exhibit A of Resolution No. 13-08-03 Providing for the
Collection of Taxes for All Jurisdictions for FY 2013-2014

Background Information
The annual adoption of Gila County's budget and setting the County's primary and
secondary property tax rates by the Board of Supervisors is a requirement of the
Arizona Revised Statutes. 

On August 19, 2013, the Board of Supervisors set the primary and secondary property
tax rates for 2013 for all taxing jurisdictions within Gila County and conveyed tax
rates for all jurisdictions to the County Treasurer, and adopted Resolution No.
13-08-03 providing for the collection of taxes for all jurisdictions by the County
Treasurer for fiscal year 2013-2014.  Exhibit A to Resolution No. 13-08-03 consisted
of the list of tax levies and tax rates of all primary and secondary taxing districts
within Gila County.

Evaluation
On August 20, 2013, Stacie Allison of the Gila County Finance Department received
an email notification from Darlene Teller of the Arizona Department of Revenue
(ADOR) Property Tax Oversight Commission that the tax rate needed to be reduced
for Young Elementary School District No. 5  per A.R.S. 42-17151.  Attached to Ms.
Teller's email was a letter dated December 6, 2012, that was addressed from John
Greene, Chairman of the ADOR Property Tax Oversight Commission, to Linda Cheney,
Superintendent of Young Elementary School District No. 5, informing Ms. Cheney that
the District shall not fix, levy or assess a primary property tax rate higher than the
current year's rate of $6.2008 in August 2013 for tax year 2013.

On August 20, 2013, County Manager Don McDaniel sent an email to Ms. Teller



On August 20, 2013, County Manager Don McDaniel sent an email to Ms. Teller
stating that the County planned on exercising the option under A.R.S. 42-17005(A)
regarding this matter.  On August 21, 2013, Ms. Teller sent an email response to Mr.
McDaniel informing him that statute would not apply in this case and, as a result, the
tax rate must be reduced for Young Elementary School District No. 5 in accordance
with A.R.S. 42-17151(C).

Conclusion
The ADOR Property Tax Oversight Commission is requesting that the Board of
Supervisors take action to reduce the tax rate set for Young Elementary School
District No. 5 from $6.3743 to $6.2008 for tax year 2013.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve a revised Exhibit A of
Resolution No. 13-08-03 to reflect a change in the tax rate for Young Elementary
School District No. 5 from $6.3743 to $6.2008 for tax year 2013.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a revision to Exhibit A of Resolution No. 13-08-03, which is a listing of tax
levies and tax rates for all primary and secondary taxing districts in Gila County,
Arizona.  (The total tax rate for Young Elementary School District No. 5 was reduced
from $6.3743 to $6.2008 per A.R.S. § 42-17151.)

Attachments
Revised Exhibit A of Resolution No. 13-08-03
Resolution No. 13-08-03 with Exhibit A
12-6-12 Ltr from ADOR to Young Elementary School District
Email Correspondence between County Mgr and ADOR 8-20-13





















   

ARF-2052     Consent Agenda Item      4. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/03/2013  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Community
Services Division Director

Submitted By: Cecilia Bejarano, Executive
Administrative Assistant, Community
Services Division

Department: Community Services Division Division: GEST Department

Information
Request/Subject
Unilateral Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. DE126007-015 Arizona Department of Economic Security.

Background Information
Gila Employment and Special Training (GEST) coordinates with county, state and federal governments
in a joint effort to better serve the citizens of Gila County.  The Demonstration Project began in 1975
and was founded on the principle of "acceptance."  Establishing community acceptance of the
individuals with disabilities is and always will be our priority.  In 1996, the program name was changed
to Gila Employment and Special Training, but our goal remains the same as we provide daily living
skills and employment supports to all GEST clients.

The initial contract between Gila County and the Arizona Department of Economic Security to provide
these services was approved by the Board of Supervisors and executed onSeptember 20, 2011. 
Amendment No. 2 to said contract was approved by the Board and Supervisors and executed on July
16, 2013.

Evaluation
When Unilateral Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. DE126007-015 was issued, it was believed that it
did not need to be presented to the Board of Supervisors for approval as there wasn't a requirement for
the Chairman to sign the Contract and becuase this amendment was more administrative in nature. 
Amendment No. 1 allows for the replacement of Section 5-Background Checks for Employment through
the Central Registry, which is part of the Special Terms and Conditions section of the contract.  The
language was revised due to changes in the law.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors approving this amendment, Gila County GEST Program will be in
compliance with said contract.

Recommendation
The Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this
amendment.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Unilateral Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. DE126007-015 between the Arizona
Department of Economic Security (DES) and the Gila County Division of Community Services, Gila
Employment and Special Training, whereby Section 5-DES Special Terms and Conditions was replaced
with Section 5-Background Checks for Employment through the Central Registry, effective on the date of
last signature through June 30, 2016.

Attachments
Unilateral Amendment No. 1 Contract No. DE126007-015
Amendment No. 2 Contract DE126007-015
Original Contract DE126007-015
Legal Explanation



Legal Explanation





























































































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-2054     Consent Agenda Item      4. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/03/2013  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Community
Services Division Director

Submitted By: Cecilia Bejarano, Executive
Administrative Assistant, Community
Services Division

Department: Community Services Division Division: GEST Department

Information
Request/Subject
Unilateral Amendment No. 3 and Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. DE111093-001 with Arizona
Department of Economic Security.

Background Information
Gila Employment and Special Training (GEST) coordinates with the county, state, and federal
governments in a joint effort to better serve the citizens of Gila County.  The Demonstration Project
began in 1975 and was founded on the principle of "acceptance".  Establishing community acceptance
of the individuals with disabilities is and always will be our priority.   In 1996, the program name was
changed to Gila Employment and Special Training, but our goal remains the same as we provide daily
living skills and employment supports to all GEST clients.

Original Contract No. DE111093-001 was approved by the Board of Supervisors on September 7, 2010.
Amendment No. 1 was approved by the Board of Supervisors on August 15, 2011.
Amendment No. 2 was approved by the Board of Supervisors on November 15, 2011.

Evaluation
Unilateral Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. DE111093-001 will replace Section 20.0 in regards to
Background Checks for Employment Through The Central Registry due to changes in the law and does
not require a signature by the Chairman of the Board.

Amendment No. 4 will add Section 39.0 which pertains to Confidentiality.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors approving these amendments, the Gila County GEST program will be in
compliance with said contract.

Recommendation
The Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve
Unilateral Amendment No. 3 and Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. DE111093-001.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Unilateral Amendment No. 3 and Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. DE111093-001 between
the Arizona Department of Economic Security (DES) and the Gila County Division of Community
Services, Gila Employment and Special Training Program, whereby Amendment No. 3 replaces Section
20.0-DES Special Terms and Conditions with Section 20.0-Background Checks for Employment
through the Central Registry, and Amendment No. 4 amends Section 39.0-Confidentiality.  Both
amendments become effective on the date of last signature through September 30, 2015.

Attachments
Amendment No. 4 Contract No. DE111093-001
Amendment No. 3 Contract DE111093-001 DES
Amendment No. 2 DE111093-001 DES
Amendment No. 1 DE111093-001



Amendment No. 1 DE111093-001
Original Contract DE111093-001 DES
Legal Explanation





Department of Economic Security
YourPartner ForA Stronger Arizona

UNILATERAL CONTRACT AMENDMENT

1. CONTRACTOR (Name and address) 2. CONTRACT ID NUMBER

GILA COUNTY dba Gila Employment and Special Training
DE111093-001

5515 S Apache St, Ste 200
Globe, AZ 85501

3. AMENDMENT NUMBER

3

4. THE PARTIES AGREE TO THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENT

Due to a change in the law, Section 20.0 of the DES Special Terms and Conditions is hereby replaced with the
attached Section 20.0, BACKGROUND CHECKS FOR EMPLOYMENT THROUGH THE CENTRAL REGISTRY,
effective immediately.

5. In accordance with A.R.S. § 35-393.06, the Contractor certifies that the Contractor does not have scrutinized business operations in
Iran.

In accordance with A.R.S. § 35-391.06, the Contractor certifies that the Contractor does not have scrutinized business operations in
Sudan.

6. EXCEPT AS PROVIDED HEREIN, ALL TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE ORIGINAL CONTRACT AS HERETOFORE CHANGED AND/OR
AMENDED REMAIN UNCHANGED AND IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT. THE AMENDMENT SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE ON THE DATE

OF LAST SIGNATURE UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED HEREIN.

_

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC SECURITY
SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED INDIVIDUAL

TYPED NAME __—-^ 7/
EfesrbetirtsnJsaki, CPPB J/&\lj£>
TITLE

M£o«rtj£r, Contract Administration Unit
^DATE

*/?

Revised: 4/1/09



20.0 Background Checks for Employment through the Central Registry. If providing direct services to
children or vulnerable adults, the following shall apply:

20.1 The provisions of A.R.S. § 8-804 (as may be amended) are hereby incorporated in its entirety as provisions of
this Contract.

20.2 The Department will conduct Central Registry Background Checks and will use the information contained in
the Central Registry as a factor to determine qualifications for positions that provide direct service to children
or vulnerable adults for:

1. Any person who applies for a contract with this State and that person's employees;
2. All employees of a contractor;
3. A subcontractor of a contractor and the subcontractor's employees; and
4. Prospective employees of the contractor or subcontractor at the request of the prospective employer.

20.3 Volunteers who provide direct services to children or vulnerable adults shall have a Central Registry
Background Check which is to be used as a factor to determine qualifications for volunteer positions.

20.4 1. A person who is disqualified because of a Central Registry Background Check may apply to the Board of
Fingerprinting for a Central Registry exception pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-619.57. A person who is granted
a Central Registry exception pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-619.57 is not entitled to a contract, employment,
licensure, certification or other benefit because the person has been granted a Central Registry
exception.

2. Before being employed or volunteering in a position that provides direct services to children or vulnerable
adults, persons shall certify on forms that are provided by the Department whether an allegation of abuse
or neglect was made against them and was substantiated. The completed forms are to be maintained as
confidential.

20.5 A person awaiting receipt of the Central Registry Background Check may provide direct services to ADES
clients after completion and submittal of the Direct Service Position certification if:

1. The person is not currently the subject of an investigation of child abuse or neglect in Arizona or another
state or jurisdiction; and

2. The person has not been the subject of an investigation of child abuse or neglect in Arizona, or another
state or jurisdiction, which resulted in a substantiated finding.

The Certification for Direct Service Position is located at:
https://www.azdes.gov/lnternetFiles/lnternetProgrammaticForms/doc/ACY-1287AFORFF.doc

20.6 If the Central Registry Background Check specifies any disqualifying act and the person does not have a
Central Registry exception, the person shall be prohibited from providing direct services to ADES clients.

20.7 The Contractor shall maintain the Central Registry Background Check results and any related forms or
documents in a confidential file for five (5) years after termination of the Contract. The Request for Search of
Central Registry for Background Check is located at:
https://www.azdes.gov/lnternetFiles/lnternetProgrammaticForms/doc/ACY-1288AFORFF.doc

Page 2 of 2 DE111093-001 A3



fafafa
Department of Economic Security

four tartoa ForA Sutnocr Arizona

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

CONTRACT AMENDMENT

1. COArrRACTORf«ao»e*»rfae«*Bss^
2. CONTRACT ID NUMBER

DE111093-001
GILA COUNTY dba Gila Employment andSpecial Training
5515 S Apache St, Ste 200
Globe, AZ 85501

3. AMENDMENT NUMBER

2

4. THEPARTIES AGREETOTHEFOLLOWING AMENDMENT:

Pursuant to Section 4, AMENDMENTS OR MODIFICATIONS, replace the existing Facility Location and StaffinaCh^rtwrth the revised Facility Location and Staffing Chart dated September 20,2011 to refle^th^rreS

5. Inaccordance with A.R.S. §3S-393.06, the Contractor certifies that the Contractor does not have scruMrfeed business operations In

^accordance with A.R.S. §3W91.06, the Contractor certifies that the Contractor does not have scrutinized business operations in
6. EXCEPT AS PROVIDED HEREIN. ALL TERMS AND CONDrTIONS OF THE ORIGINAL CONTRACT AS HERETOFORE CHANGED AND/OR

AMENDED REMAIN UNCHANGED AND IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT. THE AMENDMENT ShtALL BECoSprST^O^E^E
OF LAST SIGNATURE UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED HEREIN. BY SIGNING THIS FORM ON BErS^OF THE OONTlScTOR Th7
SIGNATORY CERTIFIES HE/SHE HAS THE AUTHORITY TO BIND THE CONTRACTOR TO THIS CONTACT C°NT1^CTOR- ™E

ARIZONA DEPARTMENTOF ECONOMICSECURITY

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED INDIVIDU

TYPED NAME

Elizabeth G. Csakl, CPPB
TITLE

Contract Administration Manager

DATE

2] frlZz
THfe CONTRACT

Ziol I

^^^^^^^^^^XS^^^,^^^^^SSSS™"™B
ARIZONA ATTORNEY GENERAL'S OFFICE

8. NAME OF CONTRACTOR

Gn^COUNTY dba Gila Employment and Special Tralnlnu
IREOFAjrrHpRIZED

PEDNAME

Tommie C

*M£Z
Martin

"frn-E Chairman, Gila County
Board of Supervisors

DATE

COUNSEL FOR GILA COUNTY dba Gila
Employment and Special Training

Revised: 4/1/09



Attachment 6

Arizona Department of Economic Security
Rehabilitation Services Administration

FACILITY LOCATION AND STAFFING CHART - GILA COUNTY
Revised 09/20/2011

Legal Business Name Gila County
Doing Business As Gila Employment and Special Training

If you provide services in one or more service locations, please complete aFacility Location and Staffing Chart for each location
Service Location Address rntv <;t-at-P 7\n rn^a rvM.nt-w \ —•2Service Location Address (City State Zip Code County )

5515 South ApacheAve. Suite 200 Globe, Arizona 85501 Gila
Telephone Number

928-402-8664

Contact Person's Name
David B. Caddell

Fax Number

928-425-9468

Email address

dcaddell@co.gila.az.us

Days And Hours Of Operation Monday to Friday 8 AM to 5 PM, except holidays and the Friday after Thanksgiving?

List the Staff and/orSubcontractors that will provide this service at this location:

First and Last name

David B. Caddell

Catherine Levario

Phillis Weaver

Patricia Rocha

Employee
Subcontractor

sD e£3

SD EM

sDeEI

SDEEl

sDeD

sDeD

sDeD

sDeD

The facility(s) listed above will not be open on those holidays marked below (check box for applicable holidays):
13 New Year's Day
13 President's Day
IS Memorial Day
• Rosh Hashanah
E3 Veterans' Day
D Other:

S Martin Luther King Jr.'s Birthday
• Washington's Birthday
E3 Independence Day
• Yom Kippur
H Thanksgiving Day
El

• Lincoln's Birthday
• Good Friday
S Labor Day
• Columbus Day
• Christmas Day
•

nf^qS/n^l^T meet minimum accessibility requirements as required by the American with Disability Act
of 1990 (ADA) and the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 (ABA). Yes D No D



Attachment 6

Arizona Department of Economic Security
Rehabilitation Services Administration

FACILITY LOCATION AND STAF-FJN.G CHART - GILA COUNTY
Revised 09/20/2011

Legal Business Name Gila County
Doing Business As Gila Employment and Special Training

Ifyou provide services in one or more service locations, please complete a Facility Location and Staffing Chart for each location
Sprvirp I nraKnn AHHrocc- m¥\, ct-~,t-^ -7:« i~«.j„ t- i_ . \ - "£ • —Service Location Address (City State Zip Code County )

107 West Frontier Street Suite C, Payson, Arizona 85541 Gila
Telephone Number

928-402-8664

Contact Person's Name

David B. Caddell

Fax Number

928-425-9468

Email address

dcaddell@co.gila.az.us

Days And Hours Of Operation Monday to Friday 8 AM to 5 PM. except holidays and the Friday after Thanksgiving.

List the Staff and/or Subcontractors that will provide this service at this location:

First and Last name

Leona Bowman

Employee
Subcontractor

SD EE3

sDeD

sDeD

sDeD

sDeD

sDeD

sDeD

sDeD

The facility(s) listed above will not be open on those holidays marked below (check box for applicable holidays):
S New Year's Day
S President's Day
H Memorial Day
• Rosh Hashanah
E3 Veterans' Day
• Other:

H Martin Luther King Jr.'s Birthday
• Washington's Birthday
E Independence Day
• Yom Kippur
[3 Thanksgiving Day
13

• Lincoln's Birthday
• Good Friday
H Labor Day
• Columbus Day
• Christmas Day
•

Does this Facility Location meet minimum accessibility requirements as required by the American with Disability Act
of 1990 (ADA) and the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 (ABA). Yes S No D



1. CONTRACTOR (Name andaddress)

tfohthV
Department of Economic Security

Your TartntzhiA StnoaerAilumc

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
CONTRACT AMENDMENT

GILA COUNTY dba Gila Employment and Special Training
5515 S Apache St, Ste 200
Globe, AZ 85501

4. THE PARTIES AGREE TOTHE FOLLOWING AMENDMENT:

2. CONTRACT ID NUMBER

DE111093-001

3. AMENDMENT NUMBER

1

An^flnnS^4,' A!?E™MB"TS ,0R MODIFICATIONS, replace the current Attachment 6, Facility Location
^ne 23 201? 3 ^ ^ **** ^ ^r6ViSed Fad'ity L°Cation and Staffin9 Chart datS

uTcEH^iDP^^

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OFECONOMIC SECURITY
SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED INDIVIDUAL

TYPED NAME

Elizabeth G. Csaki, CPPB
TITLE

Lf^ llf

Contract Administration Manager
DATE

NAMEOF CONTRACTOR
GILA COUNTY

PEDNAME

Michael A. Pastor

title Chairman, Gila County Board of
Supervisors

date

IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARS §l4-952 '
contracTa'^

ARIZONA ATTORNEY GENERAL'S OFFICE

By:
\^Ti.

Assistant Attorney General

Date: 9/1J,/

/A-AJL^

COUNSEL FOR GILA COUNTY dba Gila
Employment and Special Training

Public ^fciency Legal Counsel

Date: 5?- IS"-2,0*1
COAS1 Equal Opportunity Employer/Program

This document available in alternative format by contacting: 602-364-0170.
Contract Amendment FonnJGA

Revised: 4/1/09



Attachment 6

Arizona Department of Economic Security
Rehabilitation Services Administration

FACILITY LOCATION AND STAFFING CHART-GILA COUNTY
June 23, 2011

Legal Business NameGila County

Doing Business AsGila Employment and Special Training

^ZZl°mV'dr ^IT '" ?"j Zmoreservice 'oc^onsr please complete aFacility Location and Staffing Chart for each location
Service Location Address (City State Zip Code County ) 5515 South Apache Ave. Suite 200 Globe, AZ 85501
Telephone Number

928^*02-8664

Contact Person's Name David B. Caddell

Fax Number

928-425-9468

Days And Hours Of OperationMonday to Friday 8 AM to 5 PM, except Holidays.

List the Staffand/or Subcontractors that will provide this service at this location:

First and Last name

David B. Caddell

Phillis Weaver

Carol Tanner

Helene Lopez

Doris Root

Yvette Warden

Email address

dcaddell@co.gila.az.us

Employee
Subcontractor

sDeEI

SDeEI

sDeEI

sDeE

sDeEI

sD eEI

The facility(s) listed above will not be open on those holidays marked below (check box for applicable holidays):
El New Year's Day
El President's Day
El Memorial Day
• Rosh Hashanah
EI Veterans' Day
• Other:

El Martin Luther King Jr.'s Birthday
• Washington's Birthday
El Independence Day
• Yom Kippur
El Thanksgiving Day
El

• Lincoln's Birthday
• Good Friday
El Labor Day
• Columbus Day
El Christmas Day
D.

^fL^/f™1** w°..uati?n ?eet minimum accessibility requirements as required by the American with Disability Act
of 1990 (ADA) and the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 (ABA). Yes El No •



Attachment 6

Arizona Department of Economic Security
Rehabilitation Services Administration

FACILITY LOCATION AND STAFFING CHART-GILA COUNTY
June 23, 2011

Legal Business NameGila County

Doing Business AsGila Employment and Special Training

If youprovide services in one or more servicelocations, please complete a Facility Location andStaffing Chart foreach location
Service Location Address (CityState Zip Code County ) 170 West Frontier Street Suite C Payson, AZ 85541

Telephone Number

928-402-8664

Contact Person's Name David B. Caddell

Fax Number

928-425-9468

Days And Hours Of OperationMonday to Friday 8 AM to 5 PM, except Holidays.

List the Staff and/or Subcontractors that will provide this service at this location:

First and Last name

Leona Bowman

Email address

dcaddell@co.gila.az.us

Employee
Subcontractor

SD EEI

sDeD

sDeD

sDeD

sDeD

sDeD

The facility(s) listed above will not be open on those holidays marked below (check box forapplicable holidays):

El New Year's Day
El President's Day
El Memorial Day
• Rosh Hashanah
El Veterans' Day
• Other:

El Martin Luther King Jr.'s Birthday
• Washington's Birthday
El Independence Day
• Yom Kippur
El Thanksgiving Day

• Lincoln's Birthday
• Good Friday
El Labor Day
• Columbus Day
EI Christmas Day
•

Does this Facility Location meet minimum accessibility requirements as required by the American with Disability Act
of 1990 (ADA) and the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 (ABA). Yes El No •



Department of Economic Security
Yoitr Partner For A Strong^t Arizona

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA)

Contract between the Arizona Department of Economic Security ("ADES") and the GHa County dba

Gila Employment and Special Training ("Contractor").

WHEREAS the Department is duly authorized to execute and administer contracts under A.R.S §41-

1954 and,

WHEREAS the Contractor is duly authorized to execute and administer contracts under A.R.S § 11-

201 and,

WHEREAS the Department and the Contractor are authorized by A.R.S. §11-952 et seq. to enter

into agreements for joint or cooperative action to contract for the services specified in this contract.

THEREFORE, the Department and Contractor agree to abide by all the terms and conditions set

forth in this Contract.

BY SIGNING THIS FORM ON BEHALF OF THE CONTRACTOR, THE SIGNATORY CERTIFIES HE/SHE HAS THE AUTHORITY TO BIND

THE CONTRACTOR TO THIS CONTRACT.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE ARIZONA

DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIOSECURITY

Piwurement

Elizabeth G.

Printed Name

Professional Services Unit Manager

Title

ZA.
Date /

DE111093-001

ADES Contract Number:

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE GILA COUNTY

Signature

Michael A. Pastor

Printed Name

Chairman, Gila County Board of Supervisors

Title

Date

IN ACCORDANCE WITH A.R.S. §11-952 THIS AGREEMENT HAS BEEN REVIEWED BY THE UNDERSIGNED

WHO HAVE DETERMINED THAT THIS CONTRACT IS IN APPROPRIATE FORM AND WITHIN THE POWERS

AND AUTHORITY GRANTED TO EACH RESPECTIVE PUBLIC BODY.

ARIZONA ATTORNEY GENERAL'S OFFICE

By: Assistant Attorney General

Date

By: public Legal Counsel

Date



1.0 ADES VISION AND MISSION STATEMENTS

1.1 ADES Vision: Every child, adult, and family in the State of Arizona will be safe and

economically secure.

1.2 ADES Mission: The Arizona Department of Economic Security (ADES) promotes the safety,

well being, and self sufficiency of children, adults, and families.

2.0 PARTIES

2.1 This Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) is between the Arizona Department of Economic

Security (ADES), Rehabilitation Services Administration (RSA) and Gila County dba Gila

Employment and Special Training ("Contractor").

2.2 RSA is the administration within the Department of Economic Security that provides

Vocational Rehabilitation (VR) services and Independent Living (IL) services to individuals

with various disabilities. Through the provision of VR services, RSA assists individuals with

disabilities in achieving permanent, integrated, and competitive employment consistent with

their strengths, resources, priorities, concerns, abilities, capabilities, interests and informed

choice. Through the provision of IL services, RSA assists eligible individuals to increase their

ability to function independently in home, community and at work.

3.0 TERM OF AGREEMENT

3.1 TERM

The term of this Agreement shall have an effective date of last signature and shall end on

September 30, 2015, unless otherwise agreed upon by both parties in writing.

3.2 PRIOR SERVICE

3.2.1 The parties agree that if similar services were provided by the Contractor from October 1,

2010 to the date of last signature, those services will be compensated under this agreement.

3.3 EXTENSION

This agreement may be extended through a written amendment by mutual agreement of the

parties.

3.4 TERMINATION

3.4.1 This agreement may be terminated by mutual agreement of the parties at any time during

the term of this agreement.

3.4.2 Each party shall have the right to terminate this agreement by hand-delivering to the other

party written notice of termination at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of said

termination.

4.0 AMENDMENTS OR MODIFICATIONS

4.1 This Agreement may be amended or modified at any time by mutual agreement. No agent,

employee or other representative of either party is empowered to alter any of the terms of

the agreement, unless done in writing and signed by the authorized representative of the

respective parties.

4.2 Either party shall give written notice to the other party of any non-material alteration that

affects the provisions of this Agreement. Non-material alterations that do not require a

written amendment are as follows:

1. Change of telephone number;

2. Change in authorized signatory; and/or

3. Change in the name and/or address of the person to whom notices are to be sent.

5.0 DEFINITIONS

5.1 "Department" means the Arizona Department of Economic Security (ADES), unless

otherwise indicated.

5.2 "May" indicates something that is not mandatory but permissible.

ADES Contract Number: DE111093-001

Page 2 of 12



5.3 "Shall, Must" indicates a mandatory requirement. Failure to meet these mandatory

requirements may result in the rejection of a proposal as non-responsive.

5.4 "Shoifici" indicates something that is recommended but not mandatory^ fl^fhe-Contractor
fails to provide recommended information, the State may, at its sole option, ask the

Contractor to provide the information.

5.5 "Vulnerable adult" means an individual who is eighteen years of age or older who is unable

to protect himself from abuse, neglect or exploitation by others because of a physical or

mental impairment

6.0 PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT

6.1 The purpose of this agreement is to provide Client Access, Education and Information (Career

Exploration and Supported Education) services to RSA clients who are individuals with

disabilities in Gila County

6.2 RSA is authorized to provide this service under the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended

(29 U.S.C. 723(a) Vocational Rehabilitation Services and A.R.S. §23-503 Duties and Powers

of Vocational Rehabilitation Division (i.e. Administration).

7.0 MANNER OF FINANCING

7.1 RSA will use 21.3% State Funds and 78.7% Federal Vocational Rehabilitation Grant Funds to

pay for this service in accordance with the Price Sheet (Attachment 02).

8.0 SERVICE DESCRIPTION

8.1 The purpose of this service is to provide Client Access, Education and Information services to

assist RSA clients, who are individuals with disabilities, in achieving their educational and

employment goals that will ultimately lead toward successful employment. See attached

Scope of Work.

9.0 RESPONSIBILITIES

9.1 The ADES and the Contractor agree as follows:

9.2 The Contractor shall:

9.2.1 Provide Client Access, Education and Information services in accordance with the Scope of

Work attached to this agreement.

9.3 The ADES will:

9.3.1 Refer RSA clients to the Contractor.

9.3.2 Pay the Contractor's invoices upon the completion of the service and after all reporting and

payment requirements are met.

10.0 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

10.1 The Contractor shall meet all reporting requirements stated in the Scope of Work

11.0 PAYMENT REQUIREMENTS

11.1 The Contractor shall meet all payment requirements stated in the Scope of Work

12.0 NOTICES

12.1 All notices to the Contractor regarding this agreement shall be sent to the following address:

Gila County

ATTN: David Caddell

Gila Employment and Special Training

5515 South Apache Ave. Suite 200

Globe, Arizona 85501

ADES Contract Number: DE111093-001

Page 3 of 12



12.2 All notices to the ADES regarding this agreement shall be sent to the following address:

AZ Department of Economic Security. ..
ATTN: RSA Contracts Unit --~--•.-■—-•-*---■

Rehabilitation Services Administration

PO BOX 6123; Site Code 930A

Phoenix, AZ 85005-6123

13.0 DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY

13.1 None.

14.0 OTHER MATTERS

14.1 None.

15.0 APPLICABLE LAW

15.1 In accordance with ARS § 41-2501, et.seq, and AAC R2-7-101 et seq, this Agreement shall

be governed and interpreted by the laws of the State of Arizona and the Arizona Procurement

Code.

16.0 ARBITRATION

16.1 In accordance with A.R.S. § 12-1518, the parties agree to resolve all disputes arising out of

or relating to this Agreement through arbitration, after exhausting applicable administrative

review except as may be required by other applicable statutes.

17.0 AUDIT

17.1 In accordance with A.R.S. §35-214, the Contractor shall retain and shall contractually require

each subcontractor to retain all data, books and other records ("records") relating to this

Agreement for a period of five (5) years after the completion of the Agreement. All records

shall be subject to inspection and audit by the State at reasonable times. Upon request,

Contractor shall produce the original of any or all such records.

18.0 AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS FOR THE CURRENT STATE FISCAL YEAR.

18.1 Should the State Legislature enter back into session and reduce the appropriations or for any

reason and these goods or services are not funded, the ADES may take any of the following

actions:

18.1.1 Reduce payments or units authorized;

18.1.2 Accept a decrease in price offered by the, contractor

18.1.3 Cancel the Agreement

18.1.4 Cancel the Agreement and re-write the requirements.

18.1.5 The Director of ADES shall have the sole and unfettered discretion in determining the

availability of funds. The ADES and the Contractor may mutually agree to reduce

reimbursement to the Contractor when the payment type is Fixed Price with Price Adjustment

by executing an amendment to this Agreement.

19.0 AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS FOR THE NEXT STATE FISCAL YEAR

19.1 Funds may not presently be available for performance under this Agreement beyond the

current state fiscal year. If funds are not allocated and available for the continuance of this

Agreement, this Agreement may be terminated by the ADES at the end of the period for

which funds are available

19.2 No liability shall accrue to the ADES in the event this provision is exercised, and the ADES

shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments of for any damages as a result of

termination under this paragraph.

ADES Contract Number: DE111093-001

Page 4 of 12



20.0 BACKGROUND CHECKS FOR EMPLOYMENT THROUGH THE CENTRAL REGISTRY. If

providing direct services to children or vulnerable adults, the following shall apply:

275:1 'The provisions of A:R.S. § 8-804 (as may be amended) are hereby TfTcorpbTated in its entirety

as provisions of this Contract.

20.2 Background checks through the Central Registry shall be conducted for each Contract

employee including subcontractors that provide direct services to children or vulnerable

adults. Individuals shall not provide direct services to ADES clients until the results of the

Central Registry background check are complete and the results indicate the individual has no

disqualifying acts that would prohibit him/her from providing services to ADES clients. If the

Central Registry background check specifies any disqualifying act, the individual shall be

prohibited from providing direct services to ADES clients.

20.3 Within thirty (30) days of contract award, the Contractor shall submit the "Request for Search

of Central Registry for Employment" for each employee and subcontract employee providing

direct services to children or vulnerable adults.

20.4 At least sixty (60) days prior to the Contract End Date, the Contractor shall submit the

"Request for Search of Central Registry for Employment" for each employee and subcontract

employee providing direct services to children or vulnerable adults.

20.5 The Contractor shall maintain the Central Registry Background Check results in a confidential

file for five (5) years after termination of the Contract.

20.6 "Vulnerable adult" means an individual who is eighteen years of age or older who is unable to

protect himself from abuse, neglect or exploitation by others because of a physical or mental

impairment.

21.0 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

21.1 In accordance with A.R.S. §38-511, the State may within three years after execution cancel

the Agreement, without penalty or further obligation, if any person significantly involved in

initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting or creating the Agreement on behalf of the State, at

any time while the Agreement is in effect, becomes an employee or agent of any other party

to the Agreement in any capacity or a consultant to any other party to the Agreement with

respect to the matter of the Agreement.

22.0 DATA SHARING AGREEMENT

22.1 When determined by the Department that sharing of confidential data will occur with the

Contractor, the Contractor shall complete the ADES Data Sharing Request Agreement and

submit the completed Agreement to the ADES Program Designated Staff prior to any work

commencing or data shared. A separate Data Sharing Request Agreement shall be required

between the Contractor and each ADES Program sharing confidential data.

23.0 E-VERIFY

23.1 In accordance with A.R.S.§41-4401, Contractor warrants compliance with all Federal

immigration laws and regulations relating to employees and warrants its compliance with AAC

Section A.R.S. § 23-214, Subsection A.

24.0 FEDERAL IMMIGRATION AND NATIONALITY ACT

24.1 By entering into the Agreement, the Contractor warrants compliance with the Federal

Immigration and Nationality Act (FINA) and all other Federal immigration laws and

regulations related to the immigration status of its employees. The Contractor shall obtain

statements from its subcontractors certifying compliance and shall furnish the statements to

the Procurement Officer upon request. These warranties shall remain in effect through the

term of the Agreement. The Contractor and its subcontractors shall also maintain

Employment Eligibility Verification forms (1-9) as required by the U.S. Department of Labor's

Immigration and Control Act, for all employees performing work under the Agreement. 1-9

forms are available for download at USCIS.GOV.

ADES Contract Number: DEI 11093-001

Page 5 of 12



24.2 The State may request verification of compliance for any Contractor or subcontractor

performing work under the Agreement. Should the State suspect or find that the Contractor

or any ofits 5ubcantracTt3rs~are^"not in compliance, the State may pursue any antf atl~

remedies allowed by law, including, but not limited to suspension of work, termination of the

Agreement for default, and suspension and/or debarment of the Contractor. All costs

necessary to verify compliance are the responsibility of the Contractor.

25.0 FINGERPRINTING

25.1 The provisions of A.R.S. §46-141 (as may be amended) are hereby incorporated in their

entirety as provisions of this contract. For reference, these provisions include, but are not

limited to, the following:

25.1.1 Personnel who are employed by the Contractor, whether paid or not, and who are required or

allowed to provide services directly to juveniles or vulnerable adults shall submit a full set of

fingerprints to the Department for the purpose of obtaining a state and federal criminal

records check pursuant to section 41-1750 and Public Law 92-544 or shall apply for

fingerprint clearance card within seven working days of employment.

25.1.2 The Contractor shall assume the costs of fingerprint checks and may charge these costs to its

fingerprinted personnel. The Department may allow all or part of the costs of fingerprint

checks to be included as an allowable cost in a contract.

25.1.3 Except as provided in A.R.S. § 46-141, this contract may be cancelled or terminated

immediately if a person employed by the Contractor and who has contact with juveniles

certifies pursuant to the provisions of A.R.S. § 46-141 (as may be amended) that the person

is awaiting trial or has been convicted of any of the offenses listed therein in this State, or of

acts committed in another state that would be offenses in this State, or if the person does not

possess or is denied issuance of a valid fingerprint clearance card.

25.1.4 Personnel who are employed by any Contractor whether paid or not, and who are required or

allowed to provide services directly to juveniles shall certify on forms provided by the

Department of Economic Security and notarized whether they are awaiting trial on or have

ever been convicted of any of the offenses described in A.R.S. §46-141 (as may be

amended).

25.1.5 Personnel who are employed by any Contractor, whether paid or not, and who are required or

allowed to provide services directly to juveniles shall certify on forms provided by the

Department of Economic Security and notarized whether they have ever committed any act

of sexual abuse of a child, including sexual exploitation and commercial sexual exploitation,

or any act of child abuse.

26.0 INDEMNIFICATION

26.1 Indemnification for Contractor:

26.1.1 Each Party (as "Indemnitor") agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the other party

(as "Indemnitee") from and against any and all claims, losses, liability, costs, or expenses

(including reasonable attorney's fees) (hereinafter collectively referred to as "Claims") arising

out of bodily injury of any person (including death) or property damage, but only to the

extent that such Claims which result in vicarious/derivative liability to the Indemnitee are

caused by the act, omission, negligence, misconduct, or other fault of the Indemnitor, its

officers, officials, agents, employees, or volunteers.

26.2 Indemnification for Subcontractor

26.2.1 In addition, Gila County dba Gila Employment and Special Training shall cause its

contractor(s) and subcontractors, if any, to indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the

State of Arizona, any jurisdiction or agency issuing any permits for any work arising out of

this Agreement, and their respective directors, officers, officials, agents, and employees

(hereinafter referred to as "Indemnitee") from and against any and all claims, actions,

liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses (including court costs, attorneys' fees, and costs of

claim processing, investigation and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as "Claims") for bodily

ADES Contract Number: DE111093-001

Page 6 of 12



injury or personal injury (including death), or loss or damage to tangible or intangible

property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or willful acts

■*•- or omissionrof Grla County tlba Gila Employment anfrSpfc'ciar Training's contractor or any of

the directors, officers, agents, or employees or subcontractors of such contractor. This

indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under the Workers'

Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of such contractor to conform to any federal,

state or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree. It is the specific

intention of the parties that the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising

solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the Indemnitee, be indemnified by

such contractor from and against any and all claims. It is agreedthat such contractor will be

responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs where this

indemnification is applicable.

27.0 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

27.1 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR GOVERNMENTAL PARTIES TO AN IGA: None.

27.2 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR ANY CONTRACTORS USED BY A PARTY TO THE

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT:

(Note: this applies only to Contractors used by a governmental entity, not to the

governmental entity itself.) The State of Arizona in no way warrants that the minimum limits

contained herein are sufficient to protect the governmental entity or Contractor from

liabilities that might arise out of the performance of the work under this Agreement by the

Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors, and Contractor and the

governmental entity are free to purchase additional insurance.

A. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance: Contractor shall provide coverage with

limits of liability not less than those stated below.

1. Commercial General Liability - Occurrence Form

Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage, personal injury

and broad form contractual liability.

• General Aggregate $2,000,000

• Products - Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000

• Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000

• Blanket Contractual Liability - Written and Oral $1,000,000

• Fire Legal Liability $ 50,000

• Each Occurrence $1,000,000

a. The policy shall be endorsed to include coverage for sexual

abuse and molestation.

b. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional

insured language: "The State of Arizona and the

Department of Economic Security shall be named as

additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of

the activities performed by or on behalf of the

Contractor".

c. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the State of

Arizona, its departments, agencies, boards, commissions,

universities and its officers, officials, agents, and employees for

losses arising from work performed by or on behalf of the

Contractor.

This requirement may be satisfied with a policy combining General

and Professional Liability, provided that the General Liability

section of the policy is written on an occurrence basis, and includes

coverage for contractual liability.

ADES Contract Number: DE111093-001

Page 7 of 12



2. Business Automobile Liability

-firadij^injary and Property Damage for any owned, hired, and/or •--*- ■-*"*•'• — -*=■--

non-owned vehicles used in the performance of this Contract.

Combined Single Limit (CSL) $1,000,000

a. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional

insured language: "The State of Arizona and the Arizona

Department of Economic Security shall be named as

additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of

the activities performed by or on behalf of the

Contractor, involving automobiles owned, leased, hired

or borrowed by the Contractor".

b. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the State of

Arizona, its departments, agencies, boards, commissions,

universities and its officers, officials, agents, and employees for

losses arising from work performed by or on behalf of the

Contractor.

3. Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability

• Workers' Compensation Statutory

• Employers' Liability

• Each Accident $ 500,000

• Disease - Each Employee $ 500,000

• Disease - Policy Limit $1,000,000

a. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the State

of Arizona, its departments, agencies, boards, commissions,

universities and its officers, officials, agents, and employees

for losses arising from work performed by or on behalf of the

Contractor.

b. This requirement shall not apply to: Separately, EACH

contractor or subcontractor exempt under A.R.S. 23-901, AND

when such contractor or subcontractor executes the

appropriate waiver (Sole Proprietor/Independent Contractor)

form.

4. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions Liability)

• Each Claim $1,000,000

• Annual Aggregate $2,000,000

a. In the event that the professional liability insurance required

by this Contract is written on a claims-made basis, Contractor

warrants that any retroactive date under the policy shall

precede the effective date of this Contract; and that either

continuous coverage will be maintained or an extended

discovery period will be exercised for a period of two (2) years

beginning at the time work under this Contract is completed.

b. The policy shall cover professional misconduct or lack of

ordinary skill for those positions defined in the Scope of Work

of this contract.

ADES Contract Number: DE111093-001

Page 8 of 12



B. Additional Insurance Requirements: The policies shall include, or be endorsed to

include, the following provisions: The State of Arizona and the Arizona Department of

... ._. -Economic Security, wherever adefttrefifcri -fnsi/red status is required such additional

insured shall be covered to the full limits of liability purchased by the Contractor, even

if those limits of liability are in excess of those required by this Contract.

1. The Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with respect

to all other available sources.

2. Coverage provided by the Contractor shall not be limited to the liability

assumed under the indemnification provisions of this Contract.

C. Notice Of Cancellation: Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions

of this Contract shall provide the required coverage and shall not be suspended,

voided, canceled, or reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior

written notice has been given to the State of Arizona. Such notice shall be sent

directly to the Arizona Department of Economic Security, Office of Procurement, 1789

W. Jefferson St. Site Code 805Z, Phoenix, AZ 85007 unless the Scope of Work

Reporting Requirements specifies otherwise and shall be sent by certified mail,

return receipt requested.

D. Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with duly licensed or approved

non-admitted insurers in the state of Arizona with an "A.M. Best" rating of not less

than A- VII. The State of Arizona in no way warrants that the above-required

minimum insurer rating is sufficient to protect the Contractor from potential insurer

insolvency.

If the social services program utilizes the Social Service Contractors Indemnity Pool

(SSCIP) or other approved insurance pool for insurance coverage, SSCIP or the other

approved insurance pool is exempt from the A.M. Best's rating requirements listed in

this contract. If the contractor or subcontractor chooses to use SSCIP or another

approved insurance pool as its insurance provider, the contract/subcontract would be

considered in full compliance with insurance requirements relating to the A.M. Best

rating requirements.

E. Verification of Coverage: Each insurance policy required by this Contract must be in

effect at or prior to commencement of work under this Contract and remain in effect

for the duration of the project. Failure to maintain the insurance policies as required

by this Contract, or to provide evidence of renewal, is a material breach of contract.

The Contractor shall retain all certificates and endorsements at its office which shall be

available to the Department for review upon request.

F. Subcontractors: Contractors' certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as

insureds under its policies or Contractor shall furnish to the State of Arizona separate

certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor. All coverages for

subcontractors shall be subject to the minimum requirements identified above.

G. Approval: Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this

Contract shall be made by the Department of Administration, Risk Management

Section, whose decision shall be final. Such action will not require a formal Contract

amendment, but may be made by administrative action.

H. Exceptions: In the event the Contractor or sub-contractor(s) is/are a public entity,

then the Insurance Requirements shall not apply. Such public entity shall provide a

ADES Contract Number: DE111093-001

Page 9 of 12



Certificate of Self-Insurance. If the contractor or sub-contractor(s) is/are a State of

Arizona agency, board, commission, or university, none of the above shall apply.

In the event that Contractor determines that it may not be able to comply fully with

the insurance requirements set forth above in Section 20.0 of the Arizona Department

of Economic Security Special Terms and Conditions, the Contractor may request that

the insurance requirements be modified pursuant to paragraph 20.2.2(G), provided

that such request be delivered in writing to ADES at least ten days prior to the

solicitation due date or, if not a solicitation, prior to contract execution. Contractor

shall include with such request Contractor's justification for the modification with

supporting documentation.

As provided in paragraph 20.2.2(G), the Department of Administration, Risk

Management Section, shall decide whether such modification may be permitted. If the

Department of Administration, Risk Management, decides to grant permission, the

ADES Chief Procurement Officer shall then decide whether to approve the

modification.

Modifications that are approved will be done so on a case-by-case basis and shall not

affect the insurance requirements of other Contractors for whom modifications have

not been approved. If a Contractor's request has not been approved or a Contractor

fails to deliver its request prior to the applicable deadline, then the Contractor shall be

required to comply fully with the insurance requirements set forth in paragraph 20.0

above.

28.0 IT 508 COMPLIANCE

28.1 Unless specifically authorized in the Agreement, any electronic or information technology

offered to the State of Arizona under this agreement shall comply with A.R.S. §41-2531 and

§2532 and Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, which requires that employees and

members of the public shall have access to and use of information technology that is

comparable to the access and use by employees and members of the public who are not

individuals with disabilities.

29.0 MONITORING

29.1 The Department may monitor the Contractor and/or subcontractor and they shall cooperate

in the monitoring of services delivered, facilities and records maintained and fiscal practices

30.0 NON-AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

30.1 In accordance with A.R.S. §35-154, every payment obligation of the State under the

Agreement is conditioned upon the availability of funds appropriated or allocated for payment

of such obligation. If funds are not allocated and available for the continuance of this

Agreement, this Agreement may be terminated by the State at the end of the period for

which funds are available. No liability shall accrue to the State in the event his provision is

exercised, and the State shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments or for any

damages as a result of termination under this paragraph.

31.0 NON-DISCRIMINATION

31.1 In accordance with A.R.S. §41-1461 and Executive Order 2009-09, the Contractor shall

provide equal employment opportunities for all persons, regardless of race, color, religion,

. creed, religion, sex, age, national origin, disability or political affiliation. The Contractor shall

comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

ADES Contract Number: DEI 11093-001

Page 10 of 12



32.0 OFFSHORE PERFORMANCE OF WORK PROHIBITED

32.1 Due to security and identity protection concerns, direct services under this contract shall be

performed within the borders of tire-Uniteti States. Any services that are described in the

specifications or scope of work that directly serve the State of Arizona or its clients and may

involve access to secure or sensitive data or personal client data or development or

modification of software for the State shall be performed within the borders of the United

States. Unless specifically stated otherwise in the specifications, this definition does not apply

to indirect or 'overhead' services, redundant back-up services or services that are incidental

to the performance of the contract. This provision applies to work performed by

subcontractors at all tiers - ■•■

33.0 RIGHT OF OFFSET

33.1 The Department shall be entitled to offset against any sums due the Contractor, any

expenses or costs incurred by the Department, or damages assessed by the Department

concerning the Contractor's non-conforming performance or failure to perform the

Agreement, including expenses, costs and damages.

34.0 SCRUTINIZED BUSINESS

34.1 In accordance with A.R.S. §35-391.06 and A.R.S. §35-393.06, the Contractor certifies that

the Contractor does not have scrutinized business operations in Sudan or Iran.

35.0 SUBCONTRACTS

35.1 The Contractor shall provide copies of each contract with a subcontractor relating to the

provision of contract services to the Department upon five (5) calendar days of the request.

36.0 THIRD- PARTY ANTITRUST VIOLATIONS

36.1 The Contractor assigns to the Department any claim for overcharges resulting from antitrust

violations concerning materials or services supplied by third parties to the Contractor, toward

fulfillment of this Agreement.

37.0 UNALLOWABLE COSTS

37.1 The cost principles set forth in the Code of Federal Regulations, 48 CFR, Chapter 1,

Subchapter e, Part 31, (October 1, 1991), including later amendments and editions, on file

with the Arizona Secretary of State and incorporated by this reference, shall be used to

determine the allow ability of incurred costs for the purpose of reimbursing costs under

contract provisions that provide for the reimbursement of costs. Those costs which are

specifically defined as unallowable therein will not be submitted for reimbursement by the

Contractor and may not be reimbursed with Department funds.

37.2 In addition, the Contractor shall comply with the following publications (including subsequent

revisions), as applicable:

1. OMB Circular A-87 for State, local and Indian Tribal Governments.

2. OMB Circular A-122 for private non-profit organizations other than institutions of

higher education, hospitals or others specified in A-122.

3. OMB Circular A-21 for educational institutions.

4. OMB Circular A-133 for audits of institutions of higher education and other non-profit

institutions.

38.0 ATTACHMENTS

38.1 The following list of attachments constitutes an integral part of subject agreement:

38.1.1 Scope of Work Client Access, Education and Information (Career Exploration and Supported

Education)

38.1.2 Service Implementation Questionnaire (Attachment 01)

38.1.3 Price Sheet (Attachment 02)

ADES Contract Number: DE111093-001

Page 11 of 12



38.1.4 Request for Search of Central Registry for Background Check (Attachment 03)

38.1.5 Facility Location Chart (Attachment 04).

39.0 EXHIBITS

39.1 The following list of exhibits constitutes an integral part of subject agreement:
39.1.1 Client Service Plan (Exhibit A)

39.1.2 Career Exploration Summary (Exhibit B)

39.1.3 Contractor Code of Conduct (Exhibit C)

39.1.4 Client Transportation Requirements (Exhibit D)

39.1:5 Monthly Progress Report (Exhibit E)

39.1.6 Quarterly Report (Exhibit F)

39.1.7 Contractor Billing Form (Exhibit G)

39.1.8 Data Sharing Agreement (Exhibit J)

ADES Contract Number: DE111093-001

Page 12 of 12



Attachment 02

Client Access, Education and Information (Career Exploration and Supported Education)

Price Sheet

Item # 1: CAREER EXPLORATION: One Individual Hour, sixty (60) minutes, of

actual time spent providing services to one RSA client.

Qty

1.0

Unit Cost

55

UOM

HR- Hour

Total Discount Amt. Tax Rate Tax Amount Total Cost

Item # 2: CAREER EXPLORATION One Group Hour, sixty (60) minutes, of actual

time spent with a client who is in attendance in a group of two (2) to

six (6) clients receiving direct services.

Qty

1.0

Unit Cost

55

UOM

HR - Hour

Total Discount Amt. Tax Rate Tax Amount Total Cost

Item # 3: SUPPORTED EDUCATION One Individual Hour means sixty (60) minutes

of actual time spent providing services to one RSA client.

Qty

1.0

Unit Cost

50

UOM

HR - Hour

Total Discount Amt. Tax Rate Tax Amount Total Cost



Client Access, Education and Information

(Career Exploration and Supported Education) Gila County

Intergovernmental Agency Agreement # DE111093-001

APPLICANT:

GILA COUNTY

dba, GILA EMPLOYMENT AND & TRAINING PROGRAM

5515 South Apache Ave. Suite 200

GLOBE, AZ 85501

(928) 425-7631

CONTACT: DAVID B. CADDELL,

G.E.S.T PROGRAM MANAGER EXT. 8664

E-MAIL dcaddell@co.gila.az.us

FAX: (928)425-9468

Gila County, dba Gila Employment and Special Training

IGA Attachment 01 Service Implementation Questionnaire

Page 1 of6



The GEST Program Mission Statement:

"To provide employment services along with daily living skills to disabled clients in a

manner which supports and enhances self sufficiency, self esteem mutual respect, value

and dignity."

GEST PROGRAM COMMITMENT:

The GEST Program is committed to provide the very best services to the disabled

population, and to continue to improve and enhance the services that we provide. The

GEST staff continually participates in further education classes in the effort to be and

stay current in any changes regarding service delivery. It is our goal to continue to gain

further knowledge and skills to enable us to provide exemplary services to our clients.

By applying for and obtaining an "Enhancement Grant" through RSA the GEST Program

has been able to place on staff a Disability Specialist" who provides "one-on-one"

services to our clients and who assists clients navigate the One Stop Resource Room to

make it a viable resource to persons with disabilities. The Disability Specialist provides

a variety of extensive one-on-one and group services to our clients. GEST staff is

certified in all required trainings, have class a State of Arizona Department of Public

Safety fingerprint clearance and the Disability Specialist has completed two ASL classes

at our local Community College, and an ADA online course.

Responses to Service Implementation Questionnaire:

1. Describe how linguistically and culturally appropriate services and materials

will be provided to meet the needs of persons with disabilities. The response

should include how staff will accommodate the clients and assure that they will

have ready access to services.

Gila County Division of Health and Community Services, GEST Program provides

services to a vast culturally diverse population with equally diverse disabilities. All

individuals have equal access to the variety of services regardless of disability, language,

culture and demographic or geographic location. GEST accommodates for the non-

English and monolingual population and provides interpreters for the hearing impaired.

GEST provides "family focused" service with consideration to cultural diversity and

beliefs. GEST has two wheelchair Maxivans available to assist with transportation while

providing services to those that require that accommodation. Both GEST Program

locations are ADA compliant for accessibility.

The GEST department provides services to diverse and targeted populations with the

same level of commitment to excellence and equality. GEST recognizes the uniqueness

of each individual's needs and level of service(s) based on cultural diversity and their

Gila County, dba Gila Employment and Special Training

IGA Attachment 01 Service Implementation Questionnaire

Page 2 of6



disability. Bilingual staff is available to assist the non-English and monolingual

population. GEST clients are comprised ei dk-ttfs w'^ are referred by "client choice",

through a contract with ADES/Vocational Rehabilitation Services, and clients who are

referred through a contract with the ADES/Division of Developmental Disabilities

GEST offices are located in Globe and Payson to provide services to all individuals with

disabilities, throughout Gila County including the San Carlos Indian Reservation. GEST

staff is fully trained in all aspects of service delivery, they have an excellent

understanding of the special needs of persons with disabilities and other barriers, and an

understanding of client rights, principals of normalization and they have the ability to

relate well to all persons with disabilities. GEST staff is certified in CPR, First Aid, and

Crisis Intervention, and they all posses Fingerprint Clearance as required. GEST staff:

GEST Program Manager, one Job Coach, a Mobile Crew Coordinator, a One Stop Center

Disability Specialist in the Globe area, and one Job Coach in the Payson area.

GEST has on staff a Disability Specialist who is bilingual who has completed two

courses in American Sign Language, a Psychology course and an Americans with

Disabilities Act online course.

Divisional staff is available if the need is evident to provide translation in Spanish,

Apache, Navajo and sign language. If a client referral indicates a need for this type of

accommodation, GEST will make those arrangements at no cost to the consumer.

2. Describe how Career Exploration and/or Supported Education outcomes will be

achieved.

Career Exploration:

When GEST receives a referral for services along with relevant client data and valid

authorization for the service provision, a meeting will be scheduled with the VRC, and

the client within ten business days. GEST will review all pertinent data that has been

provided specific to the clients' needs and goals to prepare for the scheduled pre-

consultation meeting.

During the pre-consultation/service planning meeting, a discussion is facilitated to

determine the client's immediate employment desires and employment opportunities in

the area that the client is interested in exploring. All parties in this planning session will

have input and full participation in this process to determine the needs of the client, i.e.

transportation, days available, etc... A Service Plan will be developed and when all

parties are in agreement and if it is determined that the GEST program will be the service

provider, Career Exploration services will begin within ten business days after a official

authorization has been received.

GEST staff will schedule and provide the services in accordance with the clients'

availability and the programs hours of operation. GEST will schedule and conduct an

introduction and orientation to the World of Work, which will cover the meaning, value,

and demands of work, provide information on the effect stress has on the general good

Gila County, dba Gila Employment and Special Training

IGA Attachment 01 Service Implementation Questionnaire

Page 3 of6



health utilizing information and guest speakers from the Gila County Health Department

arid-«keriamiable resources.-Staff-willprovide instruction on the effectivss-tawfe^dsAJ^

dealing with stress and the appropriate manner to deal with conflict by using a various

materials. Utilizing self-assessments and various skills assessments will assist in gaining

an increased awareness and understanding of the client's abilities, interests, values, and

needs.

GEST staff will assist the client in navigating the available employment networks, and

One Stop Center, and in utilizing the One Stop resources and/or other community

resources that are available.

Staff will assist the client in obtaining information regarding various industries, and

occupations and in understanding the difference between occupations, industries, and

work options. Utilizing all the above mentioned information, staff will assist the client in

deciding three (3) possible career options to research that are specific to the client's

personal factors.

GEST staff will assist in exploring the three career options chosen by the client and will

assist in locating, for review and discussion, the occupational trends, wages, job

responsibilities, education and training requirements, job outlook, and all other relevant

information. By utilizing specific goal oriented instructional videos and arranging for the

client to visit businesses where they could observe employees who are engaged in job

duties in the client's field of interest and by having the client participate in informal

interviews and discussion with employers and employees the job coach can assist the

client in making an informed decision for a vocational career goal.

Supported Education:

Prior to the pre-consultation meeting/service planning meeting, GEST staff will obtain

and review all data pertaining to the client's medical and psychological status and the

information contained in assessments/reports that have been completed.

During the pre-consultation/service planning meeting, a discussion is facilitated to

determine the client's immediate employment desires and employment opportunities in

the area that the client is interested in exploring. All parties in this planning session will

have input and full participation in this process to determine the needs of the client, i.e.

transportation, days available, etc... A Service Plan will be developed and when all

parties are in agreement and if it is determined that the GEST program will be the service

provider, Career Exploration services will begin within ten business days of receipt of an

official authorization.

GEST staff will provide assistance in locating appropriate educational and/or training

programs and assistance to the client in selecting the program most suitable for the client

to meet their vocational goal. GEST staff will assist the client in identifying the

educational cost and exploring financial aid resources and options to pay for the selected

educational/training program the client has chosen, (e.g., Pell Grant, private grants, etc.).

Gila County, dba Gila Employment and Special Training

IGA Attachment 01 Service Implementation Questionnaire

Page 4 of 6

4 --ii—i— —



Once the client has selected an educational or vocational program, GEST will assist the

client in-registering for the-^paBfMB»,i^rfd!ttatit)n-to the school campus and school

services. GEST staff will introduce the client to the Disability Services Resource center

on the campus and assist in coordinating the disability related accommodation services

and any needed special services, if applicable.

In order to monitor and evaluate the program performance a customer satisfaction survey

will be completed monthly by each client evaluating the services they received to ensure

that the service goals are being met.

3. Describe how Performance Standard #1, Acceptance Rate, will be met during

the contract term.

The GEST program accepts all referrals for service from Vocational Rehabilitation;

regardless of the disability and will continue to meet the requirements in Section 7.2.1 of

the Scope of Work. All service provision will commence within (10) business days of

the receipt of authorization from VR.

When the GEST Program Manager receives a referral for services from a VR Counselor,

all reports/data relevant for successful service provision will be reviewed prior to the

service planning meeting. During the service planning meeting GEST staff will

participate in discussion regarding the client's needs and determine appropriate services

to be provided that will lead towards achievement of a successful outcome.

4. Describe how Performance Standard #2, Successful Completion Rate, will be

met during the contract term.

The GEST program is well recognized and respected in Gila County as the premier

service provider, which opens many doors in our community. The program has also

enjoyed a high success rate in providing services which assist our clients in achieving

their individual employment and educational goals.

Overall program performance and the successful completion rate will be met by a regular

monitoring and review of the clients' participation and consistent completion of

Individual Instruction Plan objectives. An evaluation of the client's progress and service

provided will ensure that the completion rate will be met, and through the review of

monthly progress reports completed by GEST staff and monthly meetings with the VRC,

the GEST Program Manager will be able to determine the level of achievement attained

by the client and the overall success of services provided. Utilizing pre and post

assessment of the client's progress will assist in monitoring and determining client and

program success.

Through the above mentioned process, the Program Manager will also be able to measure

the level of rehabilitation of the client to ensure that 80% achievement is obtained. It is

not anticipated that the GEST Program will not achieve the performance standard

Gila County, dba Gila Employment and Special Training

IGA Attachment 01 Service Implementation Questionnaire

Page 5 of 6



mentioned above however, ifGESTfalls below the requiredpercentage, GESTwill work

*3!mziy-'wiih the local- Vocational Rehabilitation CounselorS'by^regmimF e&mnmitxttion

and collaboration until the percentage ofacceptance is in compliance with Section 7.2.2

ofthe Scope of Work.

Gila County, dba Gila Employment and Special Training

IGA Attachment 01 Service Implementation Questionnaire

Page 6 of6



Attachment 6

Arizona Department of Economic Security

-• r^^j^^tefeab^tethaa^orvices Administration. ,

FACILITY LOCATION"AND STAFFING CHART-GILA COUNTY

Legal Business NameGila County

Doing Business AsGila Employment and Special Training

If you provide services in one or more service locations, please complete a Facility Location and Staffing Chart for each location

Service Location Address (City State Zip Code County ) 5515 South Apache Ave. Suite 200 Globe, Arizona 85501 Gila

Telephone Number

928-402-8664

Fax Number

928-425-9468

Email address

dcaddell@co.gila.az.us

Contact Person's Name David B. Caddell

Days And Hours Of OperationMonday to Friday 8 AM to 5 PM, except holidays and the Friday after Thanksgiving.

List the Staff and/or Subcontractors that will provide this service at this location:

First and Last name Employee

Subcontractor

David B. Caddell

Catherine Levario

Phillis Weaver SD

Patricia Rocha SDEIEI

SDED

sDeD

The facility(s) listed above will not be open on those holidays marked below (check box for applicable holidays):

E3 New Year's Day
H President's Day

IS] Memorial Day

□ Rosh Hashanah

S Veterans' Day

□ Other:

E3 Martin Luther King Jr.'s Birthday

□ Washington's Birthday

E] Independence Day

□ Yom Kippur
E3 Thanksgiving Day

□ Lincoln's Birthday

□ Good Friday

E] Labor Day
D Columbus Day

D Christmas Day

□

Does this Facility Location meet minimum accessibility requirements as required by the American with Disability Act

of 1990 (ADA) and the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 (ABA). Yes EJ No D



Attachment 6

Arizona Department of Economic Security

- . Rehabilitation Services Adjnip.Hj&atjga, ■ ,*■,.!,„.-.!>,..

FACILITY LOCATION AND STAFFING CHART-GILA COUNTY

Legal Business IMameGila County

Doing Business AsGila Employment and Special Training

If you provide services in one or more service locations, please complete a Facility Location and Staffing Chart for each location

Service Location Address (City State Zip Code County ) 107 West Frontier Street Suite C, Arizona 85541 Gila

Telephone Number

928-402-8664

Fax Number

928-425-9468

Email address

dcaddell@co.gila.az.us

Contact Person's Name David B. Caddell

Days And Hours Of OperationMonday to Friday 8 AM to 5 PM, except holidays and the Friday after Thanksgiving.

List the Staff and/or Subcontractors that will provide this service at this location:

First and Last name

Leona Bowman

Employee

Subcontractor

SDEE1

sDeD

sDeD

SDED

SDED

sDeD

The facility(s) listed above will not be open on those holidays marked below (check box for applicable holidays):

E3 New Year's Day
13 President's Day
13 Memorial Day
□ Rosh Hashanah
S Veterans' Day
□ Other:

E] Martin Luther King Jr.'s Birthday
□ Washington's Birthday

K Independence Day
□ Yom Kippur
El Thanksgiving Day

13 _

□ Lincoln's Birthday
□ Good Friday
El Labor Day
□ Columbus Day
□ Christmas Day

□

Does this Facility Location meet minimum accessibility requirements as required by the American with Disability Act
of 1990 (ADA) and the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 (ABA). Yes 13 No □



 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-2056     Consent Agenda Item      4. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/03/2013  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Community
Services Division Director

Submitted By: Cecilia Bejarano, Executive
Administrative Assistant, Community
Services Division

Department: Community Services Division Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.
Fiscal Year: 2013 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

1/1/2013 - 12/31/2013 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 9 to Agreement No. 700518523 for Energy Wise Low Income Weatherization with
Arizona Public Service.

Background Information
The Arizona Public Service (APS) Energy Wise Low Income Weatherization Program is administered by
Community Action Agencies located in APS territory.  These agencies provide a variety of weatherization
services designed to help people save energy and increase the comfort level of their home.  The Low
Income Weatherization Assistance Program has the primary mission of reducing the fuel or electricity
expense for space heating, space cooling, and water heating for income eligible households, while
improving the health and safety of the dwelling's occupants.

Evaluation
Amendment No. 9 to Agreement No. 700518523 between Arizona Public Service and Gila County
Division of Community Services, Community Action Program, provides funding in an amount " not to
exceed $141,429.00" for the calendar year 2013.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors approving Amendment No. 9 to agreement No. 700518523 the Gila County
Community Action Program will continue to provide weatherization services to eligible citizens of Gila
County.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve this Agreement Amendment.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 9 to Agreement No. 700518523 (Energy Wise Low Income Weatherization
Program) between Arizona Public Service (APS) and the Gila County Division of Community Services,
Community Action Program, whereby APS will provide funding in an amount not to exceed $141,429 for
the repairs, reconditioning, replacement or restoration of deficiencies in a customer's qualified home in
order to make such homes energy efficient (Weatherization Services), to eligible citizens residing in Gila
County for the period January 1, 2013, through December 31, 2013.

Attachments
Amendment No. 9 Contract 700518523 APS
Amendment No. 8 Contract 700518523 APS



Amendment No 7 Contract 700518523 APS
Amendment No. 6 Contract 700518523 APS
Amendment No. 5 Contract 700518523 APS
Amendment No. 4 Contract 70051823 APS
Amendment No. 3 Contract 700518523
Amendment No. 2 Contract 700518523
Amendment No. 1 Contract No. 700518523
Original Contract 700518523 APS
Legal Explanation







































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   

ARF-2044     Consent Agenda Item      4. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/03/2013  

Submitted For: Eric Mariscal,
Elections
Director

Submitted By: David Rogers, Systems & Network
Communications Analyst, Asst County
Manager/Library District

Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of an Amendment to an Order to Call a Special Recall Election to be held on
November 5, 2013, for the purpose of recalling Pleasant Valley Fire District Board
Member David Braswell.

Background Information
On July 16, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved an Order to Call a Special Recall
Election for the Pleasant Valley Fire District.  In the Order the replacement site was to
be at the Young Public Library.  After communications with the Pleasant Valley Fire
District it was determined that the replacement site needed to be moved to the
Pleasant Valley Community Center.

Evaluation
This amendment to the original order is only for a change in location of the
replacement site from the Young Public Library to the Pleasant Valley
Community Center.  This change in location was requested by the Pleasant Valley Fire
District.

Conclusion
The Board of Supervisors should approve the Amendment to the Order to Call a
Special Recall Election to be held on November 5, 2013, for the Pleasant Valley Fire
District in order to change the replacement site from the Young Public Library to the
Pleasant Valley Community Center.

Recommendation
The Department of Elections recommends that the Board of Supervisors adopt this
Amended Order.

Suggested Motion
Adoption of an Amended Order to Call a Special Recall Election to be held on
November 5, 2013, for the purpose of recalling Pleasant Valley Fire District Board
Member David Braswell in order to change the location of the replacement site from
the Young Public Library to the Pleasant Valley Community Center.

Attachments
Amended Order - Pleasant Valley FD Recall



Original Order - Pleasant Valley FD Recall
ARS 19-209



 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Order to Call a Special Recall Election - Amended 
Pleasant Valley Fire District 

 
AN ORDER OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
PURSUANT TO ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES §19-209 CALLING FOR A 
SPECIAL RECALL ELECTION WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE PLEASANT 
VALLEY FIRE DISTRICT; DESIGNATING THE DATE FOR THE ELECTION; 
DESIGNATING THE FILING PERIOD FOR RECEIPT OF THE CANDIDATE 
NOMINATION PETITIONS; DESIGNATING THE LAST DAY FOR VOTER 
REGISTRATION; AND INVITING NOMINATION PETITIONS. 
 
 

WHEREAS, on June 20, 2013, petitions demanding the recall of David 
Braswell, governing board member of the Pleasant Valley Fire District, were presented 
to and filed with the Gila County Department of Elections; and 

 
WHEREAS, Mr. Braswell did not file a written tender to resign as a member of 

the District governing board by the deadline of June 27, 2013; and 
 

WHEREAS, the validity of the petitions has been determined. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY ORDERED: 
 

1. The petitions are found to contain a number of certified signatures that 
exceed the minimum number required by the constitution. 

2. A special election is called to determine the recall of David Braswell, 
governing board member of the Pleasant Valley Fire District. 

3. The election shall be held on November 5, 2013. 
4. The deadline for voter registration shall be October 7, 2013. 
5. The election shall be conducted by a vote-by-mail ballot. 
6. The ballot replacement site shall be located at the Pleasant Valley 

Community Center. 
 
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that notice is hereby given as follows: 

 
 Qualified electors within the fire district are hereby invited to submit a candidate 
nomination petition for the position of district governing board member.   
 
 



 
 
 
  
 
 
Order to Call a Special Recall Election / Braswell 
Pleasant Valley Fire District 
Page 2 
 
 
 
 
 
Nomination packets shall be available in the Gila County Department of Elections.  
The filing period for candidate nomination petitions shall begin on August 7, 2013, 
and ending at 5:00 p.m. on September 6, 2013. 
 
 
 APPROVED this 3rd day of September 2013. 
 
 
     GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
         
           
     __________________________________ 

     Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 







         

19-209. Order for special recall election 
A. If the officer against whom a petition is filed does not resign within five days, 
excluding Saturdays, Sundays and other legal holidays, after the filing as determined 
pursuant to section 19-208.03, the order calling a special recall election shall be 
issued within fifteen days and shall be ordered to be held on the next following 
consolidated election date pursuant to section 16-204 that is ninety days or more 
after the order calling the election. 
B. A recall election shall be called: 
1. If for a state office, including a member of the legislature, by the governor. 
2. If for a county officer, or judge or other officer of the superior court in a county, by 
the board of supervisors of that county. 
3. If for a city or town officer, by the legislative body of the city or town. 
4. If for a member of a school district governing board, by the county school 
superintendent of the county in which the school district is located. 
C. If a recall petition is against an officer who is directed by this section to call the 
election it shall be called: 
1. If for a state office, by the secretary of state. 
2. If for a county office, by the clerk of the superior court. 
3. If for a city or town office, by the city or town clerk.  

Page 1 of 1Format Document

6/19/2013http://www.azleg.gov/FormatDocument.asp?format=print&inDoc=/ars/19/00209.htm&Titl...



   

ARF-2026     Consent Agenda Item      4. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/03/2013  

Submitted For: Eric Mariscal,
Elections
Director

Submitted By: Liz Mata, Administrative Clerk, Elections
Department

Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Beaver Valley Fire District Governing Board Member Resignation and Appointment

Background Information
ARS 48-803 (B), if a vacancy occurs on the district board other than from expiration
of a term, the remaining board members shall fill the vacancy by appointment of an
interim member.  If the entire board resigns or for any reason cannot fulfill its duties,
the Board of Supervisors shall appoint an administrator to administer the district with
the same duties and obligations of the elected board.  If the Board of Supervisors fails
to appoint an administrator within thirty days, a special election shall be held to fill
the vacancies on the fire district board.

Evaluation
Beaver Valley Fire District Board member Lee Wright tendered his resignation
effective January 18, 2013.  The Beaver Valley Fire District governing board
appointed Sarah McAnerny to replace Mr. Wright and complete his term ending
December 31, 2016.

Conclusion
Sarah McAnerny has agreed to complete the term of resigned board member Lee
Wright which expires December 31, 2016.

Recommendation
The Elections Department recommends that the Board of Supervisors acknowledge
the resignation of Lee Wright and the appointment of Sarah McAnerny as a newly
appointed governing board member of the Beaver Valley Fire District.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the resignation of Lee Wright from the Beaver Valley Fire District
and the appointment of Sarah McAnerny to fulfill Mr. Wright's unexpired term of office
ending on December 31, 2016.

Attachments
BVFD Mtg min, resig ltr., oath











   

ARF-2027     Consent Agenda Item      4. G.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/03/2013  

Submitted For: Eric Mariscal,
Elections
Director

Submitted By: Liz Mata, Administrative Clerk, Elections
Department

Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Tri-City Fire District Governing Board Membership Changes

Background Information
ARS 48-803 (B), if a vacancy occurs on the district board other than from expiration
of a term, the remaining board members shall fill the vacancy by appointment of an
interim member. If the entire board resigns or for any reason cannot fulfill its duties,
the Board of Supervisors shall appoint an administrator to administer the district with
the same duties and obligations of the elected board. If the Board of Supervisors fails
to appoint an administrator within thirty days, a special election shall be held to fill
the vacancies on the fire district board.

Evaluation
Tri-City Fire District board member Joe Stapleton tendered his resignation effective 
March 12, 2013. The Tri-City Fire District governing board appointed John H.
Chism to replace Joe Stapleton and complete his term ending December 31, 2014.

Conclusion
John H. Chism has agreed to complete the term of resigned board member Joe
Stapleton which expires December 31, 2014.

Recommendation
The Elections Department recommends that the Board of Supervisors acknowledge
the resignation of Joe Stapleton and the appointment of John H. Chism as a newly
appointed governing board member of the Tri-City Fire District.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the resignation of Joe Stapleton from the Tri-City Fire District and
the appointment of John H. Chism to fulfill Mr. Stapleton's unexpired term of office
ending on December 31, 2014.

Attachments
Tri City FD, Mtg min., resig ltr.,oath











   

ARF-2033     Consent Agenda Item      4. H.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/03/2013  

Submitted For: Eric Mariscal,
Elections
Director

Submitted By: Liz Mata, Administrative Clerk, Elections
Department

Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Appointment of Precinct Committeemen to the Gila County Republican Party.

Background Information
ARS 16-821 (B) provides that if a vacancy exists in the office of the precinct
committeeman, the vacancy shall be filled by the Board of Supervisors from a list of
names submitted by the County Chairman of the appropriate political party.

Evaluation
Two individuals names have been submitted by the Gila County Republican
Committee Chair for appointment to the office of precinct committeeman.  Per statute,
the Board of Superviors has the authority to make this appointment.

Conclusion
The Republican Party submitted Anita Louise Christy and Thomas E. Christy for
appointment by the Board of Supervisors.

Recommendation
The Department of Elections recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the
appointment as submitted by the Gila County Republican Committee.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the appointment of the following precinct committee persons as submitted
by the Gila County Republican Committee: Payson #5-Thomas E. Christy, and Payson
#5-Anita Louise Christy.

Attachments
REP PC appointments







   

ARF-2053     Consent Agenda Item      4. I.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/03/2013  

Submitted For: Marian
Sheppard,
Clerk, BOS

Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk, Clerk of the
Board of Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Lions Club of Globe Special Event Liquor License Applications for September 19,
September 20, and September 21, 2013

Background Information
A qualified organization may submit an application to serve liquor at a special event
for up to 10 days per year.  The Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control
(Department) approves all liquor-related applications; however, part of the
Department's process requires that the local governing body review the application
and submit a recommendation for approval or disapproval to the Department for any
establishment located within the jurisdiction of that local governing body.

Evaluation
The Clerk of the Board of Supervisors has reviewed the applications and has
determined that they have been filled out correctly.

Conclusion
This charitable organization has properly completed the applications and if the Board
of Supervisors approves the applications, the Lions Club of Globe, Arizona, will have
used 5 of the allowable 10 days to serve liquor at a special event in 2013.

On January 22, 2013 and April 2, 2013, the Board of Supervisors
approved Applications for Special Event Licenses for 2 days in 2013 for this
organization.

Recommendation
The Clerk recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve these applications. 
Upon approval, the applicant has the responsibility to submit the applications to the
Department for its final approval.

Suggested Motion
Approval of three Special Event Liquor License Applications submitted by the Lions
Club of Globe, Arizona, Inc. to serve liquor on September 19, 2013, September 20,
2013, and September 21, 2013, at the Gila County Fairgrounds during the Gila
County Fair. 

Attachments



Lions Club Applications for Special Events on September 19-21-2013



























   

ARF-2055     Consent Agenda Item      4. J.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/03/2013  

Submitted For: Marian
Sheppard,
Clerk, BOS

Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk, Clerk of the
Board of Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Arizona State Parks Foundation Special Event Liquor License Application for October
19, 2013

Background Information
A qualified organization may submit an application to serve liquor at a special event
for up to 10 days per year.  The Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control
(DLLC) approves all liquor-related applications; however, part of the Department's
process requires that the local governing body review the application and submit a
recommendation for approval or disapproval to the Department for any establishment
located within the jurisdiction of that local governing body.

Evaluation
The Clerk of the Board of Supervisors has reviewed the application.

Conclusion
This charitable organization has properly completed the application and if the Board
of Supervisors approves the application, Arizona State Parks Foundation will have
used 1 day of the allowable 10 days to serve liquor at a special event in 2013.

Recommendation
The Clerk of the Board recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this
application.  Upon approval, the applicant has the responsibility to submit the
application to the DLLC for final approval.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by Arizona State
Parks Foundation to serve liquor during a fund-raiser event for Friends of Tonto
Natural Bridge State Park, an affiliate of Arizona State Parks Foundation, on October
19, 2013, for the benefit of Arizona State Parks Foundation.

Attachments
AZ State Parks Foundation Application for a Special Event on October 19, 2013













   

ARF-2047       4. K.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/03/2013  

Reporting
Period:

Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for July 2013

Submitted For: Colt White Submitted By: Michelle
Keegan,
Administrative
Clerk Senior,
Constable -
Payson

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for July 2013

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the July 2013 monthly activity report submitted by the Payson
Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for July 2013











































   

ARF-2058       4. L.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/03/2013  

Reporting
Period:

Clerk of Court's Report for the Month of July 2013

Submitted For: Anita Escobedo Submitted By: Vicki Aguilar,
Chief Deputy
Clerk of the
Superior
Court, Clerk of
the Superior
Court

Information
Subject
Clerk of the Superior Court's Office Monthly Report for July 2013

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgement of the July 2013 monthly activity report submitted by the Clerk of
the Superior Court's Office.

Attachments
Clerk of Court Report for 07/2013























   

ARF-2069     Consent Agenda Item      4. M.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/03/2013  

Reporting
Period:

July 30, 2013, August 6, 2013, and August 19, 2013, BOS Meeting
Minutes

Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk,
Clerk of the Board of
Supervisors

Information
Subject
July 30, 2013, August 6, 2013, and August 19, 2013, BOS Meeting Minutes.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the July 30, 2013, August 6, 2013, and August 19, 2013, Board of
Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Attachments
BOS 07-30-13 Meeting Minutes
BOS 08-06-13 Meeting Minutes
BOS 08-19-13 Meeting Minutes



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  July 30, 2013 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                    Gila County Courthouse 
Member Globe, Arizona                                
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman (via ITV); John D. Marcanti, 
Supervisor; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County Manager; Jacque Griffin, Assistant 
County Manager/Librarian; Bryan B. Chambers, Deputy Attorney Principal; 
and Laurie J. Kline, Deputy Clerk 
 
ABSENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; and Marian E. Sheppard, Clerk of the 
Board 
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a work session at 10:00 a.m. this 
date in the Board of Supervisors hearing room.  Cheryl Sluyter led the Pledge of 
Allegiance.  Vice-Chairman Martin chaired this meeting as Chairman Pastor 
was unable to attend the meeting. 
 
Item 2 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
A.  Presentation of the Gila County FY 2012 Financial Audit summary by 
Dennis Osuch, partner of CliftonLarsonAllen.   
 
Don McDaniel, County Manager, introduced Dennis Osuch, partner of 
CliftonLarsonAllen, to give the presentation of the single audit reporting 
package for the fiscal year ending on June 30, 2012.  Mr. Osuch stated that 
the reporting package includes the Highway User Revenue Fund (HURF) report, 
which is required by the State of Arizona; a management letter addressed to 
County management; annual expenditure limitation report; single audit report; 
annual financial report; and a communication of governance, which basically 
describes the scope of the audit to include CliftonLarsonAllen’s responsibilities 
as well as those of the County.  Significant estimates are included as part of 
the financial statements such as determining the useful life of assets and the 
estimated life of the landfills.  Uncorrected misstatements of the financial 

Page 1 of 5 
 



statements are also included, which are generally immaterial adjustments that 
were found as part of the audit that should be corrected going forward.  Then 
there were the material audit adjustments that were discovered as part of the 
audit that were reported to management and subsequently corrected and 
included in the financial reports.   In the course of conducting the sample 
based testing method, there were two expenditures of the HURF that were not 
used in accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes.  The amount was $1,900 
which wasn’t significant but should not have been recorded in the HURF.   
 
Also issued was the annual expenditure limitation report, which is also 
required by the State of Arizona and goes to the Auditor General.  An 
unqualified opinion on the annual expenditure limitation report was issued in 
accordance with the standards that are put out by the Auditor General.  Gila 
County fell below the expenditure limit by approximately $2.7M-$2.8M during 
the year.  The figure is calculated by what the State has determined does and 
does not go into the expenditure limit report, so that is how this number is 
reconciled.  An unqualified opinion on the annual financial statements was 
issued, which means that the financial statements are presented in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles.  The major governmental funds 
for the County are the General Fund and the Public Works Fund because these 
funds are determined to be 10% or 5% of the total assets, liabilities, revenues 
and expenses.  All other governmental funds are included in another column 
entitled “Other Governmental Funds.”  The County also has a “Proprietary 
Fund,” which is a major fund for the landfills and is presented separately.   
 
Mr. Osuch stated that because the County expended over $500,000 in federal 
grant awards, an annual single audit is also required to be performed.  Seven 
federal programs were tested as part of that single audit. A report was issued 
and an opinion was provided on the County’s compliance with the 
requirements of those federal grants.  Internal controls are also reported as 
they relate to the federal programs.  
 
Also included in the single audit report is the government auditing standards 
report (yellow book report), which is a report on internal controls.  These 
internal controls are specifically related to the financial statements.  Some 
significant deficiencies and some material weaknesses were discovered, which 
are also included in the report.  Mr. Osuch stated that 2012 is the last year 
this company will be conducting the audit, but wanted to share some new 
accounting requirements that will be forthcoming in 2013.  He added that for 
2013, there will be several new Governmental Accounting Standards that will 
be implemented and will affect the financial statements.  He recommended that 
County management meet with the new auditors to review those.  Mr. Osuch 
proceeded to review some of the new Standards.  Supervisor Marcanti 
expressed concerns with some of the grant allocations and requested to meet 
with Don McDaniel, County Manager, to further discuss how to eliminate some 
of the recurring findings.  Vice-Chairman Martin advised that she would be 

Page 2 of 5 
 



scheduling a meeting with Mr. Osuch to address some of her concerns.  It was 
suggested that a group meeting be scheduled with Mr. Osuch so that 
Chairman Pastor could also be present.  
 
Mr. McDaniel added that the County has made great strides in bringing the 
audits current.  The County was 3-4 years behind in 2010 and, at that time, a 
concerted effort was made to bring the audits up to date.  Mr. McDaniel 
expressed a concern regarding the 8 recurring findings, and he mentioned that 
he is working with Mr. Osuch to resolve those findings as one of them dates 
back to 2003.  He mentioned that the Finance Department has undergone 
many recent staffing changes, which may have had an effect on the audit.  The 
Finance Department is almost fully staffed with a newly hired Finance Director, 
Jeff Hessenius.  Mr. McDaniel then stated that the County may want to 
consider hiring someone from a financial consulting company such as 
CliftonLarsonAllen.   
 
Vice-Chairman Martin called on Mr. Osuch for his final comments.  Mr. Osuch 
stated that when CliftonLarsonAllen was hired by the County 3 years ago, the 
audits were several years behind.  He acknowledged that the audits are 
current; however, he suggested some areas which were listed as findings that 
need to be addressed. Of priority is for the County to address control issues to 
ensure federal compliance.  He then advised that County financial staff should 
work toward preparing their own financial statements.  Previously, 
CliftonLarsonAllen staff reviewed the County’s financial records and then 
prepared the financial statements, which included making considerable 
adjustments.  He feels the financial statements should be prepared with no 
adjustments being made by the auditor.  On behalf of the Board, Vice-
Chairman thanked Mr. Osuch for the presentation.   
 
B.  Information/Discussion regarding the 4th and final phase of Arizona 
Public Service Energy Services Company, Inc.'s (APSES) Energy Audit  
Report, which is the design and installation of energy conservation  
measures as described and recommended by APSES in the Energy Audit  
Report.   
 
Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, stated that some time ago the 
County decided to take advantage of an energy audit provided by APSES.  He 
advised that the energy audit was conducted and at such time that a 
presentation of the audit results was going to be made to the Board of 
Supervisors, the County was in the process of installing solar energy panels, 
which affected the findings of the audit. The Energy Audit Report has since 
been revised to include the recent installation of the solar energy panels.  Mr. 
Stratton introduced Leonard Byrd, Senior Business Development Manager of 
AMERESCO, to present the Energy Audit Report.  
 

Page 3 of 5 
 



Mr. Byrd advised that since the time an agreement was executed between Gila 
County and APSES, APSES was purchased by AMERESCO.  Mr. Byrd provided 
a PowerPoint presentation.  Gila County currently spends approximately 
$520,738 for the cost of electricity, natural gas and water, of which 
approximately $441,000 is for the cost of electricity.  Based on the findings and 
the implementation of the proposed Energy Conservation Project, AMERESCO 
proposes to annually save the County $89,011 or 17%.  Mr. Byrd stated that 
the purpose of the energy conservation project is for counties to be able to fund 
infrastructure improvements with the money that is derived from energy 
savings. 
 
Should the Board of Supervisors decide to move with the Energy Conservation 
Project, some of the features and benefits are: 
 

• A controls system upgrade at the Courthouse and Central Heights 
facility. 

• Lighting upgrades across all County facilities which includes 3,809 
fixtures. 

• Retrofit of 361 water fixtures to conserve water across all County 
facilities, which will primarily apply to the jail facilities. 

• Local jobs will be created. 
• Environmental benefits. 
• AMERESCO guaranteed savings. 
• The objective for the County is to stay budget neutral by using utility 

dollars to fund infrastructure improvement. 
 

Mr. Byrd stated, “The project we’re looking at will save $85,000 a year, so that 
is utility dollars that would stay in the budget and be used for debt service to 
fund these projects over the next 15 years.  So at the bottom line, you actually 
get the infrastructure improved in the facilities for no more than you would be 
putting out to utilities. The project cost is $1,338,000 versus a savings of 
$1,668,000.”  He further stated that at the end of the 15-year finance term, the 
life of the equipment will last much longer due to improvements that have been 
made to the equipment.  For example, the main components inside the lighting 
fixtures will last 20-25 years; the water fixtures will last 20-25 years; and the 
control systems typically will last 20 years.  Mr. Byrd stated that most of the 
equipment to be used come with a 3- to 5-year warranty.  He advised that 
AMERESCO is in the 4th phase of energy savings projects with Pinal County 
that began in 1999.  He further stated that project savings are based on the 
County’s 2010-2011 utility costs, with a 3% escalation that is based on 
Consumer Price Index data 20-year average. Since the start of the audit APS 
has requested a 15% price increase that is not included in this cost reduction 
estimate.  Notwithstanding the price increase, the savings to the County will 
still be in excess of 3% annually.   
 

Page 4 of 5 
 



Supervisor Marcanti, who is an electrical contractor, stated that many County 
light fixtures are 30 years old.  He believes there will be a significant savings to 
the County by moving forward with this project.    
 
Jerry Ellison, a local news reporter for KQSS radio station, inquired as to 
whether or not the disposal of the compact florescent light bulbs is included in 
the cost of this project, to which Mr. Byrd answered that the recycling, 
reclaiming and completing the required Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 
paperwork is all part of the project and included in the price.  Mr. Stratton 
added that he felt it was a very thorough and accurate audit and he agreed 
with the information contained therein.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that she 
agreed with Supervisor Marcanti that the County should move forward with 
this proposed project.   

 
Item 3 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public  
benefit to allow individuals to address issue(s) within the Board's  
jurisdiction.  Board members may not discuss items that are not  
specifically identified on the agenda.  Therefore, pursuant to Arizona  
Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), action taken as a result of public 
comment will be limited to responding to criticism made by those who  
have addressed the Board of Supervisors, may ask staff to review the 
matter or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda for further  
discussion and decision at a future date.  
 
There were no requests to speak from public.  
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, Vice-
Chairman Martin adjourned the meeting at 10:45 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 

Page 5 of 5 
 



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  August 6, 2013 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                    Gila County Courthouse 
Member Globe, Arizona                                
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV); John D. Marcanti, Supervisor; Don E. McDaniel Jr., County Manager; 
Bryan B. Chambers, Deputy Attorney Principal; Jacque Griffin, Assistant 
County Manager/Librarian; Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board; and Laurie 
Kline, Deputy Clerk. 
 
Item 1 - CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION  
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Michael O’Driscoll led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Pastor Anthony Garisi of the First Baptist Church in 
Payson delivered the invocation. 
 
Item 2 – PRESENTATIONS:  
 
A.  Presentation of the Officer of the Quarter award by Bradley D. 
Beauchamp, Gila County Attorney, to Deputy George Carrillo of the Gila 
County Sheriff's Office.  
 
Bradley D. Beauchamp, Gila County Attorney, stated that June Ava Florescue, 
Deputy County Attorney, nominated Deputy Sheriff George Carrillo for this 
Officer of the Quarter award.  Mr. Beauchamp reviewed Deputy Carrillo’s 
professional experience and stated that Deputy Carrillo takes his job very 
seriously and produces impeccable reports.  Mr. Beauchamp presented Deputy 
Carrillo the award plaque and stated that the chosen Officer’s agency also 
receives an award.  Deputy Carrillo accepted the award and thanked his family, 
co-workers, the community and Bianca DalMolin, who was present in the 
audience, for all the help and support that he has received.  Adam Shepherd, 
Gila County Sheriff, accepted the award on behalf of the Sheriff’s Office.   
 
Item 3 – PUBLIC HEARINGS:  

Page 1 of 14 
 



A.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt an Order for the Town of 
Payson's de-annexation and for the Town of Star Valley's annexation of 
certain land located in the south west quarter of Section 36 (in 
approximately the east 2900 block of the Posey Court Alignment) 
pursuant to A.R.S. §9-471.02.  
 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, explained that per statutory requirement 
this is the time for a public hearing that was set on July 2, 2013 by the Board 
of Supervisors to allow for public comment regarding the request to de-annex 
land within the Town of Payson and annex land within the Town of Star Valley.  
Both Towns have adopted ordinances to affect this change for the “clean up” of 
said land, and there has been no written objections received in response to the 
public notice and/or newspaper publications.  Chairman Pastor opened the 
public hearing and there were no comments from the public, so he closed the 
public hearing and asked for a motion from the Board.  Upon motion by Vice-
Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously 
adopted the Order for the Town of Payson's deannexation and for the Town of 
Star Valley's annexation of certain land located in the south west quarter of 
Section 36 (in approximately the east 2900 block of the Posey Court Alignment) 
pursuant to A.R.S. §9-471.02.  (A copy of the Order is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 13-08-01, 
which approves Gila County Planning and Zoning Case No. CUP-13-01, an 
application submitted by Kevin Fewell (owner) for a Conditional Use 
Permit on Gila County Assessor's tax parcel no. 202-14-056B located at 
641 N. Jack Mountain Loop, Globe, Arizona, to allow the construction of a 
well house/shop prior to construction of a residence.   
 
Bob Gould, Community Development Division Director, (via ITV from Payson) 
explained that this Conditional Use Permit (CUP) application submitted by 
Kevin Fewell is being presented to the Board as more of an administrative issue 
than a legislative issue.  No complaints or comments have been received from 
neighboring property owners or from the public regarding this application.   
Mr. Gould went on to state that Mr. Fewell is planning to construct a 
generator/solar powered shed prior to building a residential house on said 
property.  The shed would be facing a hill which will absorb noise from the 
generator.  The Planning and Zoning Commission met with regard to this issue 
on August 1, 2013, and as a result of the meeting, it is recommended that the 
Board issue a Conditional Use Permit for one year.   
 
Supervisor Marcanti inquired as to whether or not this property was located in 
a remote area, to which Mr. Gould replied that it is, in fact, located in a remote 
area.  Chairman Pastor called for public comment; there being no requests to 
speak from the public, he then closed the public hearing.  Upon motion by 
Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 

Page 2 of 14 
 



unanimously adopted Resolution No. 13-08-01, which approves Gila County 
Planning and Zoning Case No. CUP-13-01, an application submitted by Kevin 
Fewell (owner) for a Conditional Use Permit on Gila County Assessor's tax 
parcel No. 202-14-056B located at 641 N. Jack Mountain Loop, Globe, 
Arizona, to allow the construction of a well house/shop prior to construction of 
a residence.  (A copy of the Resolution is permanently on file in the Board 
of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
Item 4 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Proclamation No. 2013-05 
proclaiming August 1-31, 2013, as Child Support Awareness Month in Gila 
County.  
 
Bradley D. Beauchamp, Gila County Attorney, stated that the reason for this 
request to adopt a Proclamation is to not only encourage and remind parents to 
provide child support for the material needs of the children, but also for the 
emotional needs of the children of Gila County.  He gave kudos to the hard-
working staff of the Child Support Enforcement Division of the County 
Attorney’s Office and outlined duties and responsibilities that staff provides, 
such as establishing paternity, enforcing child support orders and modifying 
child support.  Mr. Beauchamp added that Child Support staff provides a 
service to the citizens of Gila County in both pursuing child support and 
making sure that child support is calculated in the right amount.  For fiscal 
year 2013, the Child Support Division collected $4,573,834 in child support 
payments.  He gave thanks to Jeff Dalton, Deputy Attorney Principal, for the 
supervision and leadership imparted to the Child Support Division.  Upon 
motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board 
unanimously adopted Proclamation No. 2013-05 proclaiming August 1-31, 
2013, as Child Support Awareness Month in Gila County.  (A copy of the 
Proclamation is permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve a request for community 
agency/economic development funds and instruct County staff to prepare 
and sign an Intergovernmental Agreement between Rim Country 
Education Foundation (RCEF) and Gila County wherein the County agrees 
to provide $12,500 to RCEF and RCEF agrees to utilize the funds to pay 
for pre-purchase costs associated with bringing a four (4) year university 
to the Town of Payson in Gila County, Arizona.   
 
Don McDaniel, County Manager, explained that the Rim Country Education 
Foundation is a 501c3, a not-for-profit funding agency for the Rim Country 
Education Alliance, which is a separate legal entity, and was formed 
approximately two and a half years ago to bring a four-year university to 
Payson.  The Alliance is now in the process of purchasing 260 acres from the 
Tonto National Forest Service and needs pre-purchase cost funds.  He stated 

Page 3 of 14 
 



that last year the Board of Supervisors approved providing $12,500 to the 
Foundation for this purpose, and staff recommends that an additional $12,500 
be approved as an economic development fund expenditure.    
 
Vice-Chairman Martin is pleased that the U.S. Forest Service has finally agreed 
to sell this property.  Chairman Pastor asked Mr. McDaniel to provide reports 
and updates on the project.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved a request for 
community agency/economic development funds and instructed County staff 
to prepare and sign an Intergovernmental Agreement between Rim Country 
Education Foundation (RCEF) and Gila County wherein the County agrees to 
provide $12,500 to RCEF and RCEF agrees to utilize the funds to pay for pre-
purchase costs associated with bringing a four (4) year university to the Town 
of Payson in Gila County, Arizona.  
 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize staff to explore various 
alternatives for acquiring additional office space, including, if appropriate, 
submitting proposals on properties that would subsequently be considered 
by the Board of Supervisors for final approval. Pursuant to A.R.S. 38-
431.03(A)(7) the Board of Supervisors may vote to meet in 
executive session to discuss and consult with its representatives 
concerning negotiations for the purchase, sale, or lease or real property.  
 
Chairman Pastor moved to agenda item 4D at this time and stated that the 
Board would return to agenda item 4C after addressing the remaining agenda 
items.   
 
D.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental 
Agreement between the Arizona Department of Economic Security and 
Gila County in the amount of $2,371,056 for the continued provision 
of Workforce Investment Act services to eligible youth, adults, and 
dislocated workers in the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Area for the 
period April 1, 2013, to June 30, 2018.  
 
Malissa Buzan, Community Services Division Director, asked that the Board 
approve this Intergovernmental Agreement in order to continue providing 
Workforce Investment Act services to eligible youth, adults, and dislocated 
workers in both Gila and Pinal counties.  Chairman Pastor inquired as to 
whether or not the County has an Area Plan in place to which Ms. Buzan 
confirmed there is an Area Plan that is updated on an annual basis for the 
Gila-Pinal Workforce Investment Area.  In the year 2018, if the County retains 
the status quo and continues to provide these services, the Plan will be re-
written with revisions will be done annually.  Ms. Buzan agreed to provide an 
Executive Summary to the Board. 
 

Page 4 of 14 
 



Chairman Pastor also asked if the grand funds are being completely utilized so 
that none of the funds will have to be returned to the Arizona Department of 
Economic Security.  Ms. Buzan stated that the County expends all of the 
funds, and the programs are contracted as follows:  The youth program is 
contracted to Central Arizona College (CAC); the adult program to Central 
Arizona Governments (CAG); and the dislocated worker program is delivered in-
house through Gila County’s Re-employment and Pre-layoff Assistance Center 
(REPAC).  The funds are distributed on an as-needed basis with an 
approximate 80/20 division between Gila and Pinal counties.  Upon motion by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board 
unanimously approved an Intergovernmental Agreement between the Arizona 
Department of Economic Security and Gila County in the amount of 
$2,371,056 for the continued provision of Workforce Investment Act services to 
eligible youth, adults, and dislocated workers in the Gila/Pinal Workforce 
Investment Area for the period April 1, 2013, to June 30, 2018. 
 
Item 5 – CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  
 
A.  Approval of Amendment No. 4 to an Intergovernmental Agreement 
(Contract No. HG060003) between the Arizona Department of Health 
Services and the Gila County Division of Health and Emergency Services 
in the amount of $135,000 to extend tobacco free services from July 1, 
2013, through June 30, 2014.  
 
B.  Approval for the renewal of an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract 
No. GRA-RC004-13-0556-01-Y2) between Gila County and First Things 
First in the amount of $190,000 to continue to provide Healthy Steps 
Program services for the period of July 1, 2013, through June 30, 2014.  
 
C.  Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS13-
049248) between Gila County and the Arizona Department of Health 
Services to provide for the continuation of the County's Tuberculosis 
Control Program for the period July 1, 2013, to June 30, 2018, in 
the amount of $12,000 annually.  
 
D.  Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS13-
040496) between Gila County and the Arizona Department of Health 
Services in the amount of $276,625 to continue to provide HIV care and 
support services to Gila, Apache and Navajo Counties for the period of 
April 1, 2013, through March 31, 2015.   
 
E.  Approval of Amendment No. 2 to a Weatherization Low-Income 
Assistance Agreement (Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y2) between the 

Page 5 of 14 
 



State of Arizona, Governor's Office of Energy Policy (OEP) and the Gila 
County Division of Community Services, Housing Services, whereby OEP 
will provide up to $7,150 in additional funding available for 
reimbursement for the period July 1, 2013, through June 30, 2014.  
 
F.  Approval to accept a Crime Victim Assistance Grant Agreement (ACJC 
Grant No. VA-14-020) between Gila County and the Arizona Criminal 
Justice Commission in the amount of $17,600 for the period of July 1, 
2013, to June 30, 2014.  
 
G.  Approval to accept a Victim Compensation Grant Agreement 
(ACJC Grant No. VC-14-052) between Gila County and the Arizona 
Criminal Justice Commission in the amount of $69,146 for the period of 
July 1, 2013, to June 30, 2014.  
 
H.  Approval to accept a Drug, Gang and Violent Crime Control Grant 
Agreement (ACJC Grant No. DC-14-020) between Gila County and the 
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission in the amount of $63,818 for the 
period of July 1, 2013, to June 30, 2014. 
 
I.  Ratification of Reimbursable Agreement No. DTFH68-13-E-00043 with 
the Federal Highway Administration Central Federal Lands Highway 
Division in the amount of $396,155.  
 
J.  Approval of a Drug, Gang and Violent Crime Control Grant Agreement 
(FY 2014 Grant Cycle 27 Award - ACJC Grant No. DC-14-036) between 
the Gila County Sheriff's Office and the Arizona Criminal Justice 
Commission in the amount of $340,146 ($163,270 in federal funds, 
$108,846 in state funds and $68,030 in matching funds from the County's 
General Fund) to provide continued funding for the Gila County Drug, 
Gang and Violent Crime Task Force for the period July 1, 2013, through 
June 30, 2014.  
 
K.  Acknowledgment of the resignation of Pamela Sue Norman from the 
Pleasant Valley Fire District and the appointment of Edward E. Wisdom, 
term ending December 31, 2016.  
 
L.  Acknowledgment of William Sturges' resignation from the Alhambra 
Domestic Wastewater Improvement District governing board and the 
appointment of Cassandra Stephens to complete Mr. Sturges' unexpired 
term of office through December 31, 2016.  
 
M.  Approval of a fee-waiver request submitted by the Cobre Valley 
Regional Medical Center Foundation for use of the Fairgrounds Exhibit 
Hall from October 28, 2013 through October 31, 2013, for decorating, and 

Page 6 of 14 
 



on Friday, November 1, 2013, for the art and wine auction event. 
 
N.  Approval of an Application for Agent Change and Acquisition of 
Control for Jake's Corner Bar, LLC that was submitted by Ronald Glenn 
Meyer and Robin Lee Heppler, all of which pertains to a liquor license for 
Jake's Corner Bar.  
 
O.  Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by 
Pine Strawberry Fuel Reduction, Inc. to serve liquor during a fund-raiser 
dinner that is being held by Fossil Creek Creamery on September 21, 
2013, for the benefit of Pine Strawberry Fuel Reduction, Inc.  
P.  Acknowledgment of the June 2013 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.  
 
Q.  Acknowledgment of the May and June 2013 monthly activity reports  
submitted by the Globe Regional Constable's Office.  
 
R.  Acknowledgment of the Fiscal Year 2013 activity report submitted by 
the Globe Regional Constable's Office.  
 
S.  Acknowledgment of the June 2013 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Payson Regional Constable's Office.  
 
T.  Acknowledgment of the annual report for fiscal year 2012-2013 
submitted by the Payson Regional Constable's Office.  
 
U.  Acknowledgment of the June 2013 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.  
 
V.  Acknowledgment of the May 2013 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.  
 
W.  Acknowledgment of the April 2013 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Recorder's Office.  
 
X.  Acknowledgment of the May 2013 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Recorder's Office.   
 
Y.  Approval of the June 25, 2013, and July 2, 2013, Board of Supervisors' 
meeting minutes.  
 
Z.  Acknowledgment of Human Resources reports for the weeks of July 2, 
2013, July 9, 2013, July 16, 2013, July 23, 2013, and July 30, 2013.  
 
JULY 2, 2013 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 

Page 7 of 14 
 



1.  Christopher Bessenecker – Finance – Finance Director – 06/21/13 – 
General Fund – DOH 06/17/13 – Termination of employment 
2.  Lawrence Dorame – Rural Addressing – Rural Addressing Analyst – 
06/21/13 – General Fund – DOH 01/06/99 - Resignation 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
3.  Carolyn Bartling – Information Technology – Systems and Network Analyst – 
07/28/13 – General Fund 
4.  Keith Johnson – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer Sergeant – 04/10/13 – 
General Fund  
5.  Joy Riddle – County Attorney’s Office – Deputy Attorney Senior – 7/28/13 – 
General Fund 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
6.  Celena Cates – Rural Addressing – Rural Addressing Analyst – 06/24/13 – 
General Fund – Replacing Lawrence Dorame 
7.  Leonard Kerszykowski – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 07/01/13 – Drug 
Gang Violent Crime Control Fund – Replacing Travis Baxley 
8.  Brian Havey – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff Sergeant – 07/01/13 – From 
Sheriff LEBSF Program Fund – To General Fund – Replacing Justin Solberg 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
9.  Ernest Salcido – Constituent Services II – Temporary Laborer – 07/19/13 –  
General Fund – Extending temporary employment for an additional month 
10.  Curtis Johnson – Constituent Services II – Temporary Laborer – 07/19/13 
– General Fund – Extending temporary employment for an additional month 
11.  David Oropeza – Constituent Services II – Temporary Laborer – 07/19/13 – 
General Fund – Extending temporary employment for an additional month 
REQUEST TO POST: 
12.  Rural Addressing – Rural Addressing Analyst – Position vacated by  
Celena Cates 
13.  Assessor’s Office – Title Examiner – Position vacated by Wanda Rakoczy 
14.  Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk – Position vacated by Debra French 
15.  Clerk of Superior Court – Courtroom Clerk – Position vacated by Teresa 
Griego 
 
JULY 9, 2013 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
1.  Jaime Romero – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 2 – 07/05/13 – Adult 
Intensive Probation Supervision Fund – DOH 04/18/13 - Resignation 
NEW HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
2.  Fred Hornung – Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk – 07/30/13 – General 
Fund – Replacing Debra French 
3.  Angela Harte – Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk Senior – 07/15/13 – 
General Fund – Replacing Yvonne House 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
4.  Mark Gann – Public Works – Solid Waste Operations Supervisor – 07/24/13 
– Recycling and Landfill Management Fund 

Page 8 of 14 
 



5.  Dennis Dueker – Public Works – Road Maintenance/Equipment Operator – 
07/28/13 – Public Works Fund 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
6.  Megan Miller – Clerk of Superior Court – From Courtroom Clerk – To Court 
Clerk – 07/01/13 – General Fund – Replacing Donna DeBolt 
7.  Yvonne House – Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Office Supervisor – 07/01/13 
– General Fund – Replacing Judy Smrdel 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
8.  Stephanie Hawk – Community Services – WEX Participant – 03/18/13 – 
From WIA Fund – To Workforce Investment Act Fund – Extending temporary 
employment until 7/18/13 and changing date of hire to 3/18/13 
9.  David Franquero – Community Services – Career and Employment 
Specialist – 07/01/13 – From WIA Fund – To Workforce Investment Act Fund – 
Change in fund codes 
10.  Penny Miller – Community Services – Career and Employment Specialist – 
07/01/13 – From WIA Fund – To Workforce Investment Act Fund – Change in 
fund codes 
11.  Christina Throop – Community Services – Deputy REPAC Program 
Manager – 07/01/13 – From WIA Fund – To Workforce Investment Act Fund – 
Change in fund codes 
12.  Melvina Takala-Griffin – Community Services – Administrative Clerk 
Senior – 07/01/13 – From WIA Fund – To Workforce Investment Act Fund – 
Change in fund codes 
13.  Diana Russell – Community Services –REPAC Program Manager – 
07/01/13 – From WIA Fund – To Workforce Investment Act Fund – Change in 
fund codes 
14.  Dana True – Community Services – Accounting Clerk Senior – 07/01/13 – 
From WIA Fund – To Workforce Investment Act Fund – Change in fund codes 
15.  Nicolas Montague – Community Services – Accountant – 07/01/13 – From 
WIA Fund – To Workforce Investment Act Fund – Change in fund codes 
16.  Lisa Wilckens – Finance – Payroll Specialist – 07/01/13 – From Various 
Funds – To General Fund – Change in fund codes 
17.  Karen Shane Roberts – Clerk of Superior Court – Court Clerk – 07/01/13 – 
From Drug Enforcement/Superior Court Fund – To General Fund – Change in 
funding 
REQUEST TO POST: 
18.  Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk – Position vacated by Cate Gore 
19.  County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary – Position vacated by Robin 
Miller 
 
JULY 16, 2013 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
1.  Debra Moya – School Superintendent’s Office – Chief Deputy of School 
Superintendent’s Office – 08/09/13 – General Fund – DOH 07/01/73 – 
Retirement 

Page 9 of 14 
 



2.  Joe Munoz – Constituent Services II – Temporary Laborer – 06/21/13 – 
General Fund – DOH 03/18/13 – End of temporary employment 
3.  Gregory Szpotowski – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/01/13 – 
General Fund – DOH 02/18/13 - Resignation 
NEW HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
4.  Roberta Johnson – Health and Emergency Services – Public Health Nurse – 
07/15/13 – Health Service Fund – Replacing Jullie Mercer 
5.  Daniel Irish – Information Technology – Telecommunications and Budget 
Analyst – 07/15/13 – General Fund – Replacing Kaycee Stratton 
6.  Stephanie Chaidez – Public Fiduciary – Administrative Clerk – 07/15/13 – 
General Fund – Replacing Patty Comstock 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
7.  Martina Burnam – Probation – Probation Aide – 07/30/13 – General 
(.50)/Juvenile Probation Service Fee Funds 
8.  Teri Berumen – Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk Senior – 07/01/13 – 
General Fund  
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
9.  Eric Mariscal – From Recorder’s Office – To Elections – From Recorder’s 
Office Supervisor – To Elections Director – 07/15/13 – General Fund – 
Replacing Linda Eastlick 
10.  Russell Toumberlin – Sheriff’s Office – From Deputy Sheriff – To Deputy 
Sheriff/Task Force Agent – 07/15/13 – From General Fund – To Drug Gang 
Violent Crime Control Fund – Replacing Bianca DalMolin 
11.  Bianca DalMolin – Sheriff’s Office – From Deputy Sheriff/Task Force Agent 
– To Deputy Sheriff – 07/15/13 – From Drug Gang Violent Crime Control Fund 
– To General Fund – Replacing Russell Toumberlin 
12.  Danny Rice Jr. – Sheriff’s Office – From Deputy Sheriff – To Deputy 
Sheriff/Task Force Agent – 07/15/13 – From General Fund – To Drug Gang 
Violent Crime Control Fund – Replacing Christopher Pena 
13.  Christopher Pena – Sheriff’s Office – From Deputy Sheriff/Task Force 
Agent – To Deputy Sheriff – 07/15/13 – From Drug Gang Violent Crime Control 
Fund – To General Fund – Replacing Danny Rice Jr. 
14.  Terry Dalton – County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary Senior – 
07/29/13 – From General(.10)/A G Victim Rights Funds – To General Fund – 
Replacing Valerie Hereford 
15.  Valerie Hereford – County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary Senior – 
07/29/13 – From General Fund – To General(.10)/A G Victim Rights Funds – 
Replacing Terry Dalton 
REQUEST TO POST: 
16.  Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Office Supervisor – Position vacated by Eric 
Mariscal 
 
JULY 23, 2013 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
1.  Barbara Munoz – Probation – CASA Foster Care Manager – 07/12/13 – 
Court Appointed Spec Advocate Fund – DOH 03/25/13 – Resignation 

Page 10 of 14 
 



2.  Randy Tober – Public Works – Solid Waste Operations Worker – 07/10/13 – 
Recycling and Landfill Management Fund – DOH 11/19/12 – Resignation  
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
3.  Gloria Thompson – Library District – Early Literacy Program Coordinator – 
07/22/13 – Library District Grants Fund – First Things First grant funded 
position 
4.  Delores Guerrero – Library District – Early Literacy Community Liaison – 
07/29/13 – Library District Grants Fund – Replacing Andressa Kumparak   
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
5.  Steve McFarland – Public Works – Vehicle and Equipment Mechanic – 
07/28/13 – Public Works Fund  
6.  Alfonso Alvarez – Recorder’s Office – Voter Outreach Assistant – 07/01/13 – 
General Fund  
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
7.  Samantha Dickison – Health and Emergency Services – From Animal 
Control Worker – To Animal Regulations Enforcement Officer – 07/29/13 – 
Rabies Control Fund – Replacing Amber Kimbrough 
REQUEST TO POST: 
8.  Information Technology (.50)/Sheriff’s Office (.50) – IT Administration and 
Support Senior – Position vacated by David Luhm 
9.  Community Services – Community Services Worker – Position vacated by 
Helene Lopez 
10.  Public Works – Solid Waste Operations Worker – Position vacated by 
Randy Tober  
 
JULY 30, 2013 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
1.  Wanda Rakoczy – Assessor’s Office – Title Examiner – 08/29/13 – General 
Fund – DOH 07/09/07 – Retirement  
2.  Angel Ortega – Globe Regional Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk Associate 
– 07/19/13 – General Fund – DOH 06/10/13 – Resignation 
3.  Karl Schubert – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 08/09/13 – General Fund 
– DOH 06/25/13 – Resignation  
4.  Kenneth Payne Jr. – Public Works – Solid Waste Operator Senior – 
08/01/13 – Recycling and Landfill Management Fund – DOH 03/27/06 – 
Resignation  
NEW HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
5.  Justin Newby – Public Works – Road Maintenance Equipment Operator – 
08/05/13 – Public Works Fund – Replacing Jerry Moore 
6.  Archie Speer – Public Works – Road Maintenance Equipment Operator – 
08/05/13 – Public Works Fund – Replacing Justin Marks 
7.  Melanie Boyer – Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk – 08/05/13 – General 
Fund – Replacing Cate Gore 
8.  Michael Hill – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 08/05/13 – General Fund – 
Replacing Charlie Links 

Page 11 of 14 
 



9.  Dennis Foil – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 08/05/13 – General Fund 
– Replacing Mark Daunce 
10.  Germain Bohrn – Finance – Payroll Specialist – 08/12/13 – General Fund 
– Replacing Carrie Truesdell 
11.  Jeffrey Hessenius – Finance – Finance Director – 07/29/13 – General 
Fund – Replacing Christopher Bessenecker 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
12.  David Rogers – Elections – From Interim Elections Director – To Elections 
Specialist – 07/15/13 – General Fund – Interim services no longer needed 
13.  Teri Berumen – From Recorder’s Office – To Assessor’s Office – From 
Recorder’s Clerk Senior – To Title Examiner – 08/19/13 – General Fund – 
Replacing Wanda Rakoczy 
14.  Charlotte Williams – Recorder’s Office – From Recorder’s Clerk Senior – To 
Recorder’s Office Supervisor – 07/19/13 – General Fund – Replacing Eric 
Mariscal 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
15.  Rebecca Baeza – Globe Regional Justice Court – Judge Pro Tempore – 
07/26/13 – General Fund – Judge Pro Tempore’s salary moving from salary to 
hourly 
REQUEST TO POST: 
16.  Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk Senior – Position vacated by Teri 
Berumen 
17.  Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk Senior – Position vacated by Charlotte 
Williams 
 
AA.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 
approved by the County Manager for the weeks of July 1, 2013, to July 5, 
2013; July 8, 2013, to July 12, 2013; and July 15, 2013, to July 19, 
2013. 
 
BB.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of  
July 23, 2013, July 30, 2013, and August 6, 2013.  
 
July 23, 2013 
 
$2,348,328.29 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 255413 
through 255625. 
 
July 30, 2013 
 
$423,710.92 was disbursed for County expenses by check number 255626 
through 255748. 
 

    August 6, 2013 

Page 12 of 14 
 



$1,582,754.21 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 255749 
through 255920.  (An itemized list of disbursements is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)   

Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda action items 5-A through 5-BB 
as presented. 
 
Item 6 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC: Call to the Public is held for public benefit 
to allow individuals to address issue(s) within the Board’s jurisdiction. 
Board members may not discuss items that are not specifically identified 
on the agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-
431.01(H), action taken as a result of public comment will be limited 
to responding to criticism made by those who have addressed the Board 
of Supervisors, may ask staff to review the matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date.  
 
Jerry Barnes, Town Manager of Miami, addressed the Board today as Director 
of Cobre Valley Community Transit and handed out flyer invitations to the 
Cobre Valley Community Transit Inaugural 1st Bus Run, to be held August 16, 
2013, at 10:00 a.m. at Miami Town Hall, 500 W. Sullivan Street, Miami, 
Arizona.  He explained that the fixed route includes stops that span from San 
Carlos to Miami and will be starting on August 19, 2013, and run Monday 
through Friday from 6:30 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.  Mr. Barnes introduced Ashley 
Rodriguez, Marketing Specialist, who was present in the audience.  He stated 
that to ride the bus the first month is free, and that the flyer contains all of the 
stops and the cost of each bus ride after the first free month.  He extended 
appreciation to Gila County and to all of the partners for continued support of 
this bus line. 
 
Item 7 – At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief 
Administrator may present a brief summary of current events. No action 
may be taken on issues presented. 
 
Each Board member and the County Manager presented information on 
current events.   
 
Chairman Pastor addressed item 4C at this time. 
 
4C.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize staff to explore various 
alternatives for acquiring additional office space, including, if appropriate, 
submitting proposals on properties that would subsequently be considered 
by the Board of Supervisors for final approval. Pursuant to A.R.S. 38-
431.03(A)(7) the Board of Supervisors may vote to meet in 

Page 13 of 14 
 



executive session to discuss and consult with its representatives 
concerning negotiations for the purchase, sale, or lease or real property.  
 

 Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously voted to go into Executive Session at 10:53 a.m.  
Chairman Pastor reconvened the meeting at 11:43 a.m. and called for a motion 
on this agenda item.  Supervisor Marcanti made a motion to instruct staff to 
look into acquiring additional office space and property per the discussion held 
in Executive Session, which was seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, and 
unanimously approved by the Board.   
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 11:44 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 

Page 14 of 14 
 



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  August 19, 2013 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                    Gila County Courthouse 
Member Globe, Arizona                                
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman; 
John D. Marcanti, Supervisor; Don E. McDaniel Jr., County Manager; Bryan B. 
Chambers, Deputy Attorney Principal; Jacque Griffin, Assistant County 
Manager/Librarian; Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board; and Laurie J. Kline, 
Deputy Clerk of the Board. 
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION  

  
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Vice-Chairman Martin led 
the Pledge of Allegiance and Minister Robert Howard of First Christian Church 
(Globe) delivered the invocation.  

  
Item 2 – PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution 13-08-02 to name 
a previously unnamed road to be called W. Stone Crossing and to 
rename W. Falling Star to W. Stone Crossing.   
 
Michael O'Driscoll, Health & Emergency Services Division Director, stated that  
in order to make this unnamed portion of road in Globe easier to locate for 911 
responders, a letter was sent to the property owners proposing to name a 
previously unnamed section of road and rename W. Falling Star section of road 
to W. Stone Crossing.  There have been no written objections received in 
response to the public notice and/or newspaper publications.  Chairman 
Pastor opened the public hearing and there were no comments from the public, 
so he closed the public hearing and asked for a motion from the Board.  Upon 
motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board 
unanimously adopted Resolution 13-08-02 to name a previously unnamed 
road to be called W. Stone Crossing and to rename W. Falling Star to W. Stone 

Page 1 of 10 
 



Crossing.  (A copy of the Resolution is permanently on file in the Board of 
Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
Item 3 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:   

 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to receive the presentation by Patricia 
Power, Vice President of Bose Public Affairs Group, regarding recent 
lobbying and consulting efforts in Washington D.C. to further County 
supported projects and to potentially secure federal funding for Gila 
County; discuss various items of interest and projects with Ms. Power; 
and provide direction to her on future projects and activities. 

 
Don McDaniel, County Manager, stated that Patricia Power, Vice President 
Bose Public Affairs Group, has been lobbying in Washington, D.C. on Gila 
County’s behalf since 2006, and she has done a good job of keeping the County 
abreast of issues of impact and interest to Gila County.   
 
Ms. Power thanked the Board for the renewal of the contract with Bose Public 
Affairs Group, and she stated that she is present to provide the Board with an 
update on her activities during the past year per the terms of the contract.  She 
outlined some of the top issues that affect Gila County, as follows:  1) Wildfire 
Protection – Ms. Power has been working on the Four Forests Restorative 
Initiative (4FRI), which includes getting the contracts and dealing with the 
ramifications of the decisions made by the Forest Service officials.  There have 
been a number of hearings in Washington, D.C. on the Forest Service and land 
management.  She advised that Vice-Chairman Martin testified in April of this 
year on land issues before the United States House Committee on Natural 
Resources, which was very effective.  2) Road Issues – Ms. Power advised that 
Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century (MAP-21) expires in one year 
from September 2013.  The big issue regarding MAP-21 is getting funding for 
the Highway Trust Fund.  The two likely scenarios are to raise the gas tax, 
which was sufficient for quite some time, but has changed as newer vehicles 
are more fuel efficient and because electric vehicles are becoming more 
popular.  Consequently, less gas-tax revenue is now being collected.  A possible 
solution that has been discussed is raising the tax rate or imposing a vehicle 
miles traveled tax.  Ms. Power stated that there has been communication with 
the congressional offices regarding the need for Congress to provide funding for 
rural area projects as well as urban area projects, so she hopes that is 
considered during their decision-making process.  3)  Resolution Copper  - She 
advised that Congressman Paul Gosar and Congresswoman Ann Kirkpatrick 
have introduced a bipartisan bill currently waiting for action on the House floor 
in support of this mining project located in Superior, Arizona.  Ms. Power does 
not believe this bill will pass through the Senate, but she does believe that it 
will probably pass through the House.  She stated that she is working hard to 
see that rural Arizona is not left behind.  She commented that Senator Flake 
stated earlier this morning that he wanted to see progress being made with 

Page 2 of 10 
 



regard to those opposed to this mining project.  Efforts are also currently being 
made to form a rural caucus in the House.  Ms. Power believes that the County 
is positioned well by being represented by two Senators in addition to two 
Representatives (one Republican and one Democrat), who work well together.  
The caucus will be used to work on moving forward with the Resolution Copper 
mining project, as well as road improvement issues.  Vice-Chairman Martin 
stated that she attended one meeting with regard to setting up and defining 
goals for the rural caucus.    
 
Ms. Power reported on administration, which she said is more tracking than 
actively being involved.  She is working on getting information on topics such 
as Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILT), Secure Rural Schools (SRS) 
implementation, and the impact of sequestration by the federal government.  
She emphasized the importance of 4FRI because it has a direct impact on the 
County.  Lastly, she addressed how the new federal land program will be 
implemented.  The Board thanked Ms. Power and encouraged her to keep up 
the good work.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-
Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously agreed to support the lobbying and 
consulting efforts provided by Patricia Power, Vice President of Bose Public 
Affairs Group, in Washington, D.C. 
 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to receive the presentation by Dr. 
Pascal Berlioux, Executive Director of Eastern Arizona Counties 
Organization (ECO), regarding issues related to forest health, forest fires, 
and endangered species; discuss various items of interest with Dr. 
Berlioux; and provide direction to him on future directions and activities 
of ECO.   
 
Dr. Pascal Berlioux, Executive Director of Eastern Arizona Counties 
Organization (ECO), stated that ECO is a consortium of five counties: Gila, 
Graham, Greenlee, Apache and Navajo. This consortium comprises one-third of 
the counties in Arizona, two-thirds of rural counties in Arizona, and three-
fourths of the small counties in Arizona.  ECO receives money from each of 
these counties as well as from the State Land Department, and the money is 
disbursed for projects accordingly.   
 
Dr. Berlioux stated that it’s been a year since he was assigned to this job and 
he added that the Legislature has reacted very well to the initiatives to “ramp 
up” ECO’s activities.  As a result ECO’s funding has been doubled by the 
legislation in the last year.  The key focus has been to “beef up” ECO’s actions 
at the local level as well as at the state and federal levels.  ECO has been 
involved with civil issues to include transportation, forest restoration, fire 
prevention, land management, endangered species, and the Governor’s 
National Resources Review Council. 
 

Page 3 of 10 
 



With regard to forest restoration, Mr. Berlioux advised that the Four Forest 
Restoration Initiative (4FRI) is not going well.  The two main concerns include 
contracting for thinning of the forests and obtaining a Record of Decision from 
NEPA (National Environmental Policy Act.)  ECO is working with Senators and 
Representatives with regard to 4FRI to try to change legislation with regard to 
contractors.  ECO is not concerned with the entity that wins the contract, nor 
is it concerned with how the timber is utilized; it is just concerned with “getting 
the job done.” 
   
With regard to land management, ECO is working with both the Apache-
Sitgreaves National Forests and the Tonto National Forest (TNF) on their 
proposed Travel Management Plan. 
 
With regard to the endangered species, ECO has filed official comments with 
the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) on the jaguar.  ECO believes that 
the USFWS goes beyond the core requirements on this designation and there is 
no specific science to support the jaguar as needing to be designated as an 
endangered species.  He also talked briefly about the Mexican gray wolf being 
reintroduced under the Endangered Species Act as a “10(j) population” and he 
emphasized the importance of retaining the Mexican gray wolf under the 10(j) 
rule.  
 
The Arizona Governor created the Natural Resources Review Council.  ECO has 
been doing outreach so that ECO may also be represented on this Council.  
Lastly, Dr. Berlioux advised that Senator Crandall included $100,000 grant in 
the State’s budget for a county or a group of counties to look at issues 
regarding natural resources management.  
  
The Board thanked Dr. Berlioux for the presentation.   
 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to set primary and secondary property 
tax rates for 2013 for all taxing jurisdictions within Gila County and 
convey tax rates for all jurisdictions to the County Treasurer, and adopt 
Resolution No. 13-08-03 providing for the collection of taxes for all 
jurisdictions by the County Treasurer for fiscal year 2013-2014.   
 
Don McDaniel, County Manager, stated that this is the time of year to set the 
primary and secondary property tax rates for fiscal year 2013-2014 for all 
taxing jurisdictions within Gila County, and for the Board to adopt Resolution 
13-08-03 of which Exhibit A to the resolution contains the net assessed 
valuations, tax levies and tax rates for tax year 2013.  He also added that 
because the consultant for the software that is being implemented in the 
Treasurer’s Office is running behind schedule, the tax bills will be 
approximately 30 days late in being mailed.  Notification will be sent to each of 
the receiving agencies of this possibility.  Also, taxpayers will be notified by 
public notice that property tax bills will be mailed late; however, notice will also 

Page 4 of 10 
 



be provided that the collection date will also be extended by an equal amount 
of time.  Mr. McDaniel explained that this was an unavoidable set of 
circumstances and that the Treasurer’s Office is working diligently to expedite 
the process of the software changeover.   
 
Chairman Pastor inquired as to whether or not Mr. McDaniel is satisfied with 
the answers from the County Attorney’s Office regarding the Rim Trail Water 
Improvement District (Rim Trail).  Mr. McDaniel then stated that Rim Trail 
requested a flat tax rate rather than a flat tax rate per parcel, and Bryan 
Chambers, Deputy Attorney Principal, advised that wouldn’t be legal; therefore, 
Rim Trail has been advised that the County will not be able to fulfill that 
request.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor 
Marcanti, the Board unanimously set primary and secondary property tax rates 
for 2013 for all taxing jurisdictions within Gila County and conveyed tax rates 
for all jurisdictions to the County Treasurer, and adopted Resolution No. 13-
08-03 providing for the collection of taxes for all jurisdictions by the County 
Treasurer for fiscal year 2013-2014.  (A copy of the Resolution is 
permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 

 
D.  Information/Discussion/Action to acknowledge the resignation of 
Industrial Development Authority (IDA) Board member Scott Flake; and 
further, to appoint a member to the IDA Board of Directors effective 
immediately and expiring July 15, 2019. 

  
Don McDaniel, County Manager, deferred this item to Vice Chairman Martin 
who provided some information about Scott Flake’s resignation from the 
Industrial Development Authority (IDA) Board.  She then recommended the 
appointment of Tim Grier, Town of Star Valley Manager and an attorney, to fill 
Mr. Flake’s unexpired term of office.  Supervisor Marcanti was in favor of the 
recommendation.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-
Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously acknowledged the resignation of IDA 
Board member Scott Flake; and further, appointed Tim Grier, Manager Town of 
Star Valley/Attorney, to the IDA Board of Directors effective immediately and 
expiring July 15, 2019. 

  
 

E.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Road Project Agreement 
(FS Agreement No. 13-RO-11031200-022) between the United States 
Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Tonto National Forest and Gila 
County to receive $227,022 for the double chip seal of Forest Road 55 
(Russell Road), effective through December 31, 2013, at which time it will 
expire unless extended.   
 
Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Deputy Director, stated that in January 
2011, the County submitted an application for Secure Rural Schools Title II 
Special Project funds for this road project.  The County was awarded a grant 

Page 5 of 10 
 



and funding was approved by the Eastern Arizona Resource Advisory 
Committee (RAC) in the amount of $230,700; however, before the funds could 
be secured, the U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) Forest Service, Tonto 
National Forest (TNF) froze the funds and the project was put on hold due to 
sequestration by the federal government.  Recently the Forest Service contacted 
the County and stated that the funds were reauthorized; however, the funds 
were reduced to $227,022.  By executing this agreement, it will allow the 
County to accept the funds from the Forest Service.  Mr. Sanders stated that 
there shouldn’t be a reason not to be able to finish this double chip seal project 
by the end of the year.   
 
Chairman Pastor asked Mr. Sanders when the County plans to begin the 
project.  Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, stated that the plan is 
to begin the project in late September or early October of this year to chip seal 
3.5 miles of road.  Chairman Pastor directed Mr. Sanders or Mr. Stratton to 
meet with him after today’s meeting to discuss a question from a constituent 
regarding this item.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by 
Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously approved a Road Project 
Agreement (FS Agreement No. 13-RO-11031200-022) between the United 
States Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Tonto National Forest and 
Gila County to receive $227,022 for the double chip seal of Forest Road 55 
(Russell Road), effective through December 31, 2013, at which time it will 
expire unless extended. 
 
F.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Road Project Agreement 
(FS Agreement No. 13-RO-11031200-018) between the United States 
Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Tonto National Forest and Gila 
County to receive $185,538 for the surfacing project of Forest Road 512 
(Young Road), effective through December 31, 2013, at which time it will 
expire unless extended. 

  
Mr. Sanders advised that in September 2012, the County submitted an 
application for Secure Rural Schools Title II Special Project funds for this road 
project.  The County was awarded a grant and funding was approved by the 
Eastern Arizona Resource Advisory Committee (RAC) in the amount of 
$222,500; however, before the funds could be secured, the U.S.D.A. Forest 
Service, TNF froze the funds and the project was put on hold due to 
sequestration by the federal government.  Recently the Forest Service contacted 
the County and stated that the funds were reauthorized; however, the funds 
were reduced to $135,538 of Title II Secure Rural School funds plus $50,000 
from the TNF.  This funding in the amount of $185,538 will not complete the 
entire 13 miles; however, it will provide for approximately 4 miles of surfacing 
for Forest Road 512, (Young Road) and make a good base for long-term and 
continued maintenance of the road.  Supervisor Marcanti inquired about the 
type of material to be applied to the road.  Mr. Stratton replied that the Forest 
Service is permitting the County to use granite and other material from 

Page 6 of 10 
 



Ponderosa gravel pits at no cost, and the material will be blended to create 
plasticity.  The project is scheduled to begin in October and should be 
completed by the end of this year.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, 
seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved a Road 
Project Agreement (FS Agreement No. 13-RO-11031200-018) between the 
United States Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Tonto National Forest 
and Gila County to receive $185,538 for the surfacing project of Forest Road 
512 (Young Road), effective through December 31, 2013, at which time it will 
expire unless extended. 

 
 Chairman Pastor announced that the Board would address agenda items 4-6 at 

this time, and then return to address agenda items 3G and 3H. 
 
 Item 4 – CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent 

Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  

 
A.  Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. Gila 10101 between Gila 
County and Central Arizona College for Program Year 2013 to provide 
additional WIA Youth Services funding for the period of July 1, 2013, 
through June 30, 2014, in the amount of $673,403.  

 
B.  Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. Gila 10102 between Gila 
County and Central Arizona Association of Governments for Program Year 
2013 to provide WIA Adult Services for the period of July 1, 2013, 
through June 30, 2014, in the amount of $722,451.  

 
C.  Approval of the Chairman's signature on the Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) between the Gila County Division of Health and 
Emergency Services, the Gila County Board of Supervisors and Cenpatico 
Behavioral Health of Arizona, LLC for a period of three years (from the 
date of the last signature on the MOU) to provide a coordinated response 
to the behavioral health needs of persons impacted by disaster.   

  
D.  Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 2 to 
Contract No. 091511-1 between Gila County and Traffic Safety Inc. to 
increase the contract amount by $35,000, for a new total contract 
amount of $60,000, for the term of the contract, from December 20, 
2012, to December 19, 2013.  

 
E.  Acknowledgment of the resignation of Ms. Linda Stailey from the 
Tonto Village Domestic Water Improvement District governing board and 
the appointment of William Snyder to complete Ms. Stailey's term which 
expires December 31, 2016.  

 

Page 7 of 10 
 



F.  Approval to appoint Kevin Corso to the Local Board of the Public 
Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) to be represented as a 
"Citizen" on said board for a term of four (4) years, for the period of 
August 19, 2013, to August 18, 2017.  

 
G.  Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by 
Arizona Equine Rescue Organization to serve liquor at special events to be 
held on August 30, 2013, August 31, 2013, and September 1, 2013.   

 
H.  Approval of an Application for Extension of Premises/Patio Permit 
submitted by Tamara Morken of Rimside Grill/THAT Brewery to 
temporarily extend the Rimside Grill/THAT Brewery patio area in order to 
serve liquor in that area on September 13-15, 2013; September 27-29, 
2013; October 26, 2013; and November 30, 2013 during special charity 
events.  

  
I.  Approval of a request for a waiver of fees by the Gila County Fair 
Committee for the use of the Fairgrounds facilities in Globe for the 2013 
Gila County Fair and Fair Appreciation Dinner.  

 
J.  Acknowledgment of the July 2013 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.  

 
K.  Acknowledgment of the June 2013 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.  

  
L.  Acknowledgment of the June 2013 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Recorder's Office.  

 
M. Approval of the July 16, 2013, Board of Supervisors' meeting minutes.  

 
N.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 
approved by the County Manager for the weeks of July 22, 2013, to July 
26, 2013; and July 29, 2013, to August 2, 2013.  

  
O.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of 
August 13, 2013, and August 20, 2013.  
 
August 13, 2013 
 
$812,905.15 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 255921 
through 256042. 
 

    August 20, 2013 

Page 8 of 10 
 



$1,893,075.08 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 256043 
through 256211.  (An itemized list of disbursements is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)   

Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda action items 4A through 4O as 
presented. 
 
Item 5 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC: Call to the Public is held for public benefit 
to allow individuals to address issue(s) within the Board’s jurisdiction. 
Board members may not discuss items that are not specifically identified 
on the agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-
431.01(H), action taken as a result of public comment will be limited 
to responding to criticism made by those who have addressed the Board 
of Supervisors, may ask staff to review the matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date.  

  
 There were no requests to speak from the public. 
 

Item 6 – At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief 
Administrator may present a brief summary of current events. No action 
may be taken on issues presented. 
 
Each Board member and the County Manager briefly presented information on 
current events.   
 
At this time, Chairman Pastor addressed agenda items 3G and 3H.  As both 
items stated that the Board may vote to go into executive session, he asked for 
a motion to go into executive session on both items.  Upon motion by Vice-
Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously 
voted to go into executive session at 11:05 a.m. to address agenda item 3G 
followed by another executive session to address agenda item 3H.  
 
Chairman Pastor reconvened the regular meeting at 11:38 a.m. Note:    
Vice-Chairman Martin left the executive session at 11:25 a.m. to attend to 
another meeting; therefore, she did not return to the regular meeting at which 
time a vote was taken on agenda items 3G and 3H. 
 
3G.  Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go into executive session 
pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3), to receive legal advice from its 
attorney regarding a Summons and Complaint filed against Gila County by 
AJP Electric, and pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(4), to consider its 
position in the litigation, direct its attorneys on how to proceed in the 

Page 9 of 10 
 



litigation, and direct its attorneys on how or whether to engage in 
settlement discussions.   
 
Chairman Pastor called for a motion on agenda item 3G.  Supervisor Marcanti 
made a motion to proceed as directed to the County Attorney’s Office.  
Chairman Pastor amended that motion to add “and to approve (paying) the 
amount due to AJP Electric plus 1% interest compounded monthly, and to 
direct the County Attorney to proceed as directed”, to which Supervisor 
Marcanti agreed.  Chairman Pastor then called for the vote which passed. 

 
3H.  Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go into executive session 
pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3), to receive legal advice from its 
attorney regarding Strawberry Ridge Estates LLC. v. Gila County TX 2013-
000471, and pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(4), to consider its position 
in the litigation, direct its attorneys on how to proceed in the litigation, 
and direct its attorneys on how or whether to engage in settlement 
discussions.  
 

 Chairman Pastor called for a motion on agenda item 3H.  Supervisor Marcanti 
made a motion to dismiss the lawsuit and directed the County Attorney to 
proceed as directed in the executive session in Strawberry Ridge Estates, LLC 
vs. Gila County TX 2013-00471, which was seconded by Chairman Pastor and 
passed. 

  
 There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 

Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 11:40 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
 

Page 10 of 10 
 



   

ARF-2029       4. N.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/03/2013  

Reporting
Period:

Human Resources reports for the weeks of 8/6/13, 8/13/13,
8/20/13, and 8/27/13.

Submitted For: Linda Eastlick Submitted By: Erica
Raymond,
Human
Resources
Assistant,
Human
Resources

Information
Subject
Human Resources reports for the weeks of August 6, 2013, August 13, 2013, August
20, 2013, and August 27, 2013.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of Human Resources reports for the weeks of August 6, 2013,
August 13, 2013, August 20, 2013, and August 27, 2013.

Attachments
August Human Resources Summary Report
08/06/13 Human Resources Report
08/13/13 Human Resources Report
08/20/13 Human Resources Report
08/27/13 Human Resources Report



Summary
Year To 
Date Jan‐13 Feb‐13 Mar‐13 Apr‐13 May‐13 Jun‐13 Jul‐13 Aug‐13 Sep‐13 Oct‐13 Nov‐13 Dec‐13

Human Resources Action Items

DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE 115 17 8 12 17 17 15 12 17

HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE 78 6 10 7 15 7 15 12 6
 

TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE 20 1 0 2 9 4 0 2 2

VOLUNTEERS TO COUNTY SERVICE 4 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS 62 3 9 7 7 5 7 16 8

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD 82 7 18 10 11 12 6 9 9

OTHER ACTIONS 58 23 1 4 6 4 5 14 1

REQUEST PERMISSION TO POST 96 10 11 8 17 9 14 12 15

  Total Transactions 515 67 57 50 82 58 66 77 58 0 0 0 0



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
AUGUST 6, 2013 

 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Stephanie Hawk – Community Services – WEX Participant – 07/19/13 – Workforce Investment Act 
Fund – DOH 03/18/13 – End of temporary employment 

 
NEW HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

2. Daniel Mikolay – Finance – Accountant Senior – 08/26/13 – General Fund – Replacing Amanda Roady 
3. Khadija Taaka-Patch – Health and Emergency Services – Communicable Disease Specialist – 08/19/13 

– Replacing Betty Vanta 
4. Leitha Griffin – Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk Senior – 08/12/13 – General Fund – Replacing 

Charlotte Williams 
 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

5. Sabil Fitzhugh – Payson Regional Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk Associate – 08/11/13 – General 
Fund 

6. Melissa Greenhagen – Payson Regional Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk Associate – 08/11/13 – 
General Fund 

7. Patricia Keyworth – Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – 08/06/13 – Court Appointed Special 
Advocate (.50)/Court Improvement Project(.50) Funds 

8. David Luhm – Information Technology – IT Administrator and Support Senior – 07/29/13 – General 
Fund 

9. Brian Martin – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 08/13/13 – General Fund  
10. Christopher Mathews – Public Works – Custodian (.85) – 08/14/13 – Facilities Management Fund 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

11. Dave Rogers – From Elections – To Information Technology – From Elections Specialist – To Systems 
and Network Communications Analyst – 08/12/13 – General Fund – Replacing Kelly Riggs 

12. Lisa Wilckens – Finance – From Payroll Specialist – To Management Analyst – 08/12/13 – General 
Fund  

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

13. Public Works – Solid Waste Operations Worker Senior – Position vacated by Kenneth Payne Jr. 
14. Elections – Elections Specialist – Position vacated by Dave Rogers 

 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
AUGUST 13, 2013 

 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Cynthia Claydon – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 08/11/13 – General Fund – DOH 11/22/10 – 
Resignation 

2. Dennis Foil – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 08/05/13 – General Fund – DOH 08/05/13 – 
Declined position 

 
NEW HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

3. John Park – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 2 – 08/19/13 – State Aid Enhancement Fund – 
Replacing David Jones 

4. Daniel Lowe – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 1 – 08/19/13 – State Aid Enhancement Fund – 
Replacing Gretchen Spier 

5. Rachel Saleh – Health and Emergency Services – Environmental Health Specialist Senior – 08/19/13 – 
Health Service Fund – Replacing Joe Kline 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

6. Amber Warden – Sheriff’s Office – From Accounting Clerk Specialist – To Executive Administrative 
Assistant – 08/12/13 – General Fund – Replacing Nancy Neumann 

7. Gretchen Spier – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 2 – 08/19/13 – From State Aid Enhancement 
Fund – To Adult Intensive Probation Supervision – Replacing Jaime Romero 

8. Sylvia Martinez – Finance – From Accounting Clerk Senior – To Payroll Specialist – 08/26/13 – 
General Fund – Replacing Lisa Wilckens 

9. Lisa Modglin – From Sheriff’s Office – To Information Technology(.5)/Sheriff’s Office(.5) – From IT 
Support Technician – To IT Administrator and Support Senior – 08/19/13 – General Fund – Replacing 
Tyler Solberg 

10. Fred Lavin – Public Works – From Road Maintenance/Equipment Operator Senior – To Public Works 
Roads Lead – 08/19/13 – Public Works Fund – Replacing Richard Short 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

11. Sheriff’s Office – IT Administrative Support Senior – Position vacated by Lisa Modglin 
12. Finance – Accounting Clerk Senior – Position vacated by Sylvia Martinez 
13. Sheriff’s Office – Jail Intelligence/Professional Standard – Position vacated by John DeSanti 
14. Sheriff’s Office – Accounting Clerk Specialist – Position vacated by Amber Warden 

 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
AUGUST 20, 2013 

 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. David Palmer – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 08/23/13 – General Fund – DOH 09/27/12 – 
Resignation 

2. Justin Durbin – Assessor’s Office – Property Appraiser – 08/16/13 – General Fund – DOH 03/11/13 – 
Unsuccessful completion of probationary period 

3. Tannyn Garcia – Constituent Services II – Temporary Laborer – 08/12/13 – General Fund – DOH 
07/01/13 - Resignation 

 
NEW HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

4. Zachary Navarro – Public Works – Solid Waste Operations Worker – 08/26/13 – Recycling and Landfill 
Management Fund – Replacing Randy Tober 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

5. Thomas Dando – Public Works – Solid Waste Operations Worker Senior – 08/28/13 – Recycling and 
Landfill Management Fund  

6. James Gibson – Public Works – Solid Waste Operations Worker Senior – 08/28/13 – Recycling and 
Landfill Management Fund  

7. Kevin Kittle – Probation – Surveillance Officer – 08/27/13 – General(.5)/Adult Probation Service 
Fees(.5) Funds 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

8. Alfonso Alvarez – From Recorder’s Office – To Elections Department – From Voter Outreach Assistant 
– To Elections Specialist – 08/26/13 – General Fund – Replacing Dave Rogers 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

9. Public Works – Vehicle and Equipment Mechanic Senior – Position vacated by Kenneth Payne Sr. 
10. Assessor’s Office – Property Appraiser – Position vacated by Justin Durbin 

 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
AUGUST 27, 2013 

 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Amber Campbell – School Superintendent’s Office – Accounting Clerk – 08/30/13 – General Fund – 
DOH 10/01/12 – Resignation 

2. Sophia Hill – Health and Emergency Services – Accounting Clerk – 08/22/13 – Various Funds – DOH 
06/17/13 – Unsuccessful completion of probationary period 

3. Frank Zupancic – Public Works – Vehicle and Equipment Mechanic – 09/13/13 – Public Works Fund – 
DOH 09/08/86 – Retirement  

4. Bree’na York – Community Services – Fiscal Services Manager – 08/30/13 – Various Funds – DOH 
07/01/97 – Resignation  

5. Christopher Bender – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 08/25/13 – General Fund – DOH 11/27/06 – 
Resignation  

6. George Carrillo – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 08/27/13 – General Fund – DOH 06/11/12 – 
Resignation  

7. Christopher Thorne – Constituent Services II – Temporary Laborer – 08/19/13 – General Fund – DOH 
06/10/13 – End of temporary employment 

8. Curtis Johnson – Constituent Services II – Temporary Laborer – 08/19/13 – General Fund – DOH 
04/15/13 – End of temporary employment 

9. David Oropeza – Constituent Services II – Temporary Laborer – 08/19/13 – General Fund – DOH 
04/15/13 – End of temporary employment 

10. Ernest Salcido – Constituent Services II – Temporary Laborer – 08/19/13 – General Fund – DOH 
04/15/13 – End of temporary employment 

11. Nathaneal Cutter – Public Works – Automotive Mechanic – 08/22/13 – Fleet Management Fund – DOH 
05/12/08 – Resignation 

12. Daniel Mikolay – Finance – Accountant Senior – 08/26/13 – General Fund – DOH 8/26/13 – Declined 
position  

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
 

13. Bree’na York – Community Services – Consultant – 09/02/13 – Various Funds 
14. Esmeralda Renteria – Community Services – WEX Participant – 09/09/13 – Workforce Investment Act 

Fund – Replacing Stephanie Hawk 
 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

15. Dana Lindsey – County Attorney’s Office – Detective – 07/08/13 – General Fund – Temporary 
reduction in hours worked 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

16. Public Works – Automotive Mechanic – Position vacated by Nathaneal Cutter 
17. Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher Supervisor – Position vacated by Candice Jorgenson 
18. Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer Sgt. – Position vacated by Christine Duarte 
19. Sheriff’s Office – Professional Standards Investigator – Position vacated by John DeSanti 
20. Community Services – Fiscal Service Manager – Position vacated by Bree’na York 
21. Community Services – Administrative Clerk – Position vacated by Pamela Wagner 
22. School Superintendent’s Office – Accounting Clerk – Position vacated by Amber Campbell 

 
 



   

ARF-2059     Consent Agenda Item      4. O.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/03/2013  

Reporting
Period:

Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for
Weeks Ending 8-9-13 and 8-16-13

Submitted For: Jeffrey
Hessenius,
Finance
Director

Submitted By:
Dana Sgroi, Contracts Support
Specialist, Finance Department

Information
Subject
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks Ending
8-9-13 and 8-16-13.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved by the
County Manager for the weeks of August 5, 2013, to August 9, 2013; and August 12,
2013, to August 16, 2013.

Attachments
County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks Ending 8-9-13; and
8-16-13
Arizona State Purchasing Cooperative Agreement 06-2013 to 06-2018
Tachyon Networks Quote GC0604
Service Agreement No 072513 with Pueblo Mechanical
Amendment No. 1 with Christine McCown, R.N.
Amendment No. 1 to Contract 060613 with Terry Doolittle
Maintenance Agreement 135090.01 with BT Conferencing Video, Inc.
Agreement Rim Country Arizonans for Children-P.A.D.S.



Page 1 of 2 
 

COUNTY MANAGER APPROVED CONTRACTS UNDER $50,000 
 
 
August 05, 2013 to August 09, 2013 

Number / Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 
 

Arizona Dept. of 
Administration 

  

 
 

Arizona State Purchasing 
Cooperative Agreement 

 
 

N/A 
 

 
 

6-30-13 to 6-30-18  

 
 

8-5-13 

 
 

Expires 

 
Renew the Cooperative Agreement with the State 
of Arizona that allows Gila County to utilize State 
contracts to purchase various products and 
services. 

 
GC0604 

Tachyon Networks 
  

 
Purchase & Install 1 Auto 

Deploy Satellite for Sheriff’s 
Office Command Center 

 
 

$25,350.00 
 

 
 

6-30-13 to 7-1-14  

 
 

8-7-13 

 
 

Expires 

 
Replace the broken and unserviceable Satellite 
Dish on Sheriff’s Office Command Center. 

 
072513 

Pueblo Mechanical 
  

 
Replace Compressor on the 
Globe Jail Walk-In Freezer 

 
$3,566.71 

 

 
8-7-13 to 10-6-13  

 
8-7-13 

 
Expires 

 
Repair/Replace Walk-in Freezer Compressor. 
When Bill McDaniel came in the Freezer was off 
and they don’t know for how long. 
 

 
 
August 12, 2013 to August 16, 2013 

Number / Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

041412 
Christine McCown, R.N. 

 
Amendment No. 1 to 
Professional Services 

Agreement No. 041412 
Community Health Nursing  

 

 
$11,100.00 

 
7-1-13 to 6-30-14 

 
8-14-13 

 
Option to renew 

for one (1) 
additional year 

 
Provide Community Health Nursing in accordance 
with the Arizona Department of Health Services 
for the Gila County Health Department. 
 

 
060613 

TD Government 
Solutions 

 
Amendment No. 1 to 

Professional Services Contract 
No. 060613 

Operational Review Consultant 
 
 
 

 
N/A 

 
5-16-13 to 9-30-13 

 
8-14-13 

 
Expires 

 
Amendment No. 1 serves to change the name on 
Professional Services Contract No. 060613 from 
Terry Doolittle, to TD Government Solutions, Inc. 
TD Government Solutions, Inc. is a corporation 
that was started by Terry Doolittle to run his 
consulting business out of. As of the date the 
contract was written, the paperwork was still 
being processed. The paperwork has been fully 
completed now and TD Government Solutions, 
Inc. is an active corporation in good standing with 
the Corporation Commission.  
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

August 12, 2013 to August 16, 2013 

Number / Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

135090.01 
BT Conferencing Video 

 
Maintenance Renewal for video 

conference equipment 
 

 
$4,430.00 

 
6-15-13 to 6-14-16 

 
8-14-13 

 
Expires 

 
Renewal of the maintenance agreement for the 
video conferencing equipment in courtrooms and 
detention homes. 
 

 
 

Rim Country Arizonans 
for Children, Inc. 

 
Agreement between Gila County 

and  
Rim Country Arizonans for 

Children, Inc. 
 

 
$10,00.00 

 
- 

 
8-15-13 

 
- 

 
Economic Development grant for financial 
assistance for the Payson Assisting Displaced 
Students (P.A.D.S.) program. Rim Country 
Arizonans for Children, Inc. is a 501c3 
organization that supports children and families 
that participate in the P.A.D.S. program. The 
P.A.D.S. program exists to help find safe and 
stable homes for homeless students in the 
Northern Gila County area. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
























































	Agenda
	Item2.A.   August 2013 _Spotlight on Employees_ Program.
	Item3.A.  Intergovernmental Agreement between Gila County and Gila County Community College District for Maintenance of College Facilities
	ATT.Intergovernmental Agreement-Preservation of Educational Facilities FYE 12-13
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item3.B.  Spillman Technologies, Inc. Server and Software Purchase
	ATT.IBM Cancellation of services notice
	ATT.County Sole Source Information
	ATT.Spillman Technologies Sole Source Letter Gila County 073113
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	Item3.C.  Approval of Final Distribution of Gila County's Secure Rural Schools and Communities Funds for FY2013
	ATT.Forest Fees Distribution FY2012-2013
	Item3.D.  Empire CAT-Replace Compactor Wheel Tips on Caterpillar 816F Compactor at Buckhead Mesa Landfill in Payson, AZ
	ATT.Empire Quote to replace compactor pads-REVISED 07-31-13
	ATT.City of Tucson Request for Proposal
	ATT.City of Tucson Contract with Caterpillar
	ATT.City of Tucson Contract Amendment No. 1
	ATT.City of Tucson Contract Amendment No. 2
	ATT.City of Tucson Contract Amendment No. 3
	ATT.City of Tucson Contract Amendment No. 4
	ATT.City of Tucson Contract Amendment No. 5
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	Item3.E.  Contract ADES14-051775 for Vending Services Grantor Agreement
	ATT.The Randolph-Sheppard Act
	ATT.A.R.S. 23-504
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item3.F.  Resolution No. 13-09-01 for a Roadway Exchange Regarding Deer Farm Road
	ATT.Resolution No. 13-09-01
	Item3.G.  Resolution No. 13-09-02 Accepting Russell Road into the Gila County Maintained Roadway System
	ATT.Resolution No. 13-09-02
	Item3.H.  Submit two letters to Director of U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service regarding Mexican wolf proposed actions
	ATT.Wolves Concerns
	ATT.Wolves Extension letter
	Item3.I.  Adoption of Policy No. BOS-COB-004 - Call to the Public
	ATT.Policy No. BOS-COB-004 - Call to the Public
	ATT.ARS 38-431.01
	Item4.A.  Approval of a revision to Exhibit A of Resolution No. 13-08-03 Providing for the Collection of Taxes for All Jurisdictions for FY 2013-2014
	ATT.Revised Exhibit A of Resolution No. 13-08-03
	ATT.Resolution No. 13-08-03 with Exhibit A
	ATT.12-6-12 Ltr from ADOR to Young Elementary School District
	ATT.Email Correspondence between County Mgr and ADOR 8-20-13
	Item4.B.  Unilateral Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. DE126007-015 Arizona Department of Economic Security
	ATT.Unilateral Amendment No. 1 Contract No. DE126007-015
	ATT.Amendment No. 2 Contract DE126007-015
	ATT.Original Contract DE126007-015
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item4.C.  Unilateral Amendment No. 3 and Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. DE111093-001 with Arizona Department of Economic Security
	ATT.Amendment No. 4 Contract No. DE111093-001
	ATT.Amendment No. 3 Contract DE111093-001 DES
	ATT.Amendment No. 2 DE111093-001 DES
	ATT.Amendment No. 1 DE111093-001
	ATT.Original Contract DE111093-001 DES
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item4.D.  Amendment No. 9 to Agreement  No. 700518523 for Energy Wise Low Income Weatherization with Arizona Public Service
	ATT.Amendment No. 9 Contract 700518523 APS
	ATT.Amendment No. 8 Contract 700518523 APS
	ATT.Amendment No 7 Contract 700518523 APS
	ATT.Amendment No. 6 Contract 700518523 APS
	ATT.Amendment No. 5 Contract 700518523 APS
	ATT.Amendment No. 4 Contract 70051823 APS
	ATT.Amendment No. 3 Contract 700518523
	ATT.Amendment No. 2 Contract 700518523
	ATT.Amendment No. 1 Contract No. 700518523
	ATT.Original Contract 700518523 APS
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	Item4.E.  Amendment to an Order to Call a Special Recall Election - Pleasant Valley Fire District
	ATT.Amended Order - Pleasant Valley FD Recall
	ATT.Original Order - Pleasant Valley FD Recall
	ATT.ARS 19-209
	Item4.F.  Beaver Valley Fire District Governing Board Member Resignation and Appointment
	Item4.G.  Tri-City Fire District Governing Board Membership Changes
	Item4.H.  Appointment of Precinct Committeemen to the Gila County Republican Party
	Item4.I.  Lions Club of Globe Special Event Liquor License Applications for September 19, September 20, and September 21, 2013
	ATT.Lions Club Applications for Special Events on September 19-21-2013
	Item4.J.  Arizona State Parks Foundation Special Event Liquor License Application for October 19, 2013
	ATT.AZ State Parks Foundation Application for a Special Event on October 19, 2013
	Item4.K.  Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for July 2013
	ATT.Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for July 2013
	Item4.L.  Clerk of Court's Report for the Month of July 2013
	ATT.Clerk of Court Report for 07_2013
	Item4.M.  July 30, 2013, August 6, 2013, and August 19, 2013, BOS Meeting Minutes
	ATT.BOS 07-30-13 Meeting Minutes
	ATT.BOS 08-06-13 Meeting Minutes
	ATT.BOS 08-19-13 Meeting Minutes
	Item4.N.  Human Resources reports for the weeks of 8_6_13, 8_13_13, 8_20_13, and 8_27_13.
	ATT.August Human Resources Summary Report
	ATT.08_06_13 Human Resources Report
	ATT.08_13_13 Human Resources Report
	ATT.08_20_13 Human Resources Report
	ATT.08_27_13 Human Resources Report
	Item4.O.  Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks Ending 8-9-13 and 8-16-13
	ATT.County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks Ending 8-9-13_ and 8-16-13

